
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




                                                                                                 
 


 


 
 
 


 
 


FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
IMPERIAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 


 
Wednesday, May 19, 2010 


6:00 P.M. 
 


Location: 
Board Room – Administration Building 10 


380 East Aten Road 
Imperial, CA  92251 


 
The Board of Trustees welcomes you to its meeting.  


The Board reserves the right to modify the order of business on the agenda as it deems appropriate.  
 
The District Office is located at 380 East Aten Road, Imperial, CA 92251.  
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Imperial Community College District will make 
every effort to honor requests for reasonable accommodations made by individuals with disabilities.   [ADA 
TITLE II, SEC. 202. 42 USC 12132]   
 
Please contact the Office of the Superintendent/President at (760) 355-6219 or (760) 355-6547 if you 
need assistance in order to participate in a public meeting or if you need the agenda and public 
documents modified as required by Section 202 of the American with Disabilities Act.  
 
The Office of the Superintendent/President, Building 10, is the location where documents that are public 
records relating to any item under discussion on a Board agenda (including documents distributed with 
the agenda and those distributed to all or a majority of the members of the Board within 72 hours prior to 
a Board meeting) are available for public inspection.  


 
Board agendas and supporting documents are also posted on the college website at 
http://www.imperial.edu/index.php?pid=658.  
 


2009-2010 Board Officers 
Board President: Jerry Hart 


Clerk of the Board: Rebecca Ramirez 
Secretary to the Board: Ed Gould, Ed.D. 


 
Student Trustee: Steven Sciaky 


 
GOVERNING BOARD AGENDA 


 







Board Agenda       Page 2 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
1. Roll Call by Secretary: 
 


Carlos R. Acuña  Romualdo J. Medina 
Rudy Cardenas, Jr.  Rebecca L. Ramirez 
Norma Sierra Galindo  Louis Wong 
Jerry D. Hart    
 
Student Representative – Steven Sciaky 
Academic Senate Representative – Kevin White 
College Council Representative – Dr. Michael Heumann 
 


2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 


 
At this time persons may speak to the Board either on an agenda item or on other matters of 
interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Board Policy 
2350 states:  
 


Each speaker will be allowed a maximum of five minutes per topic.  Thirty minutes 
shall be the maximum time allotment for public speakers on any one subject 
regardless of the number of speakers at any one Board meeting.  At the discretion 
of a majority of the Board, these time limits may be extended.   


 
If you wish to be heard, please stand and identify yourself to the Board President.   


 
 
III. PRESENTATION 
 
1. Certificate of Appreciation for Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
 
 
IV. INFORMATION REPORTS 


 
1. Employee of the Month (April & May) – Vice President for Business Services John Lau 
2. Student Learning Outcomes (SLO) Presentation – Dr. Toni Pfister 
3. HUB International on the transition to ICSVEBA by Jack Phelps – Travis Gregory  
4. Board Member Reports 
5. Associated Student Government Senate Update – Steven Sciaky 
6. Academic Senate Update – Kevin White 
7. College Council Update – Dr. Michael Heumann 
8. President’s Update – Dr. Ed Gould 
 







Board Agenda       Page 3 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA – BUSINESS 
 
1. Approval of Minutes dated April 21, 2010, Regular Board Meeting 
2. Resolution No. 14669: Purchase Orders 
3. Resolution No. 14670: Payroll Warrant Orders 
4. Resolution No. 14671: Commercial Warrant Orders 
5. Resolution No. 14672: Quarterly Financial Report 
6. Resolution No. 14673: Surplus Items 
7. Resolution No. 14674: Ratification of Contracts 
8. Resolution No. 14675: Change in Board Meeting Time and Order 
9. Resolution No. 14676: One Year Lease Agreement for Calexico Extended Campus 
10. Resolution No. 14677: Line of Credit 
11. Resolution No. 14678: Local Business Resolution 
 
 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA – EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 


 
1. Resolution No. 14679: Major, Certificate, Course Additions and Deletions 
2. Resolution No. 14680: Service Learning Agreement with SDSU 
3. Resolution No. 14681: Honorary Degrees 
4. Resolution No. 14682: Agreement with the County of Imperial to render certain employment 


services for Machine and Electronic Repair Technician  
5. Resolution No. 14683: 2009-2010 Candidates for Graduation 


 
 
VII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. NEGOTIATIONS UNDER THE EDUCATIONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS ACT 
 Conference with District Negotiators:  John Lau and Travis Gregory 
 Employee Organization:  CSEA Chapter 472 
 RE: Negotiations  
 
 
2. NEGOTIATIONS UNDER THE EDUCATIONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS ACT 
 Conference with District Negotiators:  John Lau and Travis Gregory 
 Employee Organization: IVC Chapter of CCA/CTA/NEA 
 RE: Negotiations  
 
 
3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
 
 
4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
 Title: Superintendent/President  
 
 
VIII. OPEN SESSION 
 
1. Announcement of final action taken 







Board Agenda       Page 4 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
1. Resolution No. 14684: Administrative Salary Schedule 
2. Resolution No. 14685: Administrative Vacancy 
3. Resolution No. 14686: Faculty Retirement 
4. Resolution No. 14687: Full-Time temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel 
5. Resolution No. 14688: Full-time, temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel 
6. Resolution No. 14689: Full-Time Faculty Summer Employment 
7. Resolution No. 14690: Outreach Counseling Specialist Employment 
8. Resolution No. 14691: Adjunct Instructor Summer Employment 
9. Resolution No. 14692: Sabbatical Leave 
10. Resolution No. 14693: Reduction of Classified Service 
11. Resolution No. 14694: Reduction of Classified Service 
12. Resolution No. 14695: Reduction of Classified Service 
13. Resolution No. 14696: Ratification of ICSVEBA participation  
14. Resolution No. 14697: New Full time temporary, non tenure track, categorically funded position - 


Special Projects Coordinator 
15. Resolution No. 14698: Volunteer Service Agreement 
16. Resolution No. 14699: Reemployment of Jose Velasquez 
 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regular meeting of the Imperial Community College District Board of Trustees is scheduled for 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 16, 2010, AT 6:00 P.M. in the Administration Board Room located in Building 10. 







Board Agenda       Page 5 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA – BUSINESS 
 
V.1.  Approval of Minutes dated April 21, 2010, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 
V.2.  Resolution No. 14669: Purchase Orders 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the issuance of purchase orders and direct payments for the 
month of April 2010 in the amount of $956,930.86. 
 
April 2010 
Direct Pay 57,270.95 
Purchase Orders 899,659.91 


956,930.86 
 
 
V.3. Resolution No. 14670: Payroll Warrant Orders 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the issuance of the following Payroll Warrants for the month 
of April 2010: 
 


Fund 10 Fund 45 Fund 80 
Date General Child Bond  Warrant 
Paid # Fund Dev. Fund Total 
4/2/10 18 293,250.25 309.55 293,559.80


4/30/10 19 2,567,822.57 41,387.89 5,511.59 2,614,722.05
2,861,072.82 41,697.44 5,511.59 2,908,281.85


 
 
V.4. Resolution No. 14671: Commercial Warrant Orders  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the issuance of the following commercial warrant orders for 
the month of April 2010: 


Fund 10 Fund 20 Fund 45 Fund 80 
Date General Financial Building Child Bond  Warrant 
Paid # Fund Aid Fund Dev. Fund Total 
4/1/10 38 747,696.88 6,416.53 465,371.79 1,219,485.20


4/15/10 39 125,236.90 414,598.54 50,992.41 590,827.85
4/22/10 40 246,888.88 14,230.17 261,119.05
4/30/10 41 247,821.73 824,635.58 14,700.00 275.25 240,463.15 1,327,895.71


1,367,644.39 1,239,234.12 14,700.00 6,691.78 771,057.52 3,399,327.81
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 6 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
V.5. Resolution No. 14672: Quarterly Financial Report 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees accepts the Quarterly Financial Status Report (CCFS 
311Q) for the quarter ending March 31, 2010, and directs that it be filed with the Chancellor’s Office of 
the California Community Colleges as presented in Exhibit A. 
 
 
V.6. Resolution No. 14673: Surplus Items 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves declaring the following outdated non-functional property 
which is no longer being used for educational purposes, as surplus property; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent/President and/or the Vice President for Business 
Services and/or the Director of Purchasing/Accounting are hereby authorized and instructed to dispose 
of said surplus property in the best interest of the College as follows: 
 


Equipment Description IVC property number 
 


Cash Registers (4) SN# 9906420214, 9906420261, 9906420387, 9906420422 
Cassette Recorder  09982 
CPU (31) 001415, 002003, 11245, 11893, 11958, 12028, 12989, 


12993, 12995, 13372, 13483, 13539, 14247, 14412, 16122, 
16133, 16137, 16150, 16311, 16312, 16314, 16325, 16328, 
16332, 16333, 16335, 16677,  
SN# 0014126786, 0015304548, 0026541235, 
F825K40UIN55N 


Laptop  SN# 0035006945 
Monitors (8) 09893, 10007, 10658, 11253, 12001, 15369, SN# 


150177A247338, TL819A502002231 
Printers (7) 1189, 10035, 10046, 10519, 11217, 13739, SN# 


USKB238771 
Projector (3) 00857, 1175, SN# 010016 
Scanner (3) 11753, 15538, SN# N3328 
Stereo SN# 85004085 
Television (6) 6318, 6319, 6320, 15788, SN# MB22390035, T7H015861 
Typewriter SN# 14331000000128 
Video Cassette Player 
(3) 


SN# 6HV1285M, BEJ9QKA2750, BO5A17650 


 
 







Board Agenda       Page 7 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
V.7. Resolution No. 14674: Ratification of Contracts 
 
Be it resolved that the Board ratifies the following contracts: 
 
Vendor Amount Description Budget/Department 


 
Xerox $2,850.12  


($79.17 per month, 36 
months) 


Replacement fax machine 
for Administration building 


On-going expense 
Admissions and Records 


Imperial County 
Office of Education 


$22,670.14 per year Payroll auditing services,  
on-going expense 


Budgeted expense,2010-11 
General Services


Governet $12,000 per year Annual maintenance and 
support fee for 
CurricUNET 


Budgeted expense, 2010-
11 
Information Technology 


Adobe $3,500 per year Licensing fee, on-going 
expense 


Budgeted expense, 2009-
10 
Information Technology 


 
RATIONALE/FISCAL IMPACT:  The contracts listed above are part of the normal operational 
costs of the College.  The contracts are needed to maintain the current level of services.   The 
contract with Xerox is a new three year agreement.  The contracts with the Imperial County 
Office of Education, Governet and Adobe are renewed annually.  All costs related to these 
contracts are included in the budget.   
 
 
V.8. Resolution No. 14675: Change in Board Meeting Time and Order 
 
WHEREAS the Board Meeting dates are the third Wednesday of every month at 6:00 P.M.; and 
 
WHEREAS the Board’s order of business is to break for CLOSED SESSION at the middle of the 
agenda; and 
 
WHEREAS moving the CLOSED SESSION to the beginning of the meeting would streamline the 
meeting, reduce resources, and allow the public to participate with better time management; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves changing it Board Meeting time to 5:30 p.m. 
and allow for CLOSED SESSION to be the first order of business, effective with the July Board meeting. 
 
 
V.9. Resolution No. 14676: One Year Lease Agreement for Calexico Extended Campus 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the lease agreement between CALEXICO HACIENDA 
PLAZA, INC., a California Corporation, whose principal place of business is 101 West Hacienda Drive, 
Suite 11, Calexico, CA 92231, hereinafter referred to as “LANDLORD”, and IMPERIAL COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE DISTRICT of 380 E. Aten Rd., Imperial, California 92251, hereinafter referred to as 
“TENANT” for the term commencing July 1, 2010, and terminating on June 30, 2011; and 
 







Board Agenda       Page 8 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the Superintendent/President to sign and enter 
into the agreement as presented in Exhibit B. 
 
 
RATIONALE/FISCAL IMPACT:  In order to maintain the current level of classes for 2010-11 at the 
Calexico Extended Campus the College is entering into a one-year lease extension with Calexico 
Hacienda Plaza, Inc.  The lease extension will allow the College to maintain the current level of 
classes offered this year.   
 
The annual amount of the new lease is the same as the current lease and totals $177,732.  This 
amount is paid from the General Fund and will be included as an operating cost in the budget for 
fiscal year 2010-11.  Due to the current financial crisis in education, the owner has opted not to 
request a previously agreed upon increase to $16,712/month.   Thus, the new lease represents a 
savings of $22,812 from the original agreement.   
  
 
V.10. Resolution No. 14677: Line of Credit 
 
WHEREAS, due to the on-going state fiscal crisis, a total of $4 million in 2009-10 apportionments 
payments due to the District are being deferred until fiscal year 2010-11; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District will not have adequate funds on hand to meet its fiscal year 2009-10 obligations 
due to the deferral of apportionment payments; and 
 
WHEREAS, Education Code Section 42620 allows school districts to borrow from the County 
Treasurer.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees of the Imperial Community College 
District is requesting a line of credit from the Imperial County Board of Supervisors in the amount of $4 
million. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The District is requesting the line of credit from the County of Imperial in order 
to have adequate cash flow for the months of May and June, 2010.  Any interest associated with 
the line of credit will be paid from interest earnings in the coming fiscal year. 
 
 
V.11. Resolution No. 14678: Local Business Resolution 
 
WHEREAS, the Imperial Community College District is committed to doing its part to help stimulate the 
local economy; and 
 
WHEREAS, through 2008, over 40% of Measure L construction contracts have been awarded to 
businesses located within Imperial County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District is committed to continuing its efforts to encourage and facilitate full and 
equitable business opportunities for all Imperial County businesses wishing to do business with the 
District; and 
 







Board Agenda       Page 9 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
WHEREAS, the District shall encourage all bidders and professional service providers to make good 
faith efforts to meet a local participation goal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District shall make special efforts to encourage local business participation in all of the 
District’s procurement procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, the staff of the District shall take additional steps to encourage local participation in 
construction and construction-related professional services work.  Outreach efforts will be targeted to 
both existing District vendors and to businesses in the County of Imperial; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees hereby establishes its formal 
commitment to maintaining local business participation in all Imperial Community College District 
business opportunities. 
 
 
VI.  CONSENT AGENDA – EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
 
VI.1. Resolution No. 14679: Major, Certificate, Course Additions and Deletions 
 
WHEREAS, new programs, deleted programs and new courses within the programs have been 
approved by the Curriculum and Instruction Committee and instructional administration, and satisfy all 
applicable requirements of Title 5 regulations.  All factors, taken as a whole, support the establishment 
and maintenance of the proposed instructional programs and courses. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Curriculum and Instruction 
Committee (03-04-10 and 03-18-10) and the Academic Senate (04-21-10), with the consent of the 
Superintendent/President, as follows: 
 
MARCH 4, 2010 C & I COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
New Credit Courses 
BUS 230 – Introduction to Governmental Accounting (3.0) 
 
MARCH 18, 2010 C & I COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Deleted Disciplines/Department Rubrics 
Personal Development (PD) 
 
New Disciplines/Department Rubrics 
Counseling (COUN) 
Student Government (SGOV) 
 
 
VI.2. Resolution No. 14680: Service Learning Agreement with SDSU 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves and authorizes the Superintendent/President to enter into 
the Service Learning Agreement with SDSU for the purposes of internship as described in Exhibit C. 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 10 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
VI.3. Resolution No. 14681: Honorary Degrees 
 
WHEREAS,  when President Franklin Delano Roosevelt signed Executive Order 9066 in February 1943, 
over 120,000 Americans of Japanese ancestry were forcibly removed from their homes and 
communities,  sent to remote internment camps, and denied all constitutional rights.  Sixty-two percent 
of these men, women and children were American-born citizens who were Nisei (second generation 
Japanese Americans) or Sansei (third generation Japanese Americans), and; 
 
WHEREAS, in 1941, 2,567 Japanese American students were enrolled in California’s higher education 
institutions, both public and private, and; 
 
WHEREAS, records from the California Nisei College Diploma Project asserts that more than 1,200 
Nisei students attended 44 junior and community colleges during the academic term immediately prior to 
Executive Order 9066, and; 
 
WHEREAS, California Governor Schwarzenegger signed into law on October 2009, Assembly Bill 37 
authored by Assemblymember Warren T. Furutani , which provides for our institutions of higher 
education in California, including community colleges, to award honorary degrees to Japanese American 
college students who were forcibly evacuated from their homes in 1942, interned in government camps, 
and as a result, were unable to complete their education, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the California Community College Chancellor’s Office has identified four individuals who 
were enrolled in either Brawley Junior College or Central Junior College during 1941-42 or were 
planning to attend those institutions when Executive Order 9066 was signed by President Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board approves the recommendation of the 
Superintendent/President to confer an Honorary Associate Degree to the following individuals: 
 
Hiroshi Kaku (Posthumous) 
Emiko Kaku 
Sachiko Kaku 
Arthur Kato (Posthumous) 
Terry Koike 
 
 
VI.4. Resolution No. 14682: Agreement with the County of Imperial to render certain 


employment services for Machine and Electronic Repair Technician 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves and authorizes the Superintendent/President to enter into 
the Agreement with the County of Imperial to render certain employment services for Machine and 
Electronic Repair Technician as described in Exhibit D. 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 11 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
VI.5. Resolution No. 14683: 2009-2010 Candidates for Graduation 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board accepts the following candidates for graduation: 
 
Acevedo III David Gonzalez AA 


Acosta Dyane I. AA 


Aguilar Shawnda M. AS 


Aguinaga Maria De Jesus AS 


Ahumada Carlos Enrique AS 


Albanez Arath C. AS 


Aldape Luz Olivia AA 


Aldrete April Lee AA 


Algravez Kandy Teresa AS 


Ali Amal AA 


Ali Hashem Hasan AA 


Almanza Berenice AA 


Alvarado Alma E. AA 


Alvarado  Diana Nayelli AA 


Alvarado-Zavala Johana Gissel AA 


Alvarez Joanna AA 


Alvarez Julian Adalberto AA 


Alvarez Julian Adalberto AS 


Amaral Marisol AS 


Amarillas Carmen O. AS 


Amezcua Maria C. AA 


Amezcua Maria C. AS 


Anderson Wesley Edward AS 


Andrade Felipe AS 


Andrade Francisco Javier AS 


Andrade Maria M. AA 


Andrade Randy Russell AS 


Andreotti Joseph M. AS 


Anglin Erika AA 


Angulo German AA 


Angulo Ismael AS 


Arapiz Grecia AA 


Arballo Miguel A. AA 


Arballo Miguel A. AA 


Arguelles Maricela AA 


Arias Erika Lizzette AS 


Arvizu Brian Richard AA 


Arzela Torres Reyes A. AS 


Auyon Rodiles Stephany AS 


Auyon Rodiles Stephany AS 


Avila Ailsa G. AA 


Avila Tanya Iveth AA 


Avila Tanya Iveth AA 


Ayala David R. AA 


Barajas Jesus AA 


Barraza Sonia Michelle AA 


Barraza Sonia Michelle AS 


Bastidas Ana Karen AA 


Bedolla J Guadalupe AA 


Bell Barney Darrell AA 


Bell Laura AA 


Beltran Leslie Noelle AA 


Beltran Leslie Noelle AS 


Beltran Leslie Noelle AS 


Benson Cliff H. AA 


Betancourt Nicole Marie AA 


Blackerby Angie Lee AA 


Blackerby Angie Lee AA 


Boerner James AS 


Bond Heather Denise AS 


Bonilla Angel David AS 


Boutwell Stephen Eugene AS 


Bracamonte Toni Gabrielle AA 


Bracamonte Toni Gabrielle AA 


Bravo Jesus A. AS 


Brown Larry P. AS 


Bruce Caitlin M. AS 


Bustamante Fernando AA 


Bustamante Fernando AS 


Cadena Miriam Leticia AA 


Cadena Miriam Leticia AS 


Cady Brenda Christine AS 


Cajigas Jr.  Filomeno Albert AS 


Calderon Moreno Maribel AA 


Camacho Anthony E. AS 


Camacho Enrique L. AA 







Board Agenda       Page 12 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Camarena Julieta AA 


Camarena Luisan AS 


Camargo Hiram AA 


Camargo Hiram AA 


Campista Laura AA 


Campista Laura AA 


Campista Laura AA 


Campos Jacqueline AS 


Canez Ivan V. AA 


Canez Venessa Pamela AA 


Cano Maricela Marie AS 


Carlos Ricardo Z. AA 


Carpio Priscilla Jardon AS 


Carrillo Aracely AA 


Carrillo Francisco O. AS 


Carrillo Linda AS 


Carrillo Sarah N. AS 


Carrillo Alvarez Jazmin AS 


Carter Benny Curtis AA 


Castillo Cristina A. AA 


Castro Alfonso Roberto AS 


Castro Antonia J. AA 


Castro Ariana AS 


Castro Esmeralda AS 


Castro Samantha Alexis AS 


Cerda Annette AS 


Cervantes Samuel AA 


Chavez Adriana AA 


Chavez Adriana AA 


Chavez Veronica AA 


Chavez Veronica A. AA 


Childs Samantha Marie AS 


Churchwell Montana Jazmin AS 


Colby Jr. Shawn A. AS 


Conzatti Yesenia AA 


Cooke Sarah Anne AA 


Cooke Sarah Anne AA 


Cooke Sarah Anne AA 


Cooke Sarah Anne AA 


Cordero Yvonne Inez AA 


Coria Karla Melissa AA 


Corona Daniela AA 


Coronado Richard Edward AS 


Coronel Ines Vasthy AS 


Coronel Karina AA 


Coronel Herrera Elzy Anne AA 


Cortes Elizabeth AA 


Cortes Elizabeth AA 


Cortez Alma G. AA 


Cortez Alma G. AA 


Cortez Ana Karen AA 


Cortez Ana Karen AS 


Cortez Carlos Alonso AA 


Cortez Carlos Alonso AS 


Cortez Erick Sebastian AS 


Cortez Joanna AS 


Cortezramirez Nelly AS 


Cota Belkys Anel AS 


Cota Dianna AA 


Counce Rhonda D. AS 


Curry-Cardoza Anna R. AA 


Davila Gisela N. AA 


de Hernandez Martha AS 


De La Mora Edgar AS 


Dees Jr. Avery Dwain AA 


Dees Jr. Avery Dwain AA 


Del Valle Martha Janet AA 


Del Valle Martha Janet AA 


Del Valle Martha Janet AA 


Delgado Jessica AS 


Diaz Cynthia E. AS 


Dickinson Nandie Michelle AA 


Donaldson Cory Lynn AS 


Dorantes Susana Leticia AA 


Downs Jordan Presley AS 


Duarte Miguel Angel AS 


Duarte Nemesio AS 


Duenas Jaime AS 


Duran Aimee Renee AS 


Encinas Magaley L. AS 


Enriquez Crystelle Carmin AA 


Erickson Randy M. AS 







Board Agenda       Page 13 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Escutia Lizbeth AA 


Esparza III Joe AS 


Espinoza Andrea AA 


Espinoza Esther Teran AS 


Espinoza Jose Antonio AA 


Espinoza Jose Antonio AA 


Espinoza Murillo Maritza AA 


Esquivel Cord AS 


Estrada Alfredo P. AS 


Estrada Joana Michelle AA 


Estrada Joana Michelle AA 


Estrada Natalia Rocha AS 


Eyer III Robert Anthony AS 


Felix Evelyn Dyanna AS 


Felix Myriam A. AA 


Felix Stephanie AA 


Ferrari Ann Isabel AS 


Figueroa Francine Ruby AA 


Figueroa Gabriela Patricia AS 


Fischer Curtis Shawn AS 


Flores Consuelo AS 


Flores Diana L. AA 


Flores Miguel Angel AA 


Flores Perla AA 


Flores Ramsses Guzman AS 


Fonseca Carlos Alfredo AA 


Fonseca Carlos Alfredo AS 


Fuentes Vanessa J. AS 


Gabaray Martha P. AA 


Galaviz Tiffany N. AA 


Galindo Sandy AA 


Galvan C. Patricia AA 


Galvan Heriberto AA 


Garcia Abraham AS 


Garcia Carmen Jimenez AA 


Garcia Claudia Lizzet AS 


Garcia Cynthia Melissa AA 


Garcia Irma I. AA 


Garcia Joana Jacqueline AA 


Garcia Julia AA 


Garcia Maritza Joyvanna AA 


Garcia Perla AS 


Garcia Rosangel AS 


Garcia Stacy Denise AA 


Garcia Stacy Denise AA 


Garcia Susana Monique AS 


Garcia Vanessa Michell AA 
Gardenhire 
Macliz Kari AA 


Garza Enoe Anabel AA 


Garza Enoe Anabel AS 


Gastelum Leon Maria Isabel AS 


Gatlin Jr. Carlos M. AS 


Gerardo Rigoberto S. AA 


Gillespie Kristi Nicole AS 


Gipper Brianne Kayla AS 


Gipper Brianne Kayla AS 


Godoy Abigail AS 


Godoy Carolina AA 


Godoy Elizabeth AA 


Gomes Mandy C. AA 


Gomez Aracely AS 


Gomez Jones Rebecca AA 


Gomezllanos Navetze O. AA 


Gomezllanos Navetze O. AA 


Gonzales Desiree Nichole AA 


Gonzales Desiree Nichole AA 


Gonzales Desiree Nichole AA 


Gonzales Desiree Nichole AA 


Gonzales Desiree Nichole AS 


Gonzalez Barbara M. AA 


Gonzalez Bryant E. AS 


Gonzalez Carolina AA 


Gonzalez Natalli AA 


Gonzalez Priscilla AA 


Gonzalez Tanya Tayra AA 


Gonzalez Ulises AS 


Gradillas Martha AS 


Granados Daniel AS 


Green John David AS 


Green Tasha Ernest AA 


Grijalva Luisa Jeanne AS 


Guerrero John Francisco AS 







Board Agenda       Page 14 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Guerrero Mary Jane AA 


Guerrero Mary Jane AA 


Guevara-Cortez Alicia AS 


Guillen Sandra M. AA 


Gutierrez Elaina AA 


Gutierrez Jessica  AA 


Hendrix Ashley Elizabeth AS 


Hernandez Claudia AA 


Hernandez Genevieve Michelle AS 


Hernandez Jacqueline Alyssa AS 


Hernandez Jair D. AS 


Hernandez Jair D. AS 


Hernandez Jair D. AS 


Hernandez Jesus AS 


Hernandez Julio C. AA 


Hernandez Maribel AS 


Hernandez Melissa Melissa AA 


Hernandez Priscilla Elena AA 


Hernandez Priscilla Elena AA 


Hernandez Zicri AA 
Hernandez 
Montoya Maria AA 
Hernandez-
Escobell Dyane J. AA 
Hernandez-
Escobell Dyane J. AS 


Herold Cori Lynne AS 


Hewett Cassandra Rose AA 


Hewett Cassandra Rose AS 


Hewett Chilpa Cassandra Rose AS 


Hewett Chilpa Cassandra Rose AS 


Hewett Chilpa Cassandra Rose AS 


Hipp Courtney Ann AS 


Hirales 
Jonathan 
Christopher AS 


Hobbs Jason Allan AS 


Holenbeck Jonathan Hugo AS 


Holguin Jessica Marie AS 


Hotchkiss Michele Lynn AA 


Houchin Melissa Nichole AS 


Howington Bree M. AS 


Huang Hui Chen AS 


Ibarra Monica Yesenia AS 


Jacobo Jossay AS 


James Ebony B. AA 


James William K. AA 


Jaramillo Jr. Arturo AA 


Jaramillo Jr. Arturo AA 


Jaramillo Jr. Arturo AS 


Jepson India Christina AA 


Jimenez Antonia AA 


Jimenez Antonia AA 


Jimenez Antonia AA 


Jimenez Antonia AA 


Johnston Nichol M. AS 


Juarez Jessica AA 


La Crone Andre Joshua AA 


Lachaise Janette Barclay AS 


Lagarde Denise Marie Amaya AA 


Lainez Jaciel AA 


Lainez Jaciel AS 


Lara Mitzy AA 


Lara Zulema AA 


Lara Zulema AA 


Larios Sandra AA 


Leal Rudy Z. AS 


Leal Rudy Z. AS 


Leal Gonzalez Jesus AA 


Leal Gonzalez Jesus AA 


LeBaron Olivia M. AA 


Lee Yon J. AA 


Leimgruber Brittany L. AA 


Leon Eduardo AA 


Leonhardt John Ernest AA 


Leyvas Alice Espinoza AS 


Licon Ivanna AA 


Licon Ivanna AS 


Littrell Danielle Alexia AA 


Litz Daniel AS 


Lizaola Stephen AA 


Lluch Elianeth AS 


Lomeli Jonathan R. AA 


Lomeli Jonathan R. AA 


Lomeli Jonathan Rafael AS 


Lomeli Jonathan Rafael AS 







Board Agenda       Page 15 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Lomeli Jonathan Rafael AS 


Lopez Ana Laura AA 


Lopez Cristina J. AS 


Lopez Daniel AS 


Lopez Dulce Esmeralda AA 


Lopez Felipe AA 


Lopez Manuel AS 


Lopez Melissa AS 


Lopez Saul Andres AS 


Lopez Saul Andres AS 


Lopez Saul Andres AS 


Lopez Zaira R. AA 


Lopez Quinonez Cindy AS 


Loya Reyhmic Yesenia AA 


Loza Claudia Michelle AA 


Lucero Karime AS 


Luna Xochitl AS 


Madrid Gabriel D. AS 


Madrid Rosa M. AA 


Magallanes Mauricio AA 


Magallanes Mauricio AS 


Magana Yanet B. AA 


Mahler Jr.  Scott Allen AA 


Mahler Jr.  Scott Allen AS 


Mancha Raquel AA 


Mandujano Yadira AA 


Manriquez Edgar Jose AA 


Marcial Sarahi AS 


Marlow James Alan AS 


Marlow James Alan AS 


Marlow James Alan AS 


Marquez Ana Alejandra AA 


Martinez Alicia AA 


Martinez Claudia Magana AS 


Martinez Crystal G. AA 


Martinez Crystal G. AA 


Martinez Daniel AS 


Martinez Evelin M. AA 


Martinez Evelin M. AA 


Martinez Evelin M. AA 


Martinez Maribel AA 


Martinez Maribel AA 


Martinez Maribel AA 


Martinez Maribel AA 


Martinez Mayra AA 


Maxwell Maria Cathlene AA 


Mayne Michael Christopher AA 


Mayorga Lindsey AA 


Maytorena Sandra L. AA 


McLaughlin Andrea U. AA 


Medina Melissa L. AS 


Medina Stephanie Jayne AA 


Mencias Naiby J. AA 


Mendez Beatriz AA 


Mendez Beatriz AA 


Mendez Beatriz AA 


Mendez Marlid AA 


Mendez Melissa AA 


Mendoza Libertad Aranza AA 


Merino Sadie AA 


Meza Hector Jesus AA 


Meza Jonathan Andrew AS 


Miramontes Paula Lynn AA 


Miranda Mathew Llacar AS 


Mireles Natalia Fernanda AA 


Mitchell Alejandra AA 


Mojica Munoz Nayeli AS 


Molina Jr. Jose Luis AA 


Monroy  Natasha Anne AA 


Monroy  Natasha Anne AA 


Montano Roxana AA 


Montoya Sr. Gerardo A. AS 


Montoya Sr. Gerardo A. AS 


Morales Cesar AS 


Moran Fernanda AA 


Moreno Adan AA 


Moreno Arellano Paul  AA 


Munoz Mayana AA 


Munoz Mayana AA 


Nevarez Garcia Juan Carlos AA 


Novelo Gabriela P. AS 


Nunez Christina M. AA 







Board Agenda       Page 16 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Nunez Christina M. AA 


Ocegueda Luz AA 


Ochoa Minerva Zurisaday AA 


Ontiveros Nadia AA 


Oorts Melissa AS 


Ordonez-Tabarez Norma AS 


Orendain Ricardo I. AS 


Ornelas Leticia Isabel AS 


Ornelas Leticia Isabel AS 


Ortega Diane AA 


Ortega Diane AS 


Ortega Diane AS 


Ortega Liliana AA 


Ortega Rosalva AA 


Ortega Rosalva AA 


Ortiz Anthony AA 


Ortiz Brenda AS 


Ortiz Javier Romero AS 


Ortiz Lorena AA 


Ortiz Norma Inez AA 


Padilla Jairo AA 


Padilla Jessica N. AA 


Padilla Karina AA 


Padilla Krystle Jean AA 


Padilla Leticia Isabel AA 


Pantaleon Maria Luz AA 


Paredes Belen G. AA 


Parker Sadee R. AS 


Parra Bruce Alberto AA 


Patino Laura Margarita AS 


Patton Cody Marshall AS 


Paz Nery Jeovane AA 


Paz Nery Jeovane AA 


Perez Jessica K. AA 


Perez Liana Roseanne AS 


Perez Melissa AS 


Perry Navarre Jared AA 


Perry Navarre Jared AA 


Pieros Desiree M. AS 


Ponce David AS 


Quesada Evelyn Marie AA 


Quirarte Alicia AS 


Raceles Juliette AA 


Ramirez Adrian AS 


Ramirez Ana Fernanda AA 


Ramirez Brenda Veronica AS 


Ramirez Francisco Javier AA 


Ramirez Jazmin A. AA 


Ramirez Lizbeth AA 


Ramirez Lizbeth AA 


Ramirez Vianey AA 


Ramirez Jr. Ricardo AA 


Ramirez Jr. Ricardo AS 


Ramos Alejandrina AA 


Ramos Alejandrina AA 


Rangel Claudia AS 


Rangel Maria Micaela AS 


Razo Rafael AS 


Reyes Brisa Rebecca AS 


Reyes Valencia Maritza Arlyn AS 


Reynoso Maria Luisa AA 


Rice Lorenia J. AS 


Richey Ralph E. AA 


Richey Ralph E. AA 


Richey Ralph E. AA 


Richey Ralph E. AS 


Rioseco Lucrecia AS 


Ripley Marisela Juarez AS 


Rivas Abrilda Arlene AA 


Rivera Erika Daniela AA 


Rivera Ralph Alexander AA 


Robinson Alexis Yvonne AS 


Rodriguez Alicia I. AA 


Rodriguez Analilia AA 


Rodriguez Ivonne AS 


Rodriguez Jose V. AS 


Rodriguez Reyes Yesenia AA 


Rogers John Quinn AA 


Rogers John Quinn AA 


Rois  Jorge Armando AS 


Rojas Smirna B. AA 


Roman Esmeralda AA 







Board Agenda       Page 17 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Romero Alicia AA 


Romero Ivette B. AA 


Romo Claudia AS 


Romo Joel AS 


Romo Viviana AS 


Rosales Luis Alberto AS 


Rosales Luis Alberto AS 


Rosales Luis Alberto AS 


Rosales Luis Alberto AS 


Roxas Frederick Dumancas AS 


Rubio Eduardo V. AA 


Ruhr Rebel Lorraine AA 


Ruhr Rebel Lorraine AA 


Ruiz Alfonso A. AA 


Ruiz Alfonso A. AA 


Ruiz Angela AS 


Ruiz Claudia C. AS 


Ruiz Jessica C. AS 


Ruiz Mona Lisa AS 


Sagredo Luis Alberto AS 


Saine Anthony L. AA 


Salas Tony Rodriguez AS 


Salcedo Efrain Antonio AS 


Saldana Elizabeth AA 


Sallaberry Guadalupe AA 


Samaniego Israel Olmos AS 


Sanabria Sally Ann AA 


Sanchez Gloria AS 


Sanchez Jeanette Navarro AA 


Sanchez Shannon Season AS 


Sanchez  Jose Carlos AS 


Sanchez   Cynthia L. AA 


Sanchez Jr. Joseph Marcos AS 


Sanchez Jr. Roberto Reyna AS 


Sanchez Munoz Isabella AA 


Sanchez-Banda Esther A. AA 


Sandoval Leslie AA 


Sandoval Martha A. AS 
Sandoval 
Arevalos Karla AA 


Sciaky Eric Daniel AS 


Servin Christine Santana AS 


Servin Christine Santana AS 


Sesma Jennifer AA 


Sheppard Jerome Levi AA 


Silva Jessica Nohemi AA 


Silva Noreyda AS 


Silva Noreyda AS 


Simmons Maria Lorena AS 


Simon Daniel G. AA 


Simon Daniel G. AA 


Singh Stephen Andrew AS 


Smith Exning AA 


Smith Jeanine E. AA 


Solana Karla D. AS 


Sosa Abraham Eber AA 


Sosa Abraham Eber AS 


Sosa Abraham Eber AS 


Soto Jose Antonio AS 


Stewart Ryan Zachary AA 


Stoddard Angela AS 


Suarez Lorenzo S. AS 


Suboh Abeir Abdel AA 


Suboh Suboh Abdel AA 


Surbida Violet Lorraine AS 


Tabarez Arlene Vitulia AA 


Tagliapietra  Karla Vanessa AS 


Taitano Dante Taimanglo AA 


Tamayo Mary AA 


Thetford Suzanne AS 


Thomas Jasmine Brittany AS 


Thomas Jasmine Brittany AS 


Thomas Jasmine Brittany AS 


Thomas Vanessa Elizabeth AA 


Thomas William Frank AA 


Tirado Mayra A. AS 


Tirado Ruben Alonso AS 


Topete Luis E. AA 


Torres Maria Teresa AA 


Torres Melissa L. AA 


Torres Melissa L. AA 


Tostado Alicia AA 


Tucker Brian O. AS 







Board Agenda       Page 18 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Tukes Tiffany Leticia AA 


Urbina Jr. Martin AS 


Uribe Jr. Marco A. AA 


Uribe Jr. Marco A. AA 


Urquides Tiffany Ann AA 


Vaca Rogelio AA 


Valadez Kristofer Anthony AA 


Valdez 
Vincente Lorenzo -
Eloy AA 


Valenzuela Agueda AA 


Valenzuela Christina AS 


Valenzuela Diego AS 


Valenzuela Karlafernanda Simo AA 


Valenzuela Vidaur Benito AS 


Valenzuela Yosei AA 


Valladares Angelina S. AA 


Vargas Hazel Cassette AA 


Vasquez Erica Cantu AA 


Vazquez Alexis Adriana AA 


Vega Ana Romo AS 


Vega Argelia Aurora AA 


Vega Enrique AA 


Velarde Tabita AA 


Velasco Celaya Paola Elena AS 


Veliz Analisa AA 


Vernon Mitchell D. AS 


Villa Angelica Maria AA 


Villa Dannya AA 


Villaescusa Paola Ann AS 


Villalobos Roberta E. AA 


Villanueva Jacqueline AS 


Villarreal Iran A. AS 


Villarreal Jr. Joe AS 


Villasenor Raul AA 


Villegas Mariana I. AA 


Villegas Mayra Elizabeth AA 


Walker Bethaney Hope AS 


Wallace Jennifer Gabrielle AA 


Wallace Jennifer Gabrielle AA 


Wallace Jennifer Gabrielle AA 


White Jasmine AA 


Williams Deanna Florence AS 


Wilson Bryan Allen AA 


Wong Brittany Ann AS 


Woo Laura Estela AS 


Yee Laura AA 
Yepez Aguirre y 
Fierro Cinndy AA 


Young Jessica Janell AS 


Zamora Roxanne AS 


Zapata Daniel AA 


Zapata Daniel AS 


Zavala David Abraham AS 


Zavala Luz A. AS 


Zavalza Alan F. AS 


Zinn Patricia Diane AS 
 
 
VII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. NEGOTIATIONS UNDER THE EDUCATIONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS ACT 
 Conference with District Negotiators:  John Lau and Travis Gregory 
 Employee Organization:  CSEA Chapter 472 
 RE: Negotiations  
 
2. NEGOTIATIONS UNDER THE EDUCATIONAL EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS ACT 
 Conference with District Negotiators:  John Lau and Travis Gregory 
 Employee Organization: IVC Chapter of CCA/CTA/NEA 
 RE: Negotiations  
 
3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 19 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  
 Title: Superintendent/President  
 
 
VIII. OPEN SESSION 
 
1. Announcement of final action taken 
 
 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
IX.1. Resolution No. 14684: Administrative Salary Schedule 
 
WHEREAS, recently approved administrative reorganization will lead to title and column changes per 
Board Resolutions 14634, 14636 and 14638 and; 
 
WHEREAS, the current administrative salary schedule needs to be modified to reflect those changes 
and only consist of two columns instead of three; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the 
Superintendent/President to use the following Administrative Salary Schedule effective July 1, 2010. 
 
Current           Proposed 
 
Step  Vice 


President  
Dean  Associate 


Dean 
1  125,328  115,390  105,452 
2  129,088  118,852  108,616 
3  132,961  122,418  111,874 
4  136,950  126,091  115,230 
5  141,059  129,874  118,687 
6  145,291  133,770  122,248 
7  149,650  137,783  125,915 
8  154,140  141,916  129,692 
9  158,764  146,173  133,583 
10  163,527  150,558 137,590 


 
 


Step Vice 
President 


Dean/Associate Vice 
President 


1 125,328 115,390 
2 129,088 118,852 
3 132,961 122,418 
4 136,950 126,091 
5 141,059 129,874 
6 145,291 133,770 
7 149,650 137,783 
8 154,140 141,916 
9 158,764 146,173 
10 163,527 150,558 







Board Agenda       Page 20 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.2. Resolution No. 14685: Administrative Vacancy 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the Superintendent/President’s request to replace the 
forthcoming administrative vacancy of the Associate Vice President for Information Technology and;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board, with the recommendation of the Superintendent/President approves 
changing the title of Associate Vice President for Information Technology to Vice President for 
Information Technology in order to recruit the widest continuum of candidates. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT:  The fiscal impact to the District is $9,938.00 (difference between 
Dean/Associate Vice President, Step 1 and Vice President, Step 1). 
 
 
IX.3. Resolution No. 14686: Faculty Retirement 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board accepts, with sincere regret, the retirement of Dr. Ronald Gage-
Mosher, Psychology Associate Professor, effective June 13, 2010. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that sincere appreciation be expressed for his 10 ½ years of devoted service to 
Imperial Valley College. 
 
IX.4. Resolution No. 14687: Full-time, temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President to 
employ the following full-time, temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel for the Fall 2010 
Semester: 
 
Name      Assignment 
Mendoza, Liisa    American Sign Language Instructor  
      (Replacement for Charles Mason) 
 
 
IX.5. Resolution No. 14688: Full-time, temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President to 
employ the following full-time, temporary, non tenure track, academic personnel for academic year 
2010-2011: 
 
Name      Assignment 
Semmes, Laura    Sociology Instructor  
      (Replacement for John Agee) 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 21 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.6. Resolution No. 14689: Full-Time Faculty Summer Employment 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the following full time, academic personnel, be employed for the Summer 2010 
Session.  Employment is contingent upon sufficient enrollment. 
 
Name       Assignment 
Aye, Tyson      Health Education/Physical Education 
Baukholt, Robert     English 
Bemis, Roberta     English 
Biley, Patti      English 
Byrd, Krista      Psychology/Sociology 
Castrapel, Rick     Mathematics 
Cozzani, Alejandro    Mathematics/Physics 
Craven, Julie      English as a Second Language 
David, Samuel     Biology 
Davis, Hope      Music 
Davis, Lincoln      English 
Deyo, Jeffrey      Health Education/Physical Education 
Dorantes, Kathleen     English 
Drury, David      Health Education/Physical Education 
Edwards, Aaron     Philosophy 
Finnell, Gaylla     Political Science 
Fisher, James     Chemistry 
Garza, Alejandro     English as a Second Language 
Gilbertson, Thomas     Art 
Goldsberry, Rick    Emergency Medical Technician-Paramedic 
Gretz, Suzanne     History 
Hansink, Todd     Business/Economics 
Harris, Diane      English 
Hegarty, Carol     Art 
Hernandez, Oscar     Mathematics 
Heumann, Michael     English 
Horton, Sidne      Physical Education 
Kelly, Nannette    Art 
Lehtonen, Eric     Mathematics 
Leon, Allyn      Mathematics 
Lofgren, Mary      Psychology 
Lopez, Jose      Automotive Technology 
Marcuson, Bruce     Administration of Justice 
Martinez, Andres     Computer Information Systems 
Marty, Kevin      Geology 
McNeece, P. Brian     English 
Mecate, James     Health Education/Physical Education 
Mosier, Laura      Speech 
Moss, Susan      Biology 
Page, Bruce      Speech 
Pastrana, Leticia     English as a Second Language 
Patterson, James     English 
Pfister, Toni      Health Education 







Board Agenda       Page 22 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
Ponce, Josefina     English as a Second Language 
Rangel, Javier     Spanish 
Rapp, Frank     English 
Rice, Sydney      English as a Second Language 
Ruiz, Angelica     Business 
Ruiz, Jose      Spanish 
Sanchez-Dominguez, Romano   Spanish 
Scheuerell, Edward     English as a Second Language 
Seivertson, Bruce    Geography 
Shaner, Christina     English 
Shokoufi, Mardjan     Mathematics 
Simpson, Scott    English as a Second Language 
Solomon, Lisa     History 
Staton, Mary      Psychology 
Tucker, Jill      Physical Education 
Wainwright, Mary Jo     History 
Wells, Edward     Administration of Justice 
White, Kevin      Political Science 
Zhao, Lianna      Biology 
Zielinski, David     English 
 
 
IX.7. Resolution No. 14690: Outreach Counseling Specialist Employment 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President for the 
following Adjunct to be employed during the summer 2010 session, at the hourly rate provided for in 
Resolution No. 13819.  Employment is contingent upon continued funding of the grant indicated, and 
approval of the program officer:  
 
Name   Position  Funding  Range 
Amesquita, Julie Counselor  Federal  $21.00 
Armenta, Jeanette Counselor  Federal  $20.00 
Avelar, Irma  Counselor  Federal  $20.00 
Cabrera, Hector Counselor  Federal  $23.00 
Felix, Roxanne Counselor  Federal  $23.00 
Martin, Albert  Counselor  Federal  $21.00 
Vasquez, Lorena Counselor  Federal  $20.00 
Vizcarra, Margarita Counselor  Federal  $23.00 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 23 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.8. Resolution No. 14691: Adjunct Instructor Summer Employment 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President to 
employ the following personnel during the summer 2010 session, at the hourly rate provided for in 
Resolution No. 14438. Employment is contingent upon verification of records, credentials, finger printing 
clearance and sufficient enrollment, or whether the class is essential to a full-time instructor’s load: 
 
Name      Possible Assignment 
Benton, Michael    Physical Education 
Berker, Enola     Allied Health Profession 
Carr, Michael     Computer Information Systems 
Deol, Karin     English 
Duarte, Carlos     Math 
Fisher, Raenelle    History 
Garay, Jeronimo    Math 
Garcia, Federico    Professional Development 
Green, Rebecca    Child Family & Consumer Science 
Grivanos, Maria    Spanish 
Hansink, Pamela    Nursing 
Jacobson, Susan    Religious Studies 
Knapp, Leslie     Admin of Justice 
Lerno, Jill     Physical Education 
Lewenstein, Jay    English 
Lopez, Jacqueline    History 
Montenegro, Jean    English 
Moran, Santos     Math 
Niebla, Eduardo    Chemistry 
Palacio, John     Physical Education 
Richwine, Harold    Physical Education 
Robinson, Andrew    Physical Education 
Rosas, David     Math 
Samaniego, Olivia    English 
Simon, Darren     English 
Sullivan, Terrie    Allied Health Profession 
Tirado, Xochitl     English/Reading 
Varela, Ruben     Math 
Walther, Kimberle    Math 
 
 
IX.9. Resolution No. 14692: Sabbatical Leave 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the  
Superintendent/President (April 23, 2010) to award Brian McNeece, English Professor, a sabbatical 
leave, Fall 2010 Semester.   
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 24 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.10. Resolution No. 14693: Reduction of Classified Service 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of expiration categorically funded program, a categorical classified position must 
be eliminated due to a lack of funds or lack of work;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Imperial Community College District finds it necessary and in 
the best interest of the District to eliminate and reduce the classified service as specified below: 
 


Secretary III, Part-time (Vacant position) – ACCESO 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this clerical classified position of the District shall be 
discontinued and reduced. 
 
 
IX.11. Resolution No. 14694: Reduction of Classified Service 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of expiration bond allocation funds, a classified position must be eliminated due 
to a lack of funds or lack of work, effective July 30, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Imperial Community College District finds it necessary and in 
the best interest of the District to eliminate and reduce the classified services as specified below: 
 


Maintenance Worker II, Full-time – Maintenance 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this classified position of the District shall be discontinued 
and reduced; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent/President or his designee is authorized and 
directed to give notice of layoff to the affected employee and to the appropriate exclusive bargaining 
representative not later than 45 days prior to the effective date of layoff. 
 
 
IX.12. Resolution No. 14695: Reduction of Classified Service 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of expiration bond allocation funds, a classified position must be eliminated due 
to a lack of funds or lack of work; 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Imperial Community College District finds it necessary and in 
the best interest of the District to eliminate and reduce the classified services as specified below: 
 


Maintenance Worker II (Vacant position), Full-time – Maintenance 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this classified position of the District shall be discontinued 
and reduced. 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 25 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.13. Resolution No. 14696: Ratification of ICSVEBA participation  
 
WHEREAS, after meetings, discussions, presentations, and feedback opportunities, it is the 
recommendation of the Insurance advisory committee to become participants in the Imperial County 
Schools Voluntary Employee Benefits Association (ICSVEBA) insurance and Hartford supplemental 
retirement plans; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ICSVEBA board, consisting of equal representation from labor and management, met 
with District representatives and subsequently agreed to allow Imperial Community College District in to 
their association with certain conditions; and  
  
WHEREAS, the IVC CCA/CTA/NEA and the CSEA collective bargaining units have signed participation 
agreements along with non-collective bargaining units; and 
 
WHEREAS, participation in the ICSVEBA appears to be beneficial to the District and other Imperial 
community school districts in achieving costs stability and a more unified voice; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the 
Superintendent/President to enter into an agreement with the Imperial County Schools Voluntary 
Benefits Association (ICSVEBA) as detailed in Exhibit E (Participation invitation letter and conditions 
from ICSVEBA and Amended Plan Agreement);  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Governing Board of Imperial Community College District 
authorizes entering into an initial three year agreement with the ICSVEBA effective July 1, 2010.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT: Preliminary plan renewal amounts from the current broker ranged 
in increases from: option 1 - $1,307,312.; option 2 - $463,730; and option 3 - $814,316. The 
ICSVEBA comparable plan will be an estimated increase of $189, 526. The ICSVEBA has had no 
rate increases in 5 of the last 6 years and forecasts no increase this year. The required 5% 
surcharge for the first plan year will be taken from reserves.     
 
 
IX.14.  Resolution No. 14697: New Full time temporary, non tenure track, categorically funded 


position - Special Projects Coordinator 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President for the 
Special Project Coordinator job description as follows: 
 


SPECIAL PROJECTS COORDINATOR 
(Contingent Upon Funding) 


 
POSITION AVAILABLE:  Full-time, temporary, non tenure track, categorically funded, Special Projects 
Coordinator Position for a growing community college located in Imperial County, California, an 
agricultural area in the southern California desert.  This position reports to the Vice President for 
Academic Services or designee.  The Special Projects Coordinator will assist in planning, organizing, 
directing and evaluating of  assigned grant funded programs.  This is an eleven-month contract position 
of 199 annual service days, 35 hours weekly, which may include some evening and weekends on an as 
needed basis.   







Board Agenda       Page 26 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
STARTING DATE:   As soon as possible  
 


MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
1.         Must meet one of the following qualifications under (a) through (f): 
  


(a) Possess a valid Lifetime California Community College Credential that permits                            
 full-time service as a Coordinator; 
     -OR- 
(b) Possess a Master’s degree, from an accredited institution, in business, business 


management, business administration, accountancy, finance, marketing, or business 
education OR Bachelor’s degree in any of the above; 


     -AND-                                       
(c) Possess a Master’s degree, from an accredited institution, in economics, personnel 


management, public administration, or JD or LL.B degree; 
 
(d) Possess a Bachelor’s degree, from an accredited institution, in economics with a 


business emphasis; 
     -AND- 
(e) Possess a Bachelor’s degree, from an accredited institution, in personnel management, 


public administration, or JD or LL.B. degree  
     -OR- 
(f) Possess a combination of education and experience that is at least equivalent to the 


above.  (Applicants requesting equivalency must complete form provided in this 
application packet and provide supporting documentation). 


    
     -AND- 


2. Demonstrate sensitivity to and ability to work with diverse academic, socio-economic, cultural, 
and ethnic backgrounds of community college students, including those with disabilities. (AB 
1725, 87360a). 


 
 
DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS 
 


1. Effective oral and written communication skills, ability to write reports and to use a computer to 
access information, input student data and generate reports. 


 
REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES: 
 


1. Develop and maintain ongoing working relations and partnerships with community organizations, 
participating schools, government agencies, businesses and educational organizations. 


  
2. Assist in planning, organizing and evaluating the project.  


 
3. Oversee the daily operation of the program including monitoring operations, performance 


objectives and general compliance. 
 


4. Participate in the development and dissemination of educational and career information, as well 







Board Agenda       Page 27 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 


as developing a professional relationship with Imperial Valley College instructional staff, high 
school guidance personnel, community agencies/organizations and institutions of higher 
learning.   


 
5. Verify that staff is tracking participant progress (i.e., ensuring participants are regularly attending 


classes, work sites and other activities, etc) as outlined on their individual plan.  
 


6. Oversee curriculum development for related projects. 
 


7. Serve as a liaison to the various departments and/or divisions on campus as assigned.   
 


8. Coordinate faculty and classified staff schedules.  
 


9. Participate in faculty and staff evaluations. 
 


10. Ensure that staff are providing participants with problem solving skills to overcome obstacles or 
barriers (i.e., child care, transportation, etc.) which may interfere with their making progress on 
their individual plan.  
 


11. Establish and work with the State and County on planning and policy issues related to project 
activities.   


 
12. Connect with One-Stop Centers to provide services to participants.   


 
13. Monitor the implementation and progress of the project including the collection of project data, 


documentation of data and program objectives and goals.  
 


14. Create links and maintain communication between business and participants to ensure that 
training appropriately match participant needs. 
 


15. Perform related duties as required; 
 


16. Demonstrate sensitivity to and understanding of diverse academic, socioeconomic, cultural, 
disability and ethnic backgrounds of community college students (AB 1725, 87360a). 


 
 
IX.15. Resolution No. 14698: Volunteer Service Agreement 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board approves the recommendation of the Superintendent/President to 
employ Yadira Ramirez as a volunteer office assistant who shall be covered by Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance effective April 27, 2010 through June 11, 2010. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that thanks be hereby extended to Yadira Ramirez for volunteering in the 
Science, Math, & Engineering Division and for her contribution to Imperial Valley College. 
 
 
 
 







Board Agenda       Page 28 of 28 Imperial Community College District 
May 19, 2010  Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
 
 
IX.16. Resolution No. 14699: Reemployment of Jose Velasquez 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees approved on March 8, 2010, to discontinue the services for  Building 
Construction Technologies Program. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Chancellor’s Office recently communicated to the instruction office an 
approval of curriculum related to  the Building Construction Technologies Program, that Imperial 
Community College District, for the 2010-2011 academic year, continue the particular kinds of services 
provided by said District.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent is directed to reemploy Jose Velasquez for 
academic year 2010-2011 in accordance with provisions of Section 87740 and 87743.   
 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regular meeting of the Imperial Community College District Board of Trustees is scheduled for 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 16, 2010, AT 6:00 P.M. in the Administration Board Room located in Building 10. 








 1


LEASE AGREEMENT 
 


THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made this first day of July, 2010, by and between 


CALEXICO HACIENDA PLAZA, INC., a California Corporation, whose principal place of 


business is 101 West Hacienda Drive, Suite 11, Calexico, CA 92231, hereinafter referred to as 


“LANDLORD”, and IMPERIAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT of 380 E. Aten Rd., 


Imperial, California 92251, hereinafter referred to as “TENANT”. 


W I T N E S S E T H 


WHERAS, LANDLORD is the owner of certain business premises described as 1501 Imperial 


Avenue, Calexico, California 92231; and more particularly described as: 


Parcel 1 & a portion of Parcel 2, Parcel Map 6-49 recorded in the offices of the 
County Recorder of Imperial County located at Section 11, Township 17, Range 
14 South, containing 1.70 acres more or less. 


 
WHEREAS, LANDLORD desires to lease the premises to TENANT; and 


WHEREAS, TENANT desires to lease the premises from LANDLORD under the terms and 


conditions contained in this lease; 


 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions 


herein contained, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 


1. USE OF PREMISES: 


 LANDLORD hereby leases to TENANT and TENANT hereby Leases from 


LANDLORD, the hereinafter described premises for the purpose of conducting thereon a college 


level classroom instruction and related activities. 


2. TERM AND EXTENSIONS: 


  A. The term of this lease shall commence on July 1, 2010, and terminate on 


June 30, 2011.   


3. RENTAL: 


 The parties agree that the premises contain a total of total of 16,660 square feet of 


improved rental space including the freestanding building at 1501 N. Imperial Avenue with 


EXHIBIT B 







 2


about 7,700 square feet and units 1, 2, 3, 6, 12, and 13 of 101 W. Hacienda Drive with a 


combined square footage of about 8,960 square feet.  A monthly rent of $14,811 will be payable 


in monthly installments in advance on the first day of each calendar month during the term of 


this lease. 


4. REAL PROPERTY TAXES: 


  LANDLORD and TENANT agree that the leased premises shall be used solely 


for community college educational purposes during the term of this lease or during any 


extensions; and that during the negotiations of this lease a material consideration in setting the 


rental was the fact that the parties hereto understood the leased property was exempt from real 


property taxation.  Therefore, the parties took into account the property tax exemption available 


pursuant to California Constitution, Subdivision (d), Section 3, Article XIII in fixing the terms of 


this agreement.  The parties also agree that the LANDLORD shall claim and continue to claim 


the property tax exemption available pursuant to the California Constitution and Revenue and 


Taxation Code, Section 202.2.  In the event LANDLORD is unable to obtain the property tax 


exemption contemplated by the aforementioned provisions, there shall be no adjustment of the 


basic rental charge, or increase or surcharge due or owing the LANDLORD on account of the 


failure to obtain the exemption. 


5. WASTE AND NUISANCE: 


 TENANT will not commit, or suffer to be committed, any waste upon said premises, or 


any public or private nuisance or other act or thing which may disturb the quiet enjoyment of any 


other adjoining landowners.  TENANT shall not, without first obtaining the written consent of 


LANDLORD, abandon the premises or allow the premises to become vacant or deserted. 


6. ALTERATIONS: 


 TENANT may make substantial alterations on said premises to enable its use for 


educational purposes.  TENANT contemplates, but is not limited to, modifications which would 


permit classroom instruction, computer laboratory instruction, administrative functions and other 







 3


related activities.  TENANT shall submit all plans for proposed modifications to LANDLORD 


for review and approval.  LANDLORD’S consent to the modifications shall not be unreasonably 


withheld.  All improvements and modifications made by TENANT may, at TENANT’S option, 


be removed at the end of this lease or extensions.  If TENANT chooses not to remove said 


improvements or modifications, they shall become the property of LANDLORD upon 


termination of the lease.  Not later than the last day of the term, TENANT shall, at TENANT’S 


expense, remove all of TENANT’S personal property and those improvements made by 


TENANT which TENANT desire to retain.  If TENANT does remove such improvements, 


modifications or personal property, TENANT shall repair all injury done in connection with the 


installation or removal; and surrender the premises in as good order as they were in at the 


beginning of the term, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 


7. PARKING: 


TENANT shall have use of the parking areas located within the premises and may designate a 


sufficient number, but no more than 52 parking spaces as reserved.  Should Tenant elect to 


designate reserved parking spaces, the designated parking spaces must receive Landlord’s 


consent. 


8. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES AND REGULATION: 


 TENANT shall observe and comply with the reasonable rules and regulations as 


LANDLORD may prescribe on written notice to TENANT, for the care, safety, and cleanliness 


of the lease premises, and the comfort, quiet and convenience of adjoining tenants and/or 


landowners. 


9. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: 


TENANT shall, except as otherwise provided herein, at its sole cost and expense, keep 


and maintain the following portions of the premises in good and sanitary order, 


condition and repair, including without limitation, the maintenance and repair of the 


exterior signs, interior doors, glazing, heating and air-conditioning systems, plumbing, 







 4


pipes and electric wiring and conduits and interior light fixtures which serve the leased 


premises.  Without relieving Lessee of liability resulting from Lessee’s failure to 


exercise and perform good maintenance practices, if an HVAC unit cannot be repaired 


other than the cost which is in excess of 50% of the cost of replacing new, then the 


HVAC unit shall be replaced by the Lessor.  TENANT hereby accepts the leased 


premises in their present condition as acceptable and satisfactory to their use and 


purposes hereunder.  LANDLORD shall keep and maintain the landscaping, sidewalk, 


parking area, and alleyways servicing the building or located on the premises in good 


and sanitary order, condition and repair.  LANDLORD shall also be responsible for the 


maintenance and repair of the exterior walls, roof, building front, and exterior doors. 


10. GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS: 


 TENANT will, at its sole cost and expense, comply with the requirements of all 


municipal, state and federal authorities now in force, or which may hereafter be in force 


pertaining to said premises, occasioned by or affecting the use to which said premises are to be 


put by TENANT.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, TENANT shall have the right to terminate this 


lease should problems with asbestos contamination arise which would cause TENANT to expend 


funds to eliminate said asbestos-related problems in order to continue its tenancy.  LANDLORD 


shall have no liability for any repairs occasioned by asbestos problems, and has the option to 


terminate this lease upon notice that any such problem exists. 


11. NON-RENEWAL: 


 LANDLORD understands that certain constitutional limitations exist on TENANT’S 


ability to encumber funds beyond the current fiscal year.  However, TENANT agrees to do all 


things lawfully within its powers to obtain authorization and appropriation of funds necessary for 


the rental payments hereunder.  TENANT further represents that its obligation to pay rent 


hereunder will not violate any limitation on its creation of indebtedness.  If sufficient funds are 


not appropriated for rent due during the current fiscal year, and if TENANT has no funds legally 







 5


available to pay rent from other sources, the TENANT may terminate this agreement at the end 


of the then current lease term by giving at least ninety (90) days’ written notice to LANDLORD 


before that term expires.  In the event that the lease is terminated pursuant to this provision, 


TENANT agrees that it will not lease any other premises in Calexico, California, for external 


college classroom or administrative activity for a period equal to what would have been 


remaining on the term of this lease. 


12. UTILITIES: 


 TENANT shall pay before delinquency, all charges for water, gas, heat, electricity, 


power, telephone service and all other services or utilities used I, upon, or about the leased 


premises by TENANT or any of its licensees during the term of this lease.  If any utility is not 


separately metered to the premises, TENANT agrees to reimburse LANDLORD for the cost of 


said service. 


13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: 


 TENANT will not assign this lease, or any interest therein, and will not lease or sublet 


said premises, or any part thereof, or any right or privilege appurtenant thereto, without the 


written consent of LANDLORD, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  A consent 


to one assignment or subletting shall not be construed as a consent to any subsequent assignment 


or subletting.  Unless such consent has been so had and obtained, any assignment or transfer, or 


attempted assignment or transfer of this lease, or of any interest therein, or subletting, either by 


voluntary or involuntary act of TENANT, or by operation of law or otherwise, shall, at the 


option of LANDLORD, terminate this lease, and any such purported assignment, transfer or 


subletting without such consent shall be null and void. 


14. INSURANCE: 


  A. TENANT agrees that TENANT shall, at its own expense, at all times 


during the term of this lease, or any extension or renewal thereof, maintain in full force and 


effect with a reputable insurance company, an insurance policy which shall insure and indemnify 







 6


LANDLORD against liability or financial loss resulting from injuries occurring to persons or 


property in or about the leased premises in amounts no less than $1,000,000.00 for injury to or 


death of any individual, $2,000,000.00 for injury to or death of two or more persons, and 


$50,000.00 for damage to or destruction of property.  TENANT shall provide LANDLORD with 


certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with the foregoing and naming LANDLORD as 


an additional insured.  Such certificates shall provide written obligation on the part of 


TENANT’S insurance carrier to notify LANDLORD in writing prior to any cancellation of said 


policy. 


  B. TENANT agrees to maintain and keep in force all workmen’s 


compensation insurance required under the laws of the State of California. 


  C. TENANT shall purchase and maintain in effect during the term of this 


lease, and any extension or renewal thereof, a policy or policies of fire and other casualty 


insurance written by a company or companies qualified to write insurance in the State of 


California, providing insurance coverage against damage to the leased premises, including the 


building and all improvements, alterations, and additions thereof.  Such policy or policies shall 


be in an amount sufficient, subject to approval by LANDLORD, to cover the value of such 


property.  The cost of premiums shall be paid by TENANT, and all of such policies of insurance 


shall name LANDLORD as beneficiary thereunder.  In addition, it shall be up to TENANT to 


maintain fire, casualty and theft insurance on its good, wares, merchandise, other personal 


property, and all such property lease by TENANT. 


  D. Should TENANT fail to keep in effect and pay for any insurance as in this 


section is required to be maintained, LANDLORD may do so, in which event the insurance 


premiums paid by LANDLORD shall become due and payable forthwith.  Failure of TENANT 


to pay the same on demand shall constitute a breach of this lease. 


15. EXONERATION OF LANDLORD: 







 7


 TENANT will hold LANDLORD exempt and harmless for and on account of any 


damage or injury to any person, or to the goods, wares and merchandise of any person, arising 


from the use of the premises by TENANT, or arising from the failure of TENANT to keep the 


premises in good condition and repair as herein provided.  TENANT hereby expressly waives all 


claims for damages that it may have against LANDLORD, either now or in the future, and agrees 


that LANDLORD shall not be liable for any damages or injuries to TENANT’S business, for nay 


loss of income to TENANT’S business, for any damage or destruction of any property belonging 


to TENANT or on said premises with the consent of TENANT, or from any injuries to TENANT 


or any person on said premises with the consent of TENANT. 


 16. INSPECTIONS: 


 TENANT will permit LANDLORD and its agents to enter into and upon said premises at 


all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the building, and will permit LANDLORD at 


any time prior to the expiration of this lease to place upon said premises any usual or ordinary 


“To Let” or “To Lease” signs. 


 17. CONDITION OF PREMISES: 


 By entry hereunder, TENANT acknowledges that said premises, and every part thereof, 


are at the date of such entry complete and in good order, condition and repair, and that on the last 


day of said term or other sooner termination of this lease, TENANT will peaceably and quietly 


leave, surrender and yield up to LANDLORD said premises in good order, condition and repair, 


reasonable use and wear thereof, and damage by act of God or by the elements, excepted. 


18. DEFAULT: 


 The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a material default and breach of 


this lease by TENANT: 


  A. Any failure by TENANT to pay the basic rental or to make any other 


payments required to be made by TENANT hereunder. 







 8


  B. Failure by TENANT to observe and perform any other provisions of this 


lease to be observed or performed by TENANT. 


 19. LANDLORD’S REMEDIES ON DEFAULT: 


 If TENANT defaults in the payment of rent or defaults in the performance of any of the 


provision, covenants or conditions hereof, then LANDLORD shall give TENANT written notice 


of such default and of LANDLORD’S election to terminate this lease upon TENANT’S failure 


to cure said default within ten (10) days.  In the event that said default is not cured by TENANT 


within ten (10) days after the giving of said notice by LANDLORD, then LANDLORD’S 


election to terminate this lease shall be effective without further notice; provided, however, that 


if the nature of such default is such that the same cannot be reasonably cured within such ten (10) 


day period, then TENANT shall not be deemed to be in default in TENANT shall, during such 


ten (10) day period, commence such cure and thereafter diligently prosecute same to completion. 


 LANDLORD and TENANT hereby expressly agree that any additional notices to 


TENANT (whether concerning default, opportunity to cure, LANDLORD’S election to 


terminate, or otherwise) which may be required by statute or law, now or hereafter in force, are 


hereby waived. 


 Upon the termination of the lease as provided above, LANDLORD may re-enter said 


premises and remove all persons and property therefrom.  Any such property may be removed 


and stored in any public warehouse, or elsewhere, at the cost of and for the account of TENANT. 


 In addition to any other remedy available to LANDLORD upon default by TENANT, or 


upon TENANT’S abandonment of the premises, it shall be optional with LANDLORD to re-let 


or re-lease said leased premises (with or without terminating this lease and/or taking possession 


of the leased premises by court action or otherwise) for such rent, for such time, and upon such 


terms as LANDLORD may see fit, and if a sufficient sum shall not be thus realized during the 


term provided for by this lease after paying the expenses of such re-letting or re-leasing, or if 







 9


LANDLORD is unable to re-let or re-lease the premises, then TENANT agrees to satisfy and pay 


any such deficiency monthly as such liability accrues. 


 Should TENANT’S right to possession at any time terminate for any breach or default by 


TENANT, then in addition to any other remedy it may have, LANDLORD may recover from 


TENANT all damages incurred by reason of such breach or default, including the cost of 


recovering the premises and including the worth at the time of such termination or award of the 


excess, if any, of the amount of rent and charges equivalent to rent reserved in this lease for the 


remainder of the stated term over the then reasonable rental value of the premises for the 


remainder of the stated term, all of which amounts shall be immediately due and payable from 


TENANT to LANDLORD. 


 20. ATTORNEYS’ FEES: 


 In the event that LANDLORD institutes any legal action or proceeding to compel the 


payment of any sum or sums due and payable from TENANT to LANDLORD hereunder or to 


quiet title to recover possession of the leased premises or to enforce the performance of any of 


the covenants and conditions of this lease, then TENANT agrees to pay LANDLORD all costs 


and reasonable attorneys’ fees, whether or not such action proceeds to judgment.  


 21. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: 


 In the event of a partial destruction of said premises during said term for ay cause, 


LANDLORD shall, to the extent that any insurance proceeds cover the dollar loss, forthwith 


repair the same, provided such repairs can be made within twenty-five (25) days under the laws 


and regulations of state, county, or municipal authorities, but such partial destruction shall not 


annul or void this lease, except that TENANT shall be entitled to proportionate reduction of rent 


while such repairs are being made, such proportionate reductions to be based upon the extent to 


which the making of such repairs shall interfere with the business carried on by the TENANT in 


said premises. 







 10


 If such repairs cannot be made within twenty-five (25) days, TENANT may, at its option, 


cancel this lease without further obligation by giving written notice as provided herein. 


 In the event LANDLORD does not so elect to make such repairs, or such repairs cannot 


be made under such laws and regulations, this lease may be terminated at the option of either 


party. 


 In the event the building in which the leased premises are situated is destroyed to the 


extent of not less than one-third (1/3) of the replacement cost thereof, LANDLORD may elect to 


terminate this lease. 


 A total destruction of the premises, or of the building in which said premises may be 


situated, shall terminate this lease. 


 22. CONDEMNATION: 


 If any part of the premises shall be taken or condemned for a public or quasi-public use, 


and a part thereof remains which is susceptible of occupation hereunder, this lease shall, as to the 


parts so taken, terminate as of the date title shall vest in the condemnor, and the rent payable 


hereunder shall be adjusted so that TENANT shall be required to pay for the remainder of the 


term only such portion of such rent as the value of the part remaining after the condemnation 


bears to the value of their entire premises at the date of condemnation.  TENANT hereby agrees 


that all compensation awarded in the eminent domain proceeding as a result of such 


condemnation shall be LANDLORD’S.  In such event, either party shall also have the option to 


terminate this lease as of the date when title to the part so condemned rests in the condemnor.  If 


all of the leased premises, or such part thereof, be taken or condemned so that there does not 


remain a portion susceptible for occupation, this lease shall thereupon terminate. 


  


23. NOTICES: 


 All notices required by law or by this lease to be given to TENANT may be given by 


depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to TENANT at the 







 11


following address, and in that event, notice shall be deemed to have been given three (3) days 


after mailing: 


IMPERIAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
P.O. BOX 158 


IMPERIAL, CA  92251 
ATTN: VICE-PRESIDENT FOR BUSINESS SERVICES 


 


 All notices required by law or by this lease to be given to LANDLORD may be given in 


writing or by depositing the same in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to 


LANDLORD at the following address, and in that event, notice shall be deemed to have been 


given three (3) days after mailing: 


CALEXICO HACIENDA PLAZA 
101 WEST HACIENDA DR., SUITE 11 


CALEXICO, CA 92231 
 


 24. WAIVER: 


 The waiver by LANDLORD of any breach of any term, covenant or condition contained 


herein shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other 


term, covenant or condition contained herein. 


 25. HOLDING OVER: 


 Any holding over after the expiration of said term with the consent of LANDLORD shall 


be construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the terms and 


conditions herein specified, so far as applicable. 


 26. GOVERNING LAW: 


 All questions with respect to construction of this agreement and the rights and liabilities 


of the parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 


 27. INUREMENT: 


 Subject to the restrictions on assignments as herein contained, this agreement shall inure 


to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon the assigns, successors in interest, personal 


representative, estates, and heirs of the respective parties hereto. 







 12


 28. ENTIRE DOCUMENT: 


 This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties pertaining to the 


subject matter contained in it as it relates to all prior and contemporary agreements, 


representations, and understanding of the parties.  No supplement, modification, or amendment 


of this agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all of the parties.  No waiver of 


the provisions of this agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a waiver of any other 


provision, nor shall it be binding unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver. 


  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Agreement on the date 


first above written. 


       LANDLORD-LESSOR: 


       CALEXICO HACIENDA PLAZA, INC. 


        
       By _______________________________ 


            Its ____________________________ 


 


       TENANT-LESSEE: 


       IMPERIAL COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
       DISTRICT 
 


       By ________________________________ 


         Ed Gould, Ed.D.,  Superintendent/President 


   








SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 1 of 6 


 
EXHIBIT C 


 
Service-Learning Agreement  


University and Community-Based Organization 
 
 


This Agreement entered into this 19th day of May, 2010, between the Trustees of the California State University on 
behalf of San Diego State University, referred to as “UNIVERSITY,” and Imperial Community College District, 
referred to as “COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION.” 
 
 
I.  Statement of Purpose 


   
A. The University is committed to working with community colleges to nurture perspective community 


college faculty members and administrators and co-supports a faculty internship program with the San 
Diego/Imperial County Community College Association (SDICCCA).  This program has been known 
as the SDICCCA Faculty Internship program for the last sixteen years. 


 
B. The Community-Based Organization:   Imperial Valley College provides educational training in basic 


skills, career-technical-education, and transfer education.  
 
C.  COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION and UNIVERSITY recognize the opportunity for 


meaningful learning experiences for the UNIVERSITY, COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION 
and service-learning students (STUDENT). The UNIVERSITY supports the goals and objectives of 
the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION program in which STUDENT will participate. 


 
II.  Priorities 


 
A.  Program Activities 
 


Activities will be accomplished in accordance with the Learning Plan, reviewed and agreed upon 
by the STUDENT, UNIVERSITY AND COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION prior to the 
start of the experience. 
 
The intern will: 
 
1.  Participate in all relevant trainings required by the COMMUNITY-BASED 


ORGANIZATION and stated in Section III-A-2, Training and Orientation of this document. 
 
2.  Model professional and appropriate behavior when working with clients, and when on 


COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION site. 
 
3.  Support COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION events that are a part of the service-


learning experience as required by faculty member. 
 
4.  Meet the goals of the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION program and the service-


learning course in which the STUDENT is enrolled. 
 
 


B.  Safe and Productive Environment – reference COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION’s policy 
about safe work environment. 


 
1.  COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION will: 







SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 2 of 6 


 
a.  Give the intern a complete tour of the site, and ensure that the intern is aware of all 


emergency procedures and is able to act responsibly in the case of an emergency. 
 
b.  Ensure that the intern is aware of the unique nature of the population of the 


community college education programs, and is prepared to work with this 
population. 


 
c.  California law may require the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION to obtain 


intern’s fingerprints and submit them to the Department of Justice, and/or the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, for a criminal background check. It is the COMMUNITY-
BASED ORGANIZATION’s responsibility to: 1) determine whether such 
fingerprinting is required; 2) obtain the intern’s fingerprints; and 3) obtain criminal 
background clearance from the appropriate agency. 


 
2.  UNIVERSITY will ensure that STUDENT agrees to the following: 
 


a.  Abide by COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION rules and regulations while on 
site and working with COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION clients. 


 
b.  Ensure that his/her interactions with clients are safe, positive and productive. 
 
c.  Support the program and its objectives by providing support for clients or 


COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION staff as necessary and agreed upon in 
Section II-A-1, Program Activities of this document.  


 
 


III.  Structure and Support of Service-Learning Student 
 
A.  COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION 
 


1.  Site Supervision – The SDICCCA campus coordinator will serve as site supervisor and is 
responsible for safety and participation of interns while on site. Site Supervisor will meet with 
the intern weekly to update him/her on projects and to provide support. All program staff will 
support the intern as they interact with him/her, and provide guidance and advice as necessary 
and appropriate. A secondary site supervisor, one of the executive administrators,  will be 
responsible for the intern in the absence of primary supervisor. 


 
The COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION director or his/her designee will meet 
quarterly with Dr. Kendra Jeffcoat , faculty member at UNIVERSITY that has assigned the 
service-learning experience.  The initial meeting should aim to facilitate the most mutually 
beneficial experience for all parties involved. 


 
2.  Training & Orientation – University SDICCCA Program Coordinator, Dr. Kendra Jeffcoat, 


will provide specific training needed by the intern prior to his/her working with clients or 
providing service to the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION. Necessary training can 
be provided through collaboration between COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION, 
UNIVERSITY, and faculty member. 


 
3.  Work Space – The intern will have an appropriate space at the COMMUNITY-BASED 


ORGANIZATION site in which to conduct his/her assigned work. COMMUNITY-BASED 
ORGANIZATION will provide access and training for any and all equipment necessary for 
STUDENT to fulfill his/her required service role. 


 







SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 3 of 6 


 
4.  Evaluation – The COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION site supervisor will fill out 


survey(s) regarding quality of service that the STUDENT provided to the site, and as agreed 
upon in the Learning Plan document. 


 
B.  UNIVERSITY - UNIVERSITY will assign intern to the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION 


from SDSU, intern can provide service to the academic programs at Imperial Valley College.   
 


1.  Training and Reflection - UNIVERSITY will provide a training session for intern regarding 
his/her responsibilities as described in Section II. The Faculty Member will provide 
opportunities for intern to reflect on his/her experience working at the COMMUNITY-
BASED ORGANIZATION’S site. 


 
2.  Supervision and Accountability - The STUDENT, COMMUNITY-BASED 


ORGANIZATION, and FACULTY member will work closely together to meet the 
expectations and priorities of the COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION’S site. 


 
IV.  Length of Agreement Term 


 
A.  Initial Term - The UNIVERSITY and COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION have reached this 


initial agreement for the term beginning SUMMER, 2010 and ending MAY, 2010. This term 
represents three academic terms (summer, fall, and spring). 


 
This agreement shall become effective upon execution and shall continue until terminated by either 
party after giving the other party 30 days advance written notice of the intention to so terminate; 
provided further, however, that any such termination by COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION 
shall not be effective against any STUDENT who at the date of mailing of said notice by COMMUNITY-
BASED ORGANIZATION was participating in said program until such STUDENT has completed the 
program as mutually agreed upon. 
 
B.  Renewal Process – This agreement can be renewed every three years, and is based on STUDENT 


feedback, COMMUNITY BASED ORGANIZATION evaluations and FACULTY desire to continue 
this relationship for the purpose of service-learning under the conditions that: 


 
1.  The UNIVERSITY and COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION continue to be 


committed to actively supporting the goals of the other. 
 
2.  The STUDENT work is meaningful and helps to provide essential support to the 


COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION. 
 
3.  The relationship is consistent with the goals of the COMMUNITY-BASED 


ORGANIZATION, UNIVERSITY, STUDENT and the service-learning course. 
 


A renewal process is only applicable if the faculty member intends to continue placing service-learning 
students at this site for the foreseeable future, or if this site can be used for other service-learning 
opportunities and that the partnership should be kept up to date with an ongoing MOU. 
 
The attached General Provisions, consisting of two pages, is incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 4 of 6 


 
 
 
 
 
This document reflects my understanding of the relationship.   
 
 


COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATION  SAN DIEGO STATE UNIVERSITY 
 


 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory      Contract and Procurement Management 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Ed Gould, Superintendent/President   Print Name 


 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Date       Date 
 


 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Street Address      Faculty Chair 
 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
City           State Zip   Print Name 


 
_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Phone               Email   Date 


 
 
 


       ____________________________________ 
       Faculty 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Print Name 


 
       ____________________________________ 
       Date 


 
 







SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 5 of 6 


 
 
 


General Provisions 
 


Indemnification 
 
The community-based organization shall be responsible for damages caused by the negligence of its directors, 
officers, agents, employees and duly authorized volunteers occurring in the performance of this agreement.  
San Diego State University shall be responsible for damages caused by the negligence of its directors, officers, 
employees and duly authorized volunteers occurring in the performance of this agreement.  It is the intention 
of the community-based organization and the University that the provision of this paragraph be interpreted to 
impose on each party responsibility for the negligence of their respective directors, officers, employees and duly 
authorized volunteers. 
 
Insurance 
 
The community-based organization shall procure and maintain General Liability Insurance, comprehensive or 
commercial form with $1,000,000.00 minimum limit for each Occurrence and minimum limit of $2,000,000.00 
General Aggregate, as mutually agreed upon for this placement.   
 
The California State University system has elected to be insured for its General Liability exposure through the 
self-insured CSU Risk Management Authority.   
 
The State of California has elected to be self-insured for its vehicle liability and Workers’ Compensation and 
property exposures.  As a State agency, the California State University, Office of the Chancellor, the Trustees, 
and the CSU system of campuses are included in this self-insured program. 
 
The University shall provide professional and personal general liability coverage for students performing 
community service or volunteer work for academic credit, through the Student Academic Field Experience for 
Credit Liability Insurance Program (SAFECLIP).  The coverage limits under this program are $2,000,000.00 for 
each Loss and $10,000,000.00 Aggregate for all Covered Parties, and not per student.  Any affiliate institution 
to whom the Named Insured is obligated by written agreement to provide such coverage as is afforded by this 
policy, shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
The University shall provide professional, personal general liability, and educator’s errors and omissions liability 
coverage for students enrolled in Nursing, Allied Health, Social Work, or Education credential programs 
performing community service or volunteer work for academic credit, through the Student Professional 
Liability Insurance Program (SPLIP).  The coverage limits under this program are $5,000,000.00 for each Loss 
and $15,000,000.00 Aggregate for all Covered Parties, and not per student.  Any affiliate institution to whom 
the Named Insured is obligated by written agreement to provide such coverage as is afforded by this policy, 
shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
Status of Students 
 
Students shall at no time throughout this agreement be considered officers, employees, agents or volunteers of 
the University. 
 
Governing Law 
 
All contracts and purchase orders shall be construed in accordance with, and their performance governed by, 
the laws of the State of California.  Further, community-based organization shall comply with any state or 
federal law applicable to community-based organization's performance under this Contract. 
 
Assignments 
 
Without written consent of the CSU, this agreement is not assignable by the community-based organization 
either in whole or in part. 







SDSU Agreement No. _______ 
Page 6 of 6 


 
 
Agreement Alterations & Integration 
 
No alteration or variation of the terms of the agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the 
parties hereto, and no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on any of the 
parties hereto. 
 
Endorsement 
 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as conferring on any party hereto any right to use the 
other party’s name as an endorsement of product/service or to advertise, promote or otherwise market any 
product or service without the prior written consent of the other parties.  Furthermore nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as endorsement of any commercial product or service by the University, its 
officers or employees. 
 
 
Survival 
 
Upon termination of this contract for any reason, the terms, provisions, representations and warranties 
contained in this agreement shall survive expiration or earlier termination of this agreement.   
 
Severability 
 
If any provision of this agreement is held invalid by any law, rule, order of regulation of any government or by 
the final determination of any state or federal court, such invalidity shall not affect the enforceability of any 
other provision not held to be invalid.   
 
Entire Agreement 
 
This agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supercedes all prior agreements, arrangements, and understandings with respect thereto.  No 
representation, promise, inducement, or statement of intention has been made by any party hereto that is not 
embodied herein, and no party shall be bound by or liable for any alleged representation, promise, inducement, 
or statement not set forth herein.  
 








 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -1-  


AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 


 


THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 15th day of September, 2009 by and 


between the County of Imperial (a political subdivision of the State of California), hereinafter 


referred to as "COUNTY", and Imperial Valley College hereinafter referred to as "AGENCY" 


(and “CONTRACTOR” in Exhibit “C”). 


 WITNESSETH 


WHEREAS, COUNTY under the authority of the Federal Workforce Investment Act 


(20USC 9201 et. seq. Public Law 105-220, 112, Statute 936), hereinafter referred to as "WIA" or 


"the Act", has made application for and has been designated by the State as a Workforce Investment 


Area for employment and training programs in Imperial County under said Act; and 


WHEREAS, COUNTY has made application for and received State financial assistance for 


WIA programs, wherein as said applicant COUNTY was required to and did make certain 


assurances and certifications required by the Act and Federal regulations; and  


WHEREAS, said application for State financial assistance for employment and training 


programs to be administered pursuant to WIA required additional specific assurances as part of said 


application, which assurances have been given by COUNTY; and 


WHEREAS, COUNTY has developed a Workforce Investment Area Plan, which has been 


approved by the Imperial County Board of Supervisors, the Imperial County Workforce 


Development Board, and the State of California Employment Development Department, and said 


Plan sets forth purposes which provide for rendering the types of services indicated herein below; 


and 


WHEREAS, AGENCY has made application for WIA funding from the COUNTY to 


provide employment and training services; and  


WHEREAS, AGENCY represents that it possesses the qualifications necessary to perform 


the desired services; and 


WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to contract with AGENCY to render certain employment and 


training services for Machine and Electronic Repair Technician; and 



vikki.carr

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT D







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -2-  


WHEREAS, COUNTY is authorized to enter into this Agreement under the provisions of 


California Government Code Section 31000; and 


WHEREAS, COUNTY is desirous of engaging AGENCY for the performance of said 


services as are provided for herein and AGENCY is willing to accept such engagement; 


NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY hereby engages and AGENCY hereby accepts upon the 


terms and conditions set forth herein. 


1. PARTIES TO AGREEMENT 


1.1. This Agreement is by and between COUNTY and AGENCY. COUNTY and 


AGENCY are sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as “PARTIES”. 


2. WORK TO BE PERFORMED BY AGENCY 


2.1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide low income, unemployed and 


underemployed persons with employment and training services to enable such 


persons to move into unsubsidized employment.  


2.2. AGENCY shall perform and be responsible for providing the services described in 


Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto incorporated herein by reference as though 


fully set forth herein. 


2.3. Said work shall be completed in a lawful, professional, expeditious and timely 


manner. 


3. REPRESENTATIONS BY AGENCY 


3.1. AGENCY understands and agrees that COUNTY is relying upon AGENCY's 


representations that it will provide services provided herein to the standard of care 


ordinarily exercised in AGENCY’s profession. 


3.2. AGENCY represents and warrants that it is a lawful entity possessing all required 


licenses and authorities to do business in the State of California and perform all 


aspects of this Agreement. 


3.3. AGENCY represents and warrants that the people executing this Agreement  


on behalf of AGENCY have the authority of AGENCY to sign this Agreement and 


bind AGENCY to the performance of all duties and obligations assumed by 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -3-  


AGENCY herein. 


3.4. AGENCY represents and warrants that any employee, contractor and agent who will 


be performing any of the duties and obligations of AGENCY herein possess all 


required licenses and authorities, as well as the experience and training, to perform 


such tasks. 


3.5. AGENCY represents and warrants that the subject services shall be performed 


exclusively by AGENCY.  Any agreements to the contrary, pursuant to Paragraphs 


18 and 24, must be consented to in writing by COUNTY. 


3.6. AGENCY represents that the services provided herein shall be performed in a 


professional and lawful manner.  In addition thereto, AGENCY shall abide by all 


laws and regulations of said Act and all restrictions and prohibitions thereof and 


regulations and requirements related thereto of the U.S. Department of Labor, as if 


AGENCY was the original recipient of WIA funds of said Act. AGENCY shall 


comply with all requirements as set forth in Parts 626-637 of Title 20, Code of 


Federal Regulations, as from time to time amended, including such requirements, 


assurances and certifications as outlined in the Exhibit “C” attached to this 


Agreement, which Exhibit “C” is incorporated by reference herein as part of this 


Agreement, as if fully set forth herein. 


3.7. AGENCY represents and warrants that the allegations contained in the Exhibits 


attached hereto are true and correct. 


3.8. AGENCY understands that COUNTY considers the representations made herein to 


be material and would not enter into this Agreement with AGENCY if such 


representations were not made. 


3.9. AGENCY represents and warrants that all work performed under this Agreement 


shall be treated as confidential. 


3.10. AGENCY represents and warrants that all reports, analysis or other documents 


developed under this Agreement shall become the exclusive property of COUNTY 


and shall not be distributed by AGENCY without COUNTY's written consent. 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -4-  


3.11. AGENCY represents and warrants that any errors in its services provided hereunder 


shall be corrected at no additional charge to COUNTY.  


3.12. RETENTION AND ACCESS OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 


AGENCY represents and warrants that it shall maintain books, records, documents, 


reports and other materials developed under this Agreement as follows: 


(a) AGENCY shall maintain all ledgers, books of accounts, invoices, vouchers, 


canceled checks, and other records relating to AGENCY's charges for 


services or expenditures and disbursements charged to Imperial County for a 


minimum period of five (5) years, or for any longer period required by law, 


from the date of final payment to AGENCY pursuant to this Agreement. 


(b) AGENCY shall maintain all reports, documents and records which 


demonstrate performance under this Agreement for a minimum period of five 


(5) years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of 


termination or completion of this Agreement. 


(c) Any records or documents required to be maintained by AGENCY pursuant 


to this Agreement shall be made available to COUNTY for inspection or 


audit, at any time during AGENCY's regular business hours provided 


COUNTY provides AGENCY with twenty-four (24) hours advanced written 


or oral notice.  Copies of such documents shall, at no cost to COUNTY, be 


provided to Imperial County for inspection at AGENCY's address indicated 


for receipt of notices under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding, AGENCY 


shall maintain and provide ready access to a copy of this executed Master 


Agreement and any subsequent modification thereto.  This information shall 


be maintained in a separate file and shall be made immediately available 


upon request to authorized representative of the County, State, or Federal 


Governments. 


(d)  AGENCY shall comply with 29 CFR 97.34 pertaining to copyrights and the 


use of copyright materials or the development of copyright materials. 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -5-  


3.13. AGENCY represents and warrants that it has not been engaged by, nor will it be 


engaged by and owes no duty of performance to any other person or entity which 


would constitute a conflict.  For breach or violation of this warranty, COUNTY shall 


amongst other remedies at law, have the right to terminate this Agreement without 


liability, or at its sole discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or 


consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, 


percentage brokerage fee, gift or contingent fee paid or received from another entity 


or person. 


3.14. AGENCY warrants and represents that it will provide for the proper accounting, 


reporting and monitoring of AGENCY's services provided pursuant to this 


agreement. 


3.15. AGENCY warrants and represents that it will comply with all requirements of 


COUNTY, as determined by COUNTY's Imperial County Workforce Development 


Office (ICWDO) Director, hereinafter referred to as “ICWDO Director,” necessary 


to allow COUNTY to develop and maintain programs and to allow COUNTY to 


perform its responsibilities for overall accounting, auditing, reporting, program and 


financial monitoring of all WIA activities of COUNTY. 


3.16. AGENCY warrants and represents that it will submit periodic written reports to 


COUNTY as requested by the COUNTY's ICWDO Director.  The content of such 


reports will be determined by the COUNTY’s ICWDO Director and set forth in the 


COUNTY's Operation and Forms Preparation Manual. 


3.17. FISCAL 


 a) AGENCY shall: 


  1) Prepare and submit completed timesheets, (originals and copies), 


with all applicable signatures, (customer, supervisor, and 


coordinator), to ICWDO based on payroll schedule, if applicable. 


  2) Pick up from ICWDO fiscal unit and deliver the resultant wage 


payments to youth after verifying the accuracy of the payment, if 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -6-  


applicable. 


  3) Return undeliverable checks to ICWDO with two (2) weeks. 


  4)  Maintain up-to-date record of wage and/or stipend payment received 


by each youth, ensuring that the signature of the customer 


acknowledges receipt of each payment. 


  5) Maintain a double entry self-balancing accounting system separating 


WIA funds from non-WIA with a General Journal, and a Cash 


Receipts Journal, a General Ledger, Cash Disbursements Journal, and 


a payroll ledger.  The General Ledger and Journals shall be posted as 


required, at least monthly. 


  6) Implement accrual procedures to assure that cost is charged and 


reported to the appropriate period and program/title. 


  7) Have an audit completed in compliance with OMB Circular A-133.  


The audit shall be at AGENCY’s expense.  The audit report must be 


completed and forwarded to ICWDO within nine (9) months after the 


end of the audit year; however upon receipt of the report, it should be 


forwarded to ICWDO within ten (10) days. 


  8) Abide with ICWDO’s rules, regulations, bulletins, and procurements 


policy in the following aspects: administrative, contractual, or legal 


remedies in instances of contractual violation.  Termination for cause 


or for convenience by the grantee or contractor [29 CFR 95.48(b)].  


Condition for payments, delivery terms and process for agreement 


changes. 


 b) AGENCY shall comply with: 


  1) All requests for budget modification to ICWDO for review and 


approval. 


  2) Maintaining a time and cost allocation plan detailing the allocation of 


all shared staff and equipment, if applicable. 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -7-  


  3) Submitting claims to the ICWDO fiscal section in an accurate and 


timely manner.  Claims not meeting ICWDO requirements and or 


deadlines will result in delay in payment to the AGENCY. 


  4) Determining allowability of cost as necessary and reasonable for 


WIA purposes.  Uncertainty of the allowability of a cost should be 


discussed with ICWDO fiscal staff prior to the acquisition.  Specific 


non-allowable charges (Titles 20 CFR, Part 667, 200(c)) are listed in 


the WIA Directive (WIAD03-9) Procurement Policy distributed with 


ICWDO Bulleting No. 01-02 and/or revisions to the same.  


Acceptable methods of procurement are listed in the WIA Directive 


(WIAD03-9) Procurement Policy distributed with ICWDO Bulletin 


No. 06-6. 


  5) Procurement of services and supplies for WIA purposes must be 


procured from vendors with the appropriate local, state, and federal 


licenses.   


  6) Terms and conditions of the contract.  Failure to comply will result in 


withholding of payment for AGENCY’s reimbursement claims 


and/or cancellation of contract until requirement is met. 


  7) Determining the required costs for follow-up services based on the 


numbers of youth exiting program services.  The costs will be 


included in closeout package. 


  8) Submitting complete closeout reports on all activities by August 15, 


2010, or as directed by ICWDO. 


  9) Maintain a copy of all fiscal documents with supportive 


documentation in the AGENCY’s local administration office ready 


and available for a fiscal review. 


4. TERM OF AGREEMENT 


4.1. This Agreement shall become effective as of September 15, 2009 and the services 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -8-  


provided hereunder shall be completed by and terminate on June 30, 2010, unless 


agreed upon otherwise in writing and/or this Agreement is terminated pursuant to the 


terms contained herein. However, if the funds appropriated to the COUNTY are 


exhausted before the aforestated date, or if funds appropriated by the COUNTY to 


AGENCY are exhausted before the aforestated date, this Agreement shall 


automatically terminate on the date of the exhaustion of said funds upon written 


notice thereof to AGENCY by the COUNTY, provided further that this Agreement 


shall be subject to all the budgetary and fiscal limitations of the County and Public 


Law 105-220 and provided further that this Agreement may be canceled, amended or 


extended at any time upon mutual agreement of AGENCY and the COUNTY. 


4.2. This agreement may be modified by COUNTY upon written notice to the AGENCY 


under the following circumstances. 


(a) There is an increase or decrease in state and federal funding levels. 


(b) A modification is required in order to implement an adjustment or 


 modification to the contract. 


(c) A change in state and federal law, regulation and funding requiring a 


 change in the provision of this contract. 


(d) The service provider is not meeting performance on the referred and/or 


enrolled participants. 


4.3. COUNTY and AGENCY agree that time is of the essence as it relates to the terms 


and conditions of this Agreement. 


5. COMPENSATION 


5.1. COUNTY shall pay AGENCY compensation for the services required to be 


performed under this Agreement at the rates and levels set forth in the budgets 


referred to in Exhibit “B” and which are attached hereto and incorporated herein as 


set forth in full. Total compensation payable under the terms of this AGREEMENT 


shall not exceed one hundred seventy-four thousand seven hundred eighty-three 


dollars and no cents ($174,783.00). It is understood that all payments pursuant to this 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -9-  


Agreement shall only be from approved employment and training services funds 


received pursuant to Public Law 105-220 the "Workforce Investment Act". All 


payments to AGENCY under this Agreement are contingent upon the COUNTY 


receiving WIA monies as designated in its approved WIA Plan. In addition, the 


parties understand and agree that the COUNTY shall not honor or process for 


payment to AGENCY any reimbursement claims for services provided pursuant to 


this Agreement unless and until AGENCY has submitted to the COUNTY all such 


claims for prior year Agreements and expenditures. 


5.2. Except as provided under Paragraphs 5.1, COUNTY shall not be responsible to pay 


AGENCY any compensation, out of pocket expenses, fees or other remuneration. 


5.3. Said compensation and out of pocket expenses shall be paid to AGENCY by 


COUNTY in accordance with Paragraph 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6.  However, said payment 


shall not be due and payable until such time as AGENCY has provided COUNTY 


with a monthly service statement as described under Paragraph 5.4 herein. 


5.4. AGENCY shall issue monthly service statements (one (1) original plus two (2) 


copies) to COUNTY, which shall specifically itemize all out of pocket expenses and 


work performed for each said period.  Said statements must meet with the approval 


of COUNTY and be received by COUNTY no later than the 10th day of every 


month following that for which the subject work was performed.  Monthly 


claims/billings shall be properly prepared and accurately charge expenses/fees 


earned as provided for herein.  AGENCY shall not consider such claims/billings 


based merely on budget amounts owed, and not include in any monthly 


reimbursement claim/billing submitted any charge which is not an actual expenditure 


or earned charge.  AGENCY must possess documentation showing proof of payment 


or invoices or purchasing orders supporting encumbrances for all expenditures 


reported on cost reimbursement contracts or documentation showing proof of 


performance for amounts billing on fixed unit price contracts in accordance with 


Exhibit “A” of this document. AGENCY further assures that it will not claim 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -10-  


monthly administrative expenditures in excess of the allowable percentage of non-


administrative costs. Refer to Exhibit “B” (Budget) for all allowable administrative 


limits. 


Monthly reimbursements will be made to AGENCY by the COUNTY 


according to information provided on monthly reimbursement claim/billing forms.  


Final request for reimbursement/payment shall be submitted no later than June 30, 


2010 or 30 days after the contract period ends, if contract ends prior to June 30, 


2010. Claim submitted after this time will not be paid. AGENCY's accounting 


records shall include, as a minimum, a special revenue or trust fund specifying cash 


on-hand, revenue earned and expenditures incurred under this contract.  Such records 


shall account for all expenditure items included in monthly reimbursement claims, 


and each such expenditure item shall be supported by documentation showing actual 


expenditures. 


5.5. Invoices clearly indicating the period, for which the bill is made, shall be submitted 


to: 
                    Imperial County Workforce Development Office 


        Attn: ICWDO Director 
         2695 S. 4th Street, Building D 


        El Centro, CA 92243 


5.6. Service statements shall be paid in accordance with Exhibit “A” and upon 


COUNTY's receipt, review and approval of the same. 


5.7. AGENCY acknowledges COUNTY is under no obligation to compensate AGENCY 


for services rendered or expenses accrued under this Agreement not authorized by 


COUNTY. 


5.8. If COUNTY requires work in addition to that defined in the Scope of Work, 


AGENCY shall provide a cost estimate and written description of the additional 


work needed to perform such services.  Compensation and the time for completion of 


such additional services must be negotiated and approved in writing by the 


COUNTY prior to the commencement of any such services. 


5.9. In case of any type of termination, as provided for herein below in this Agreement, 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -11-  


the COUNTY's ICWDO Director shall determine the amount of funds owed, if any 


by the AGENCY. Such determinations by the COUNTY's ICWDO Director shall be 


final and binding upon AGENCY. AGENCY shall pay any amounts determined by 


the COUNTY's ICWDO Director to be owing to the County immediately following 


the COUNTY ICWDO Director's written notice of determination of monies owed. 


Notwithstanding any of the provisions contained hereinabove, the parties to 


this Agreement retain any and all administrative, contractual and legal remedies that 


may be available in instances wherein either party violates any of terms of this 


Agreement, and either party may seek against the other party any and all remedies, 


including sanctions and penalties, as provided by law. 


5.10 Funding Authorization 


5.10.1 This Agreement is valid and enforceable subject to sufficient funds being 


made available to the COUNTY for the period of time covered by this 


agreement as stated in the term section and subject to authorization and 


appropriation of sufficient funds pursuant to the State’s Budget Act. 


5.10.2 In the event the United States Government and/or the State government do 


not authorize and appropriate sufficient funds for the State to allocate 


amounts to the COUNTY to enable it to comply with the payment 


provisions of the Agreement, it is mutually agreed that: 


5.10.3 The Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in the payment 


provisions and the performance provisions. 


5.10.4 To the extent there is insufficient money for the agreement to be considered 


valid and enforceable pursuant to subdivision 5.10.1, the agreement will end 


immediately. 


6. ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS - SPECIAL PROVISIONS 


AGENCY agrees at all times during the term of this Agreement to provide for and maintain 


proper accounting records in compliance with the reimbursements of the provisions of Paragraph 5 


of this Agreement. Further, AGENCY agrees, in the event of failure of AGENCY to account for its 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -12-  


WIA funds, that the COUNTY will give AGENCY a notice of non-compliance with ten (10) days in 


which to initiate corrective action, that the COUNTY may immediately and unilaterally terminate 


this Agreement if said action is not taken at any time thereafter, upon written notice of such 


termination by the COUNTY. 


AGENCY further agrees that the COUNTY ICWDO Director or the COUNTY's Auditor-


Controller shall have the authority, at any time said officers have knowledge that said accounting 


requirements are not being fully complied with by AGENCY, to monitor such compliance efforts of 


AGENCY, and/or, in their discretion, to immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice 


to AGENCY. 


7. AUDIT EXCEPTIONS - SPECIAL PROVISIONS 


AGENCY understands and agrees to procure and ensure that an audit of 


expenditures/revenues earned by AGENCY, pursuant to this Agreement, is completed in compliance 


with OMB Circular A-128 or A-133. 


AGENCY understands and agrees that audits of expenditures/revenues earned by AGENCY 


pursuant to this Agreement may be conducted by the County, State or Federal governments, and that 


said audits may be conducted at any time during the three (3) fiscal years subsequent to this fiscal 


year in which this Agreement terminates. 


AGENCY agrees to return to the COUNTY, upon written demand by the COUNTY, any 


funds provided by the COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement subsequently identified as disallowed 


costs in any such audit.  AGENCY may appeal any such demands by the COUNTY to the 


COUNTY's Board of Supervisors, the U.S. Department of Labor and the U.S. Secretary of Labor.  


The Secretary of Labor's final determination as to the necessity of payment shall be conclusive 


between the COUNTY and AGENCY, unless set aside by a Court of competent jurisdiction. 


8. DISPUTES REGARDING RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER AGREEMENT 


Any disputes which may arise regarding the respective responsibilities of the PARTIES to 


this Agreement shall be resolved using the approved grievance procedure for subgrantees. AGENCY 


may put a matter in dispute by submitting a written notice to the COUNTY's ICWDO Director, 


which notice shall indicate the specific matter involved. 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -13-  


/ / / 


9. PARTICIPANT PERSONNEL RECORDS 


AGENCY shall maintain a separate personnel file for each WIA participant.  Such files shall 


contain timecards signed by both the participant and the supervisor, and all necessary enrollment 


documentation as required by the COUNTY ICWDO Director. 


10. OUT-OF-COUNTY TRAVEL 


AGENCY shall obtain prior written approval from the COUNTY ICWDO Director for all 


Out-of-County or Out-of-State trips to be taken by WIA participants or administrative staff paid with 


WIA funds. All requests for out-of-county and out-of-state trips shall be submitted to the COUNTY 


ICWDO Director in writing.  For out-of-county trips, requests from agencies shall be submitted at 


least on (1) week prior to the date of the trip.  Out-of-state trip requests shall be submitted at least 


three (3) weeks prior to the date of the trip.  This clause is applicable only to cost reimbursement 


contracts. 


11. SCHOOL DISTRICTS 


If AGENCY in this Agreement is a school district, AGENCY further assures COUNTY that 


it will provide all services pursuant to this Agreement in strict compliance with the provisions of 


California Education Code Sections 45105, 45117, and 45308. If AGENCY in this Agreement is a 


community college school district, AGENCY shall provide all services pursuant to this Agreement 


in strict compliance with the provisions of California Education Code Sections 88005, 88017, and 


88127. 


12. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES 


COUNTY will: 


(a) Develop, obtain approvals for, modify, and maintain a WIA Plan for Imperial 


County, which Plan shall encompass all employment and training services 


maintained under WIA within Imperial County. 


(b) Request, receive and administer all WIA funds within Imperial County. 


(c) Fund, oversee and monitor Imperial County WIA funded programs. 


(d) Allocate funds, by contract or otherwise for implementation, maintenance, 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -14-  


monitoring and evaluation of employment and training services with Imperial 


County. 


(e) Make payments to AGENCY of the monies necessary for services to be rendered by 


AGENCY pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 


(f)     Provide to AGENCY, through the Office of the COUNTY ICWDO Director,       


information and assistance as deemed appropriate by the COUNTY's ICWDO      


Director to allow AGENCY to provide services in a manner conducive to            


fulfilling the goals of these employment and training programs. 


(g) Carry out all other administrative functions consistent with Imperial County's grant 


application developed for funding of WIA programs in Imperial County and all 


related assurances and certifications made by the COUNTY as Workforce 


Investment Area of employment and training services in Imperial County, and 


consistent with the basic responsibilities of the COUNTY as Workforce Investment 


Area as set forth in Parts 626-637, Title 20, Code of Federal Regulations. 


13. INDEMNIFICATION  


13.1. AGENCY agrees to the fullest extent permitted by law to indemnify, hold harmless, 


defend, and protect COUNTY and its representatives, officers, directors, designees, 


employees, agents, successors and assigns from any and all claims, expenses, 


liabilities, causes of action, demands, losses, penalties, attorneys fees and costs, in 


law or equity, of every kind and nature whatsoever to persons or property arising out 


of or in connection with AGENCY’S negligent acts and omissions or willful 


misconduct under this Agreement (“Claims”), whether or not arising from the 


passive negligence of COUNTY, but does not include Claims that are finally 


determined to be the result of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of COUNTY. 


13.2. AGENCY, agrees at AGENCY’s own cost, expense and risk, to defend, indemnify 


and hold COUNTY harmless, with counsel acceptable to COUNTY, from any and all 


claims, demands, suits, actions or other legal proceeding including but not limited to: 


13.2.1. Personal injury, including but not limited to bodily injury, emotional injury, 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -15-  


sickness or disease or death to persons including but not limited to 


COUNTY’s representatives, officers, directors, designees, employees, 


agents, successors and assigns, subcontractors and other third parties and/or 


damage to property of anyone (including loss of use thereof) arising out of 


AGENCY’s negligent performance of, or willful misconduct surrounding, 


any of the terms contained in this Agreement, or anyone directly or indirectly 


employed by AGENCY or anyone for whose acts AGENCY may be liable; 


13.2.2. Liability arising from injuries to AGENCY and/or any of AGENCY’s 


employees or agents arising out of AGENCY’s negligent performance of, or 


willful misconduct surrounding, any of the terms contained in this 


Agreement, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by AGENCY or 


anyone for whose acts AGENCY may be liable; 


13.2.3. Penalties imposed upon account of the violation of any law, order, citation, 


rule, regulation, standard, ordinance or statute caused by the negligent action 


or inaction, or willful misconduct of AGENCY or anyone directly or 


indirectly employed by AGENCY or anyone for whose acts AGENCY may 


be liable; 


13.2.4. Infringement of any patent rights which may be brought against COUNTY 


arising out of AGENCY’s work; 


13.2.5. Any violation or infraction by AGENCY of any law, order, citation, rule, 


regulation, standard, ordinance or statute in any way relating to the 


occupational health or safety of employees; and 


13.2.6. Any judgment or decree that may be rendered against COUNTY, its officers, 


agents, or employees in any such suit, action or other legal proceedings, 


when same were due to negligence of AGENCY; and 


13.2.7. Any breach by AGENCY of the terms, requirements or covenants of this 


Agreement. 


13.3. The indemnification provisions of Paragraphs 13.2.1. through 13.2.7. above shall 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -16-  


extend to Claims occurring after this Agreement is terminated, as well as while it is 


in force. 


13.4. In addition to any other remedy authorized by law, so much of the money due 


AGENCY under this Agreement as shall be considered necessary by COUNTY, may 


be retained until disposition has been made of any claim for damages. 


14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 


In all situations and circumstances arising out of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, 


AGENCY is an independent contractor, and as an independent contractor, the following 


shall apply: 


14.1. AGENCY, nor its employees or agents, is not an employee of COUNTY and is only 


responsible for the requirements and results specified by this Agreement or any other 


agreement. 


14.2. AGENCY shall be responsible to COUNTY only for the requirements and results 


specified by this Agreement and except as specifically provided in this Agreement, 


shall not be subject to COUNTY's control with respect to the physical actions or 


activities of AGENCY in fulfillment of the requirements of this Agreement. 


14.3. AGENCY is not, and shall not be, entitled to receive from, or through, COUNTY, 


and COUNTY shall not provide, or be obligated to provide, AGENCY with Worker's 


Compensation coverage or any other type of employment or worker insurance or 


benefit coverage required or provided by any Federal, State or local law or regulation 


for, or normally afforded to, an employee of COUNTY. 


14.4. AGENCY shall not be entitled to have COUNTY withhold or pay, and COUNTY 


shall not withhold or pay, on behalf of AGENCY, any tax or money relating to the 


Social Security Old Age Pension Program, Social Security Disability Program, or 


any other type of pension, annuity, or disability program required or provided by any 


Federal, State, or local law or regulation. 


14.5. AGENCY shall not be entitled to participate in, or receive any benefit from, or make 


any claim against any COUNTY fringe benefit program, including, but not limited 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -17-  


to, COUNTY's pension plan, medical and health care plan, dental and eye care plan, 


life insurance plan, or any other type of benefit program, plan, or coverage 


designated for, provided to, or offered to COUNTY's employees. 


14.6. COUNTY shall not withhold or pay, on behalf of AGENCY, any Federal, State, or 


local tax, including, but not limited to, any personal income tax, owed by AGENCY. 


14.7. AGENCY shall not have the authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of, bind 


or obligate COUNTY in any way without the written consent of COUNTY. 


15. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 


15.1. AGENCY hereby agrees at its own cost and expense to procure and maintain during 


the entire term of this Agreement, and any extended term thereof commercial general liability 


insurance (bodily injury and property damage), employer’s liability insurance, commercial 


automobile liability insurance (bodily injury and property damage) and professional liability 


insurance in a sum acceptable to COUNTY and adequate to cover potential liabilities arising in 


connection with the performance of this Agreement and in any event not less than the minimum limit 


set forth as follows: 


 
 Insurance       Minimum Limit 
 Errors & Omissions Coverage    $1,000,000 per claim and 


annual aggregate 
 
 Worker’s Compensation, Coverage A   Statutory 
 
 Employers Liability, Coverage B    $1,000,000 
 


Commercial General Liability    $1,000,000 (per occurrence) 
 


 (Including Contractual Liability):    $2,000,000 aggregate 
 
 Commercial Automobile Liability    $1,000,000  
 (owned, hired & non-owned vehicles)     (per person)  
         $1,000,000  
           (per accident) 
         $1,000,000 
           (per property damage 


claim)    


15.2. Special Insurance Requirements All insurance required under paragraph 15 shall: 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -18-  


(a) Be procured from California admitted insurers (licensed to do business in 


California) with a current rating by Best’s Key Rating Guide acceptable to 


COUNTY.  A rating of at least A-VII shall be acceptable to COUNTY; lesser 


ratings must be approved in writing by COUNTY.  


(b) Be primary coverage as respects COUNTY and any insurance or 


self-insurance maintained by COUNTY shall be in excess of AGENCY's 


insurance coverage and shall not contribute to it. 


(c) Name COUNTY as an additional insured on all policies, except Workers 


Compensation and Errors and Omissions Insurance, and provide that 


COUNTY may recover for any loss suffered by COUNTY by reason of 


AGENCY's negligence. 


(d) Not be canceled, non-renewed or reduced in scope of coverage until after 


thirty (30) days written notice has been given to the COUNTY. However, 


AGENCY may not terminate such coverage until it provides COUNTY with 


written proof that equal or better insurance has been secured and is in place. 


Cancellation or change without the prior written consent of the COUNTY 


shall, at the option of the COUNTY, be grounds for termination of this 


Agreement. 


15.3. Additional Insurance Requirements 


(a) COUNTY is to be notified immediately of all insurance claims.  


 COUNTY is also to be notified if any aggregate insurance limit is exceeded. 


(b) Deposit of Insurance Policy Promptly on issuance, reissuance, or renewal of 


any insurance policy required by this Agreement, the AGENCY shall, if 


requested by COUNTY, cause to be given to COUNTY satisfactory evidence 


that insurance policy premiums have been paid together with a duplicate 


copy of the policy or a certificate evidencing the policy and executed by the 


insurance company issuing the policy or its authorized agent. 


(c) AGENCY agrees to provide COUNTY with the following insurance 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -19-  


documents on or before the effective date of this Agreement: 


(1) Complete copies of certificates of insurance for all required 


coverages including Additional Insured Endorsements and 30 days 


Notice of Cancellation Clause endorsements. 


(2) The documents enumerated in Paragraph 15.1 shall be sent to the 


following: 
County of Imperial 


Risk Management Department 
940 Main Street, Ste. 101 


El Centro, CA.  92243 


And 


Imperial County Workforce Development Office 
Attn: ICWDO Director 


2695 S. 4th Street, Building D 
El Centro, CA 92243 


(d) Nothing in this, or any other provision of this Agreement, shall be construed 


to preclude the AGENCY from obtaining and maintaining any additional 


insurance policies in addition to those required pursuant to this Agreement. 


(e) The comprehensive or commercial general liability shall contain a provision 


of endorsements stating that such insurance: 


1. Includes contractual liability. 


2. Does not contain a "pro rata" provision which looks to limit the 


insurer's liability to the total proportion that its policy limits bear to 


the total coverage available to the insured. 


3. Does not contain a "excess only" clause which require the exhaustion 


of other insurance prior to providing coverage. 


4. Does not contain a "escape clause" which extinguishes the insurer's 


liability if the loss is covered by other insurance.  


5. Includes COUNTY as an additional insured. 


6. States that it is primary insurance and regards COUNTY as an 


additional insured and contains a cross-liability or severability of 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -20-  


interest clause. 


16. FIDELITY BOND 


AGENCY shall ensure that every officer, director, agent, or employee of AGENCY 


authorized to act on behalf of AGENCY in receiving or depositing funds into program 


accounts or in issuing financial documents, checks, or other instruments of payment for 


program costs, shall be bonded to provide protection against loss. The coverage shall be 


twenty percent (20%) of the total contract amount. 


17. DEFAULT & TERMINATION 


17.1. AGENCY's Default If AGENCY fails or refuses to perform any provision, covenant 


or condition to be kept or performed by AGENCY under this Agreement, COUNTY, 


prior to exercising any of its rights or remedies, shall give written notice to 


AGENCY of such default, specifying in said notice the nature of such default and 


AGENCY shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of such notice to cure said default. 


 If such default is not cured within said thirty (30) day period, then COUNTY may in 


its sole discretion terminate this Agreement and/or pursue those remedies available 


under the law at the time this Agreement is executed as well as any future remedies 


that are created. 


17.2. COUNTY's Default If COUNTY fails or refuses to perform any provision, covenant 


or condition to be kept or performed by COUNTY under this Agreement, AGENCY, 


prior to exercising any of its rights or remedies, shall give written notice to 


COUNTY of such default, specifying in said notice the nature of such default and 


COUNTY shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of such notice to cure said default. 


 If such default is not cured within said thirty (30) day period, then AGENCY may in 


its sole discretion terminate this Agreement and/or pursue those remedies available 


under the law at the time this Agreement is executed as well as any future remedies 


that are created. 


17.3. Termination Clause Notwithstanding Paragraph 17.1, this Agreement is subject to 


termination without cause by COUNTY upon thirty (30) days written notice.  In the 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -21-  


event of termination, AGENCY will be due the share of the total fee represented by 


the proportion of the work completed and expenses incurred at the time of 


termination, as evidenced by a final billing and as approved by COUNTY under 


Paragraph 5.4.  COUNTY may also give written notice of termination for cause, 


which shall be effective immediately, if AGENCY fails to fulfill in timely and proper 


manner any of its obligations under this agreement, violates any of the express terms 


of this agreement, or fails to comply with the special accounting requirements of 


Paragraph 6 of this Agreement. 


18. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 


18.1. Neither this Agreement nor any rights, duties or obligations hereunder shall be 


assignable and/or subcontracted by AGENCY without the prior written consent of 


COUNTY. 


18.2. COUNTY may demand such assurances, including financial assurances, 


modification of this Agreement, or such other requirements as, in its sole discretion, 


it deems advisable, as a condition to granting its consent to any assignee or 


subcontractor hereunder.  Nothing herein shall be construed as requiring COUNTY 


to grant such approval if COUNTY, in its sole opinion, deems such grant of consent 


to be not in the best interests of COUNTY. 


18.3. Consent by COUNTY to an assignment or subcontract shall not release AGENCY 


from its primary liability under this Agreement, and COUNTY's consent to one 


assignment or subcontract, shall not be deemed a consent to other assignments and/or 


subcontracts. 


18.4. Any attempt by the AGENCY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this 


Agreement without obtaining the prior written consent of COUNTY shall be void. 


19. NON-DISCRIMINATION 


During the performance of this Agreement, AGENCY shall not discriminate, harass or allow 


harassment against any employee or applicant for employment or employee of COUNTY or member 


of the public because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -22-  


(including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (cancer), age (over forty (40)), 


marital status and denial of family care leave.  AGENCY shall insure that the evaluation and 


treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 


harassment.  AGENCY shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 


(Gov. Code §12990 et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code 


of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.) are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and 


made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  The applicable regulations of Section 504 of the 


Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §794 (a)) are incorporated into this Agreement by reference 


and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  AGENCY shall abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act 


of 1964 and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to 


said Act.  AGENCY shall also abide by the American Disabilities Act and all amendments thereto, 


and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said Act. AGENCY shall give written 


notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective 


bargaining or other agreement.   AGENCY shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance 


provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement. 


20. PROPERTY PROCUREMENT 


AGENCY shall secure approval from the COUNTY's ICWDO Director or designee prior to 


procurement of property with an expected life span in excess of one year or a purchase price in 


excess of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). This clause is applicable to cost reimbursement 


contracts only. 


21. BINDING 


This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, successors, assigns and subcontractors of the 


PARTIES hereto. 


22. NOTICES 


22.1. Any notice by either party to the other shall be personally delivered to the party or 


sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set forth below: 


/ / / 


 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -23-  


/ / / 
AGENCY:                          COUNTY: 
Imperial Valley College  COUNTY OF IMPERIAL  
380 East Aten Road   Workforce Development Office 
El Centro, CA 92243    Attn: ICWDO Director 
      2695 S. 4th Street, Building D 


 El Centro, CA 92243 
 
 


COUNTY:                          COUNTY: 
COUNTY OF IMPERIAL  COUNTY OF IMPERIAL  
County Executive Office  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Attn: County Executive Officer Attn: Clerk of the Board 
940 Main Street, Suite 208  940 Main Street, Suite 209 
El Centro, CA 92243    El Centro, CA 92243 


 


22.2. Either party may change its address for notice by providing written notice to the 


other party in accordance with Paragraph 22.1. 


22.3. Notices shall be deemed effective on the date of delivery. 


23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 


This Agreement contains the entire contract between COUNTY and AGENCY relating to the 


transactions contemplated hereby and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements, 


understandings, provisions, negotiations, representations, or statements, either written or oral. 


24. MODIFICATION 


26.1 No modification, waiver, amendment, discharge, or change of this Agreement shall be 


valid unless the same is in writing and signed by both Parties. This agreement may be 


modified by COUNTY upon written notice to AGENCY under the following 


circumstances: 


 a) There is an increase or decrease in state and federal funding levels. 


 b) A modification is required in order to implement an adjustment or 


modification to the contract. 


 c) A change in state and federal law, regulation and funding requiring a change 


in the provisions of this contract. 


d) The service provider is not meeting performance on the referred and /or 


enrolled participants. 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -24-  


25. CAPTIONS 


Captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define, 


describe or limit the scope or the intent of this Agreement or any of the terms thereof. 


26. PARTIAL INVALIDITY 


If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 


void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force without 


being impaired or invalidated in any way. 


27. GENDER AND INTERPRETATION OF TERMS AND PROVISIONS 


As used in this Agreement and whenever required by the context thereof, each number, both 


singular and plural, shall include all numbers, and each gender shall include both genders. AGENCY 


as used in this Agreement or in any other document referred to in or made a part of this Agreement 


shall likewise include both singular and the plural, a corporation, a partnership, individual, firm or 


person acting in any fiduciary capacity as executor, administrator, trustee or in any other 


representative capacity or any other entity.  All covenants herein contained on the part of AGENCY 


shall be joint and several if more than one person, firm or entity executes the Agreement. 


28. WAIVER 


No waiver of any breach or of any of the covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall be 


construed to be a waiver of any other breach or to be a consent to any further or succeeding breach 


of the same or any other covenant or condition. 


29. CHOICE OF LAW  


This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. This Agreement is 


made and entered into in Imperial County, California.  To the extent permitted by law, any action 


brought by either party with respect to this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 


jurisdiction within said County. AGENCY also hereby waives the removal provisions set forth under 


California Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. 


30. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 


If either party herein brings an action to enforce the terms thereof or declare rights hereunder, 


the prevailing party in any such action, on trial or appeal, shall be entitled to its reasonable 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -25-  


attorneys’ fees to be paid by the losing party as fixed by the court. 


31. AUTHORITY 


Each of the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf of AGENCY and COUNTY 


represent and warrant that: 


31.1. He/She is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of 


AGENCY or COUNTY as applicable; 


31.2. Such execution and delivery on behalf of AGENCY is in accordance with the terms 


of the Articles of Incorporation or Partnership, any By-Laws or Resolutions of 


AGENCY; and 


31.3. Such execution and delivery on behalf of COUNTY is duly authorized by the Board 


of Supervisors and within the authority of the signatory identified below. 


31.4. This Agreement is binding upon the respective Parties in accordance with its terms. 


32. COUNTERPARTS 


This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 


33. REVIEW OF AGREEMENT TERMS 


This Agreement has been reviewed and revised by legal counsel for both COUNTY and 


AGENCY, and no presumption or rule that ambiguities shall be construed against the drafting party 


shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of the same or any subsequent amendments thereto. 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 


the day and year first above written and shall be effective as of said date. 
 
 
 
COUNTY OF IMPERIAL    AGENCY 
 
 
 
                                                                       __________     _____________________ 
WALLY LEIMGRUBER, Chairman             DR. ED GOULD, Superintendent/President 
Imperial County Board of Supervisors           Imperial Valley College 


 
 
 
/ / / 







 
 
 1 
 
 2 
 
 3 
 
 4 
 
 5 
 
 6 
 
 7 
 
 8 
 
 9 
 
 10 
 
 11 
 
 12 
 
 13 
 
 14 
 
 15 
 
 16 
 
 17 
 
 18 
 
 19 
 
 20 
 
 21 
 
 22 
 
 23 
 
 24 
 
 25 
 
 26 
 
 27 
 
 28 


 S:\Departments\WDO Workforce Development Office\Action Requests\09-1059-WDO IVC Contract Agreement- Machine and Electronic Repair 
Technician FY 09-010\Agreement IVC (Machine Electronic Repair Tech) 9.23.09       B2789 091059 WDO
 -26-  


 
 
/ / / 
 
 
/ / / 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
 
_________    ________________ 
SYLVIA BERMUDEZ, Clerk of  
the Board of Supervisors, County 
of Imperial, State of California 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
MICHAEL L. ROOD 
County Counsel 
 
 
 
________________________ 
MONICA I. DE LA HOYA 
Deputy County Counsel 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE1 


EXHIBIT “A” 
 
AGENCY: IMPERIAL VALLEY COLLEGE 
 (Machine and Electronic Repair Tech.) 
 
CONTRACT: 09-1659293-525010/09-1659293-525010 
 
PROGRAM: WIA ADULT TRAINING PROGRAM 
   MACHINE AND ELECTRONIC REPAIR TECHNICIAN 
 
 
 


OPERATION AND SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE PLAN 
 
 
 
I. Type of Training/Services 


The program will provide Machine and Electronic Repair Technician training to 
thirty-five (35) WIA eligible adult participants residing in the Imperial County. The 
program will be offered as not-for-credit with successful participants receiving a 
certificate of completion. Participants will be trained by IVC’s Electronics 
Technology program in a wide scope of modules for up to four hundred fifty 
hours (450). The program will start on September 15, 2009 and end on June 30, 
2010. The cost per participant for this program is five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00).  


 
II. Program Administration and Operation 
 


A. The Imperial County Office of Employment Training (ICWDO) and The 
Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Imperial County Workforce 
Investment Act (WIA) Adult Training Program and the agency's proposal are 
hereby incorporated by reference. Where discrepancies occur, the provisions 
of ICWDO and WDB ITA program shall prevail. 


 
B. Agency will coordinate with all One Stop Business & Employment Services 


centers in Imperial County and provide services directly from, but not limited 
to One Stop service center locations, according to need and location of youth 
enrolled in contracted program. Services will also be available to youth clients 
outside of the One Stop centers. Agency will maintain alternate hours of 
operation to ensure that all enrolled youth are served properly. 


 
C. Agency shall: 


 
1. Enroll and serve up to thirty-five (35) adults ages 18 and over residing in 


Imperial County. Participants shall not be enrolled after March 31, 2010. 
Agency shall coordinate the internal operation of the WIA Adult Training 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE2 


Program and shall enroll adults in accordance with its WIA Adult Training 
Program. 


 
2. Submit rental agreement(s) to ICWDO prior to the start of the program. 


 
3. Monitor and evaluate internally all services contracted, to include program 


enrollment and expenditures. 
 


4. Maintain files available for on-site ICWDO monitoring of document 
services listed in this contract. 


 
5. Maintain all files as outlined in the Master Agreement and ICWDO 


Bulletins. 
 


6. Develop and implement a schedule for monitoring the activities provided 
off site, maintain record of the reviews and make these records available. 


 
7. Alert ICWDO for technical assistance if any phase of the program 


operation or administration is in jeopardy of improper delivery. 
 


8. Comply with reporting, accounting, record keeping, and 
customer/participant procedures as described in ICWDO bulletins. 


 
9. Submit to ICWDO any and all agency changes in policies such as, but not 


limited to: personnel procedures, grievance procedures, affirmative action 
plan, identification of the agency's holidays, standards of conduct, dress 
code, etc. 


 
10. Comply with all Management Information Systems (MIS) and Data 


Collection filing requirements. 
 
III. Description of Service/Training to be Provided: 
 


A. Agency shall be responsible for the internal administration of WIA Training 
Program, including services, monitoring adult progress, client outcome, and 
follow-up in accordance with agency plan and as required by ICWDO. 


 
1. Linkages: Agency shall be responsible for coordinating and collaborating 


with mandatory One Stop partners, educational institutions, and 
community based organizations in order to provide the most cost efficient 
and comprehensive services to adults. All linkages and referrals made to 
outside agencies or organizations need to be monitored by the agency, 
while the participants are involved in any outside linked activity. 


 
2. Case Management: Agency should be responsible for maintaining cases 


up to date and in accordance with the participants enrolled activities. 
Agency will be responsible to ensure that participants do not have any gap 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE3 


in services that exceeds sixty (60) days in between services that are being 
provided to the participant, while enrolled in the agency’s services.  


 
3. Follow-up Services: Agency shall be responsible for follow-up services 


provided for a minimum of twelve (12) months, following the first complete 
quarter after service exit.    


 
4. Individual Development Plan (IDP): One Stop shall be responsible for 


developing an IDP for each participant. At minimum, the IDP shall include 
objective assessments and occupational goal(s). Agency is responsible for 
ensuring that the IDP is followed as a guideline for services, and make 
any changes with the assigned One Stop staff. Agency is to coordinate 
this objective with the One Stop staff. 


 
5. Enrollment: Agency shall be responsible for enrolling all adults referred 


for services by ICWDO, no later then twenty-one (21) days after the 
referral has been made. 


 
6. Selection of Participants: Agency shall serve those eligible adults who 


have been determined to be in need of services and able to benefit from 
the program. The agency may decide not to enroll any participant that the 
agency may have cause to believe that such participant would not benefit 
from its program. Adults shall also be appropriate for services as 
determined by guidelines established by WIA. Agency's primary service 
component shall be to provide services in accordance to each individual 
needs, individual assessment and Individual Development Plan (IDP). 


 
7. Characteristics (Enrollment): Agency shall attempt to serve customers 


as follows: 
 


a) Population to be served: Agency enrollments shall include the 
enrollment of up to thirty-five (35) adults in accordance with WIA 
guidance. Agency will train adults for unsubsidized employment in the 
industrial technology industry (machine and electronic repair tech.). 
Agency will provide quality training for job placement, performance 
objectives, and employment services for interested individuals. 


 
8. Program Detail: 


 
a) Minimum Requirements: Successfully pass a minimum 6th grade level 


reading and writing. Successfully pass a full screen drug test.   
 
b) Orientation: Prior to training services, agency shall conduct WIA Adult 


orientations for the purpose of informing all adults of Adult Service 
policies and procedures including: complaint, payroll, accident, time 
sheet, and safety procedures. ICWDO shall be notified at least three 
(3) days in advance of each orientation session. The objective is to 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE4 


thoroughly understand program goals, participant rights and 
responsibilities. 


 
c) Assessment: One Stop shall assess all participants enrolled in the 


program to determine their basic skills. Documentation of Sage and/or 
Tabe assessment results shall be maintained in the participant's file. 
Agency may serve participants below the assessed determinations as 
long as it is in accordance with ETPL list specifications.  


 
d) Objective Assessment:  


 
(i) Program Synopsis: This program will prepare participants for 


employment in the industrial technology field. The cost per client 
for this program will be five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 
Participants will be capable of providing services such as 
maintenance & repair of inkjet, laser printers, and faxes. 
Maintenance of wireless modems for Internet services, install 
and recover internet services for wired and wireless devices. 
Interfacing, installation of drivers to devices and networks. 
Troubleshooting computers and topics on introduction to 
electronic components; Ohm’s Law and testing of devices using 
multi meters. Participants will learn how to use test equipment 
such as oscilloscopes, frequency counters, and other testers; 
basic rules to test and replace components from a printed circuit 
board; testing security devices used in offices and industry such 
as surveillance video cameras, including maintenance and 
proper operation. Participants will learn operation of digital video 
recorders, and steps required to obtain evidence of incidents in 
formats such as MPEG and AVI; and how to transfer pictures 
and video from DVR to computer; software issues related to 
video and photo recording. 


 
(ii) Supportive Services: One Stop staff shall ensure that 


participants of this program (that are assessed and meet WDB 
Supportive Services Policy Criteria) have supportive services 
available to ensure successful completion of training and 
employment acquisition.  


 
(iii) Physical Demands: Agency and One Stop staff shall make sure 


all participants in the program are aware of the physical 
demands of this type of industry. In addition, participants shall 
express whether they feel physically capable of performing the 
duties involved in this type of occupation. 


 
 
(iv) Suitability: Agency shall ensure that participants interested in 


attending this program have the means to attend and 
successfully complete the training program without any 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE5 


interruptions. For example transportation, time availability, 
childcare, housing, ect;  


 
9. Characteristics of Training: 
 


a) Office Machine Maintenance & Repair 
Participating individuals will take an introduction to the study of Office 
Machine Equipment, such as Printers, copiers, Faces, computer repair, 
and safety skills. Participants will learn basic concepts of electricity, 
and electronics basic theories of the physical phenomena involved in 
circuitry-related devices and measurements of instruments, in order to 
be prepared for diagnostics, test, and repair of equipment found in 
offices. Participants will be able to: 
 


1. Solve problems related to scientific notation  
2.  Measure voltage, current, and resistance in electric circuits 
3. Solve problems related to Ohm’s, Kirchoff’s, Voltage Law, 


and Voltage Divider Law applied to testing of equipment. 
4. Identify and solve problems related to parallel series 


resistive electrical circuits. 
5.  Identify and solve problems related to parallel resistive 


electrical circuits. 
6.   Identify and solve problems related to series-parallel 


resistive parallel electrical circuits. 
7. Test and troubleshoot office machine equipment. 
       


Core content to be covered in all sections: 
 


i) Components, quantities, and limits 
ii) Voltage, current, and resistance in electric circuits. Safety 


techniques for handling electrical devices 
iii) OHM’s Law, Energy, Power applied to troubleshooting of 


equipment 
iv) Series resistive circuits 
v) Parallel resistive circuits. Series/Parallel configurations 
vi) Audio-Video formats and transferring files. 
vii) Repair techniques applied to Office equipment 


 
 
b) Computer Hardware Repair 


Participants will receive basic maintenance training of a computer and 
its peripherals. In addition they will also learn how to replace or repair 
CD/DVD drives, power supplies, and the main CPU mother board. 
Participants will learn the installation of software such as antivirus 
software and how to remove viruses. Also wiring tools and assembling 
of Ethernet cables. Instructions on testing and diagnose of small 
electronic motors using multi meters. Included in the training will be 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE6 


safety rules, maintenance of small electronic motors, step motors 
diagnostic and repair. Participants will be able to: 
 


1) Measure the indicator ability to store electromagnetic energy 
in small electrical motors. 


2) Solve problems related to AC series, AC Parallel, and AC 
series-Parallel RL circuits. 


3) Measure the transformer ability to increase/decrease voltage 
& current amplitudes. 


4) Verify the PN junction semiconductor behavior. 
5) Test and repair circuit related to diodes used in CPU’s. 
6) Repair computer hardware used in CPU’s such as CD-ROM 


and DVD ROM.  
7) Solve and apply power circuits related to power supplies in 


computers and laptops. 
 


Core content to be covered in all sections: 
i) Inductors 
ii) RL 
iii) RLC Circuits 
iv) Transformers 
v) Introduction to semiconductors 
vi) Diodes and applications 
vii) Computer Hardware and software 
viii) Operation of a CPU in a computer 
ix) Repair Techniques of computer hardware 
x) Repair techniques of computer software 


   
c) Power Tools & Control Systems 


This training will cover power tools and related repair, access control 
system repair, and slot machine repair. Participants will learn 
advanced concepts in power tools, electronics found in power tools 
such as op-amps, and digital logic. An emphasis will be made on 
digital interface and boards used in power tools. It will also focus on 
understanding the operation of power tools. Testing electrical wiring 
and electronic components embedded in power tools, and replacing 
damaged components. In addition participants will also learn 
maintenance and repair of electric strikes, magnetic locks, and access 
control keypads. Add and remove users to an access control system, 
locksmith and safe repair. The training will also teach the steps for 
correct diagnostics of failures in Slot machines. How to repair and 
provide maintenance to power supplies, repairing electronic pc boards, 
maintenance and repair mechanical and electromechanical parts. 
Replace damaged components or parts, test for proper operation and 
hacking, and using oscilloscopes to detect failures in pc boards.  
  


1) Analyze & interpret circuits used in slot machines with op-
amps. 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE7 


2) Explain the operation of op-amps in different configurations 
3) Apply transducers in op-amps configured for slot machines 
4) Compare and contrast the newer solid state devices, such 


as sensors and transducers. 
5) Test and repair digital design in power tools. 
6) Construct various system designs and interfacing 


arrangements. 
7) Construct and repair access control systems. 
8) Explain the characteristics of the different access control 


systems. 
9) Apply A/D and D/A converts in instrumentation circuits. 
10)  Explain how cellular phones use op-amps, A/D and D/A 


converts in their communications systems. 
11) Understand the theory of the decimal, binary, and 


hexadecimal codes, which is the essential factor in making 
digital circuits operate properly. 


12)  Analyze and remove faults from digital boards used in slot 
machines and access control systems. 


13)  Explain the operation of combinatorial circuits in different 
configurations. 


14)  Compare and contrast the newer digital logic families, such 
as HT and Ac MOS. 


15)  Testing microcomputers using the oscilloscope. 
16)  Testing software programs. 


 
Core content to be covered in all sections: 
 
     i) Number systems and codes 
     ii) Boolean Algebra and reduction techniques 


      iii) Decoders, Encoders, and Comparators 
      iv) Multiplexers and Demulitplexers 
      v) Sequential and Counter Circuits 
      vi) Microprocessor fundamentals and applications 
      vii) Testing and repairing uP’s 
      viii) Testing and repairing Slot Machines 
 
 


d) Internship 
Participants will receive One Hundred Twenty hours after completing 
training. 
 


10. Agency Performance Measures: Agency is expected to perform at 
established performance goals set by WDB. If the agency is performing 
below the established performance goals in placement of individuals into 
training related field, the agency will not receive any new participants until 
it has met the set performance goals. The performance goals are as 
follows: 


a) Placement in Employment: 70% 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE8 


b) Program Completion: 90% 
 
11. Participant Performance Measures: Any of the following constitutes a 


positive outcome.  
 


a) Adult Performance: 
 


1. Performance should be in accordance with established WDB 
performance guidelines and percentages. 


 
b) Customer satisfaction for participants.  


 
1. The State and WDB will be measuring for participant satisfaction 


through a survey. They will determine at what level participants are 
being satisfied and what improvements are needed. 


 
c) Continuous improvement. 


 
1. The agency should have continuous improvement policy in place 


and should abide by it.  
 


2. The Workforce Development Board will also be monitoring for 
compliance. 


 
d) Exits 


 
1. The agency will abide and follow the WDB and State set policy for 


exits, which can constitute a positive outcome. 
 


12. Agency shall ultimately be responsible for updating the following: 
 


a. Selection and placement of adult at worksites. 
 


b. Obtaining verification that an adult is over the age of 18 years old. If 
male must be registered for Selective Service and must have proof of 
U.S. Work Authorization and ensure that a copy is kept at the worksite, 
Agency and ICWDO office.  


 
c. Providing information to adults in regards to their career goals and 


related fields. 
 


d. Ensure that adults are placed in worksites related to their career goal 
as stated in the clients IDP and/or file, and training. 


 
e. Agency shall ensure that they will place participants at the establish 


WDB percentage goal in training related employment. 
 
IV. Fiscal: 
 


1. Agency shall submit claims for reimbursement as follows: 







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT “A” PAGE9 


 
  a)  Claims shall be submitted monthly prior to the 10th day of the month. 


 
b)  Claims for all contracts under a service provider’s Master Agreement       
shall be submitted at one time, once a month, by the 10th day of the 
month, Monday through Friday from 8:00AM to 5:00PM, unless the day 
is a holiday.  


 
c)  Claims submitted during the first five (5) calendar days of the month 
will be paid on or before the 19th day of the month. Claims submitted on 
or before the 15th day of the month will be paid on or before the last days 
of the month. ICWDO fiscal office will notify agencies when payments 
are ready for pick up. No checks will be mailed out. No checks will be 
disbursed if the person is not listed in the signature card on file.  


 
2. Pickup from ICWDO fiscal unit and deliver the resultant wage payments to 


the agency after verifying the accuracy of the payment. 
 


3. Maintain an up-to-date record of wage payments received by each adult, 
ensuring that receipt of each payment is acknowledged by the signature of 
the customer. 


 







WIA Funded
Other Sources of 
Funding


Total Program 
Funding


I.
Staff Salaries and Fringe Benefits (Attach 
breakdown)


Salaries $70,090 $70,090


Fringe Benefits $14,018 $14,018


Total Staff Salaries and Fringe Benefits 84,108$         84,108$            


II. Non Personnel (Attach breakdown)


A. Staff Travel - In County 2,100$           2,100$              


B. Staff Travel - Out of County 6,000$           6,000$              


C. Training, Training Materials and Supplies 21,125$         21,125$            


D. Equipment Furniture  Purchase 45,450$         45,450$            


E. Equipment Rental/Lease/Maintenance


F. Rent 3,500$           3,500$              


G. Utilities and Building Maintenance


H. Communications


I. Office Supplies, Printing and Reproduction 3,500$           3,500$              


J. Insurance/Bonding (Non Workers' Comp)


Agency name:  Imperial Valley College     Machine & Electronic Repair Tech. Contract


EXHIBIT "B"


WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT


Budget Proposal


Fiscal Year:  July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010


IVC/MERT EXHIBIT "B" 08.18.09







K. Audit Costs


L. Indirect Cost


M. Other Expenses (Attach breakdown) 9,000$           9,000$              


Total Non-Personnel 90,675$         90,675$            


Total Annual Salary (Fr. Jul./09-Jun/10)
WIA % of 
time WIA Salary WIA Benefits**


Total Salary and 
Benefits


19,800$                                                             100% 19,800$              3,960$            $23,760


8,250$                                                               100% 8,250$                1,650$            $9,900


52,000$                                                             40% 20,800$              4,160$            $24,960


31,200$                                                             20% 6,240$                1,248$            $7,488


60,000$                                                             25% 15,000$              3,000$            $18,000


$0 70,090$              14,018$          84,108$                  


Total Program Costs                         


174,783$      174,783$          (Staff Salaries and Fringe Benefits+ Non Personnel)  


Budget Detail                      I.  
Staff Salaries 


Title of Position 


Instructor


Intructional Assistant


Student Employment Spec.


Clerical Staff


Coordinator


TOTALS


IVC/MERT EXHIBIT "B" 08.18.09







IVC/MERT EXHIBIT "B" 08.18.09







EXHIBIT "C" 
ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATION 


 
I. GENERAL ASSURANCES 
 


A. Contractor assures that it will fully comply with the requirements of the Workforce 
Investment Act, all Federal Regulations issued pursuant to the Act, and with the Imperial 
County's Job Training Plan, as approved by the Workforce Development Board of Imperial 
County, and the State Workforce Investment Division. 


 
B. Contractor, in operating a program funded under the Act, assures that it will administer its 


program under the Job Training Plan in full compliance with safeguards against fraud and 
abuse as set forth in WIA and WIA Regulations, that no portion of its program will in any 
way discriminate against, deny benefits to, deny employment to, or exclude from participation 
any persons on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion, age, sex, handicap, or 
political affiliation or belief: that it will target employment and training services to those most 
in need of them.  


 
II. ADDITIONAL ASSURANCES 
 


Contractor hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with applicable regulations, including 
41 CFR, Part 50-100, and applicable policies, guidelines, and requirements, including OMB 
Circulars, Numbers A-133, A-128, A-21, A-122, A-87 and A-110, and with applicable Federal 
Cost Principles as they relate to the acceptance and use of Federal funds for this federally assisted 
project.  Also, contractor assures and certifies, with respect to this contract, that: 


 
A. It possesses legal authority to administer the funds; that a resolution, motion, or similar action 


as been duly adopted or passed as an official act of contractor's governing body, authorizing 
the acceptance of this contract, including all understandings and assurances contained there-
in, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of 
contractor to act in connection with the contract and to provide such additional information as 
may be required. 


 
B. It will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and provisions of WIA Section 


188 and compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) provisions in Executive 
Order (E.O.) 11246, as amended by E.O. 11375 and supplemented by the requirements of 41 
CFR part 60, no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national 
origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected 
to discrimination under any program or activity for which contractor receives Federal 
financial assistance; and will immediately take any measure necessary to effectuate this 
agreement. It will comply with Title VI prohibiting employment discrimination where (1) the 
primary purpose of the funding is to provide employment or (2) discriminatory employment 
practices will result in unequal treatment of persons who are or should be benefiting from the 
funding activity. Governmental [20 CFR 667.200 (f) and 29 CFR 97.36 (i)(3)]. Non-
Governmental [29 CFR Parts 33, 37 and 95.48 Appendix A-1]. 


 
C. It will comply with requirement of Title II (and Title III of the Uniform Relocation Assistance 


and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (PL 91-646) which provides for fair and equitable 
treatment of persons displaces as a result of Federal and federally assisted programs. (42 
U.S.C. 4601). 


 
D. It will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act, which limit the political activity of State 


and local government employees, whose principal employment activities are funded by 
Federal funds. (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508 and 7324-7328). 


 







E. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum provisions of the Federal Fair Labor 
Standards Act (29 U.S.C. 201) as they apply to employees of institutions of higher education, 
hospitals, and other nonprofit organizations as defined in these regulations. 


 
F. It will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a purpose that 


is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or 
others, particularly those with whom they have family, business, or other ties. 


 
G. It will give the County, the State, the Department of Labor (DOL) and the Comptroller 


General, through any authorized representative, the access to and the right to examine all 
records, books, papers, or pertinent documents related to the grant or agreement, including the 
records of subcontractors performing under the grant or agreement. Maintain all (3) years or 
fiscal forms, reports, and documents pertaining to this contract for at least three until audited 
and all audit findings resolved, whichever is longer, as required by WIA regulations. 
Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 (i)(10) and 29 CFR 97.36 (i)(11)]. Non-Governmental [29 CFR 
95.48 (d) and 29 CFR 95.53]. 


 
H. It will comply with all requirements imposed by the State Workforce Investment Division 


concerning special requirements of law, program requirements, and other administrative 
requirements. 


 
I. It will ensure, pursuant to E.O. 11738, that the facilities under its ownership, lease or 


supervision which shall be utilized in the accomplishment of the project are not listed on the 
Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) List of Violating Facilities and that it will notify 
the county of the receipt of any communication from the Director of the EPA Office of 
Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project is under consideration for 
listing by the EPA. 


 
J. It will assist the DOL in its Compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic 


Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 470), E.O. 11593, and the Archeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 469 a-1) by (a) consulting with the State Historic 
Preservation Office on the conduct of investigations, as necessary to identify properties listed 
in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places that are subject to 
adverse effects (CFR Part 800.8) by contractor's activity, and notifying the DOL to avoid or 
mitigate adverse effects upon such properties. 


 
K. It will comply to the extent applicable, with all requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air 


Act, (42 U.S.C. 1857) respectively, relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and 
information, as well as other requirements specified in Section 114 and Section 308 of the Air 
Act and Water Act, respectively, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder. And be 
in compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 
of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Air Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), 
E.O. 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency Regulations (40 CFR part 15). (Contracts, 
subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of $100,000). Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 
(i)(12)]. Non-Governmental [29 CFR 95.48 Appendix A-6]. 


 
L. For a non-governmental agency awarded a contract for the amount of $100,000 or more, did 


the subcontractor certify that no funds should be used for lobbying (Byrd-Anti Lobbying 
Amendment)? Governmental [20 CFR 667.200 (e) and 29 CFR 93.110]. Non-Governmental 
[20 CFR 667.200 (e) and 29 CFR Parts 93 and 95.48 Appendix A-7]. 


 
M. Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting. 


Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 (i)(7)]. 
 


N. It will comply with ICWDO’s rules, regulations, bulletins and procurement policy in the 
following aspects: administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances of contractual 







violation. (Contracts other than small purchases). Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 (i) (1)]. Non-
Governmental [29 CFR 95.48 (a)]. Termination for cause or for convenience by the grantee or 
contractor. (All contracts in excess of $10,000). Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 (i)(2)].  
Non-Governmental [29 CFR 95.48 (b)]. Condition for payments, delivery terms and process 
for agreement changes. 


 
O. It will comply with the Energy Policy Conservation Act (Public Law 96-163) the act requires 


mandatory standard and policies related to energy efficiency, which are contained in the state 
energy conservation plan. Governmental [29 CFR 97.36 (i)(13)]. 


 
P. It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102 (a) of the Flood 


Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 4106 and 4128) which requires the purchase of 
flood insurance, on and after March 2, 1974, in communities where such insurance is 
available, as a condition for the receipt of any Federal financial assistance for acquisition or 
construction purposes with respect to insurable property within an area that has been 
identified by the Secretary of the Department of Housing and Urban Development as an area 
having special flood hazards. 


 
Q. It will comply with Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. CFR part 32) which 


contains the statutes for Nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap in programs and activities 
receiving or benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance, and with all requirements imposed 
by the DOL pursuant to the regulation of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare 
(45 CFR Part 85) promulgated under the foregoing statute. Contractor agrees that, in 
accordance with the foregoing requirements, no otherwise qualified handicapped person, by 
reason of handicap shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial 
assistance, and assures that it will take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement. 


 
R. The subgrantee certifies that it will comply with the American with Disabilities Act of 1990, 


in addition to its title (29 CFR part 37) requirements, which contains the statutes for 
implementation of the Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Provisions of the Workforce 
Investment Act of 1998. 


 
S. It will comply, with E.O. 13166 and E.O. 11426, which indicate the Enforcement of title VI 


of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 by the Civil Rights Center; Policy guidance on the Prohibition 
Against National Origin Discrimination as it affects persons with limited English proficiency. 


 
T. It will comply, to the extent applicable, with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


(20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685, 1686) which provides that no person in the United States 
shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 


 
U. It will include the equal opportunity clause prescribed by E.O. 1246, as amended and will 


require that its subcontractors include the clause, in all contracts which have or are expected 
to have an aggregate value within a 12-month period exceeding $10,000, in accordance with 
DOL regulations at (41 CFR Par. 60-1.4). 


 
V. If this contract is covered by a statute providing wage standards for such work, it will include, 


and will require that its subcontractors include, the provision covering the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) set forth in by DOL regulations (29 
CFR part 5) in any nonexempt non construction contract or subcontract which involves the 
employment of mechanics and laborers (including watchmen, guards, apprentices, and 
trainees) if the contract exceeds $2,500.00. 


 
 







W. It will comply with standards for environmental quality control that may be prescribed 
pursuant to responsibilities of the Federal Government under the National Environment Policy 
Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. 4321) and E.O. 11514, Protection and Enhancement of Environmental 
Quality as amended by E. O. 1191. 


 
X. Subgrantee shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 


(Government Code, Section 12900) the regulations promulgated thereunder (California 
Administrative Code, Title 2, Section 7285), the provision of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part1, 
Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code. (Government Code, Sections 11135-11139.5) 
and the regulations or standards adopted by the subgrantor to implement such article. 


 
Y. Agency will comply with the Workforce Investment Act, Section 505, which requires 


compliance with the Buy American Act (41 U.S.C. 10a). 
 


Z. It will comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, found at 48 CFR subparts 9.4, 23.5 
and 52.2. Subcontractor must either sign a certification of a Drug Free Workplace or have it 
certified in the contract. Governmental and Non-Governmental [20 CFR 667.200 (d) and 29 
CFR 98.600-98.630]. 


 
It will comply with Sections 129, 181, 183, and 195 of the Workforce Investment Act specifically, 
but not limited to the following: 


 
1. Compliance with the provisions of the Davis- Bacon Act of March 3, 1981 (40 USC 


276a-276a-7) as supplemented by DOL regulations (29 CFR part 5). 
 


2. No funds will be utilized to assist in relocating establishments from one area to another if 
relocation will result in an increase in unemployment in affected areas. 


 
3. Training will be provided only in demand occupations within areas served or another 


area, if participants are willing to relocate. 
 


4. Programs should contribute to occupational development, upward mobility, new careers 
and overcome sex stereotyping. 


 
5. No person or organization may charge an individual a fee for the placement or referral of 


such individual in or to a training program. 
 


6. No financial assistance will be provided for any program, which involves political 
activities. 


 
7. Income generated by the program may be retained by the recipient to carryout the 


program not withstanding the expiration of financial assistance for the program. 
 


8. No funds available under this title may be used for public service employment, except as 
specifically authorized under this title. 


 
9. Compliance with health and safety standards under the Occupational Safety and Health 


Act of 1970 (OSHA) or other standards prescribed by Secretary as necessary to protect 
the health and safety of participants. 


 
10. Ensure that Workers' Compensation Insurance or alternate insurance is provided to 


participants. 
 


11. Ensure that no participation shall be employed or job opening filled (a) when any other 
individual is on layoff from the same or substantially equivalent or (b) when the 
employer has terminated the employment of any regular employee or otherwise reduced 







its workforce with the intention of filling the vacancy so created by hiring a WIA 
participant. 


 
12. Ensure that no jobs are created or openings filled in a promotional line that will infringe 


in any way upon promotional opportunities of currently employed individuals. 
 


13. Ensure that none of the funds will be used to assist, promote or deter union organizing 
and the programs shall not impair existing contracts for services or collective bargaining 
agreement. 


 
14. No funds may be used for contributing on behalf of any participants to retirement systems 


or plans. 
 


15. All individuals employed in subsidized jobs shall be provided benefits and working 
conditions at the same level and to the same extent as other employees working a similar 
length of time and doing the same type of work. 


 
16. Ensure that participants shall not be employed on the construction, operation or 


maintenance of so much of any facility as is used or to be used for sectarian instruction or 
as a place for religious worship.  Sectarian activities of any type are expressly forbidden.  
(PL 105-220 WIA Section 188 (a) (3).) 


 
III. CERTIFICATION 
 


1. Clean Air and Water Certification: 
 


The contractor certifies as follows: where a location or site of operations contain or includes 
more than one building, plant, installation, or structure, the entire location or site shall be 
deemed to be a facility except where the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, 
determines that independent facilities are collected in one geographical area. 
 
Patents and Copyrights: 
 


 Patents: 
 
Requirements and regulations pertaining to patent rights with respect to any discovery or 
invention under this contract, are subject to DOL and county requirements. Governmental [29 
CFR 97.36 (i)(8)]. Non-Governmental [29 CFR 95.36 (a-d), and 95.48, Appendix A-5]. 


 
Copyrights: 


 
Requirements and regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in data, are subject to DOL 
and county requirements. Governmental [29 CFR 97.34, 97.36 (i)(9)]. Non-Governmental [29 
CFR 95.36 (a-d), and 95.48, Appendix A-5]. 


 
2. Lobbying Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans and Cooperative Agreements: 
 


a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 


b) In any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit standard 
Form-LLL. "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions. 


 







c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all *subrecipients shall certify 
and disclose accordingly. 


 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 
31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $100,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 


 
3. Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered 


Transactions. 
 


Pursuant to E.O. 12549 and E.O. 12689, Debarment and Suspension, 29 CFR Part 98, Section 
98.510, Participants Responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 
26, 1988 Federal Register (pages 19160-19211). Governmental [20 CFR 667.200 (d) and 29 
CFR 97.35, 98.510] Non-Governmental [20 CFR 667.200 (d) and 29 CFR 95.13, 95.48 
Appendix A-8 and 98.510]. 
 
a) The prospective recipient of federal funds certifies, by submission of this proposal that 


neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
federal department or agency. 


 
b) Where the prospective recipient of federal assistance funds is unable to certify to any of 


the statements in this certification, such prospective shall attach an explanation to this 
proposal. 


 
4. Compliance with Workforce Investment Act Requirements: 


 
a) All WIA programs will be operated within the guidelines of the Workforce Investment 


Act (20 U.S.C. 9201) (Public Law 105-220, 112, Statute 936) and all other acts and 
conforming amendments, and within the guidelines of (20 CFR Part 652). Workforce 
Investment Act; and Final Rule, issued by the DOL, Employment Training 
Administration. 


 
b) It shall comply with all finalized or amended DOL regulations issued during the course of 


operation of these programs. 
 


c) It shall become a part of the county's overall WIA program service delivery system. 
 


d) It shall immediately notify WDB and ICWDO, in writing, of any changes to the Master 
Proposal. 


 
e) It shall abide by the policies detailed in the ICWDO Operation and Forms Preparation 


Manual and subsequent updates or directives issued through the Imperial County WIA 
Bulletin series. 


 
f) It shall notify ICWDO in the event of any program staff changes including terminations, 


resignations, hires, etc. 
 
 
 
 


EXHIBIT “C” 





		Agreement - 051910 - Exhibit B - Agreement IVC (Machine  Electronic Repair Tech) 9 23 09

		 WITNESSETH

		Imperial Valley College  COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 

		380 East Aten Road   Workforce Development Office

		El Centro, CA 92243    Attn: ICWDO Director

		 El Centro, CA 92243



		COUNTY OF IMPERIAL  COUNTY OF IMPERIAL 

		County Executive Office  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

		Attn: County Executive Officer Attn: Clerk of the Board

		El Centro, CA 92243    El Centro, CA 92243





		Agreement - 051910 - Exhibit B-A - Agreement IVC (Machine  Electronic Repair Tech) 9 23 09

		Agreement - 051910 - Exhibit B-B - Agreement IVC (Machine  Electronic Repair Tech) 9 23 09

		Narrative-WEX ll



		Agreement - 051910 - Exhibit B-C - Agreement IVC (Machine  Electronic Repair Tech) 9 23 09










~ICSVEBA
1398 Sperber Road' El Centro, CA 92243' TeI760.312.6464 • Fax 760.312.6565' www.icsveba.org


April 29, 2010


Travis Gregory, M. ED., SPHR
Associate Dean of Human Resources
Imperial Valley College
380 E. Aten Rd., P.O. Box 158
Imperial, CA 92251-0158


Re: Participation ICSVEBA


Dear Mr. Gregory:


This is to notify you that the ICSVEBA Board of Directors has agreed to extend an
invitation to Imperial Valley College (IVC) to participate in the Imperial County School
Voluntary Employee's Benefits Association (ICSVEBA) for health benefits effective July
1,2010, based upon certain agreed conditions. They are as follows:


1. IVC agrees to all of the provisions of the ICSVEBA Amended Trust
Agreement demonstrated by the appropriate management and labor
signatures on the designated participation agreements and memorandums
of understanding.


2. IVC understands the rates for covered participants will be on a 12 month basis
and handled as a monthly draw down by the Imperial County Office of Education
on the 21st of each month.


3. IVC also understands that due to restrictions imposed by Blue Cross of
California the ICSVEBA cannot utilize this network of providers for the first
15 months of your district's participation. This condition is unfavorable to the
ICSVEBA, since the network discounts extended by the First HealthlCCN
Network are not as deep as those offered by Blue Cross. As a result, the
ICSVEBA will surcharge IVC 5% over ICSVEBA's current billed rates. This
procedure will continue for a period of 15 months. At the end of this time, the
VEBA will conduct an informal audit and determine whether the surcharge was
adequate to compensate for the lack of Blue Cross discounts. It is intended that
any resulting surplus will be returned to IVC, likewise any short fall will be
accessed.







4. IVC agrees that post-65 retirees will not be allowed to participate in the
ICSVEBA. It is our understanding that arrangements are available to satisfy the
needs of these individuals through a Hartford fully insured medi-care supplement
program including prescription drug benefits. For ease of administration this
program will be offered as an ICSVEBA supplement plan and not be a part of
ICSVEBA's medical experience.


5. ICSVEBA is aware that currently IVC has several unique participation
agreements which have been grandfathered. IVC will work toward adhering to
the provisions of ICSVEBA.


With the above understanding, the ICSVEBA Board welcomes IVC's participation.


We look forward to a mutually beneficial working relationship.


Sincerely,


Amanda Brooke
ICSVEBA, Chair


Board of Directors
. Amanda Brooke' Ben Bustamante' Alicia Garcia' Damon Smith' Dan Eddins'


. Dana Cato . Doug Kline' Ellen Lopez' Jamie Silva' Kim Taylor'
. Mary Camacho' Ramas Morrison' Ruth Montenegro'


. Stacey Arthur' Cathy Denton' Mark Surdkya .
Broker/Consultant: E. Jack Phelps, CLU; Vice President HUB International







theAmended Agreement


Imperial County Schools Voluntary EIJnpllqyees Benefits Association


March 22, 2010







TABLE OF CONTENTS


Amended Agreement Establishing the
Imperial County Schools Voluntary Employees Benefits Association


RECITALS . 1


1. DEFINITIONS 2


1.1. Advisory Committee 2
1.2. Beneficiary 2
1.3. Collective Bargaining Agreements 2
1.4. Conflict ofInterest 2


1.5. Custodial Agent 2
1.6. Dependent . 2
1.7. Director, Board of Directors, Board 3
1.8. District, Collectively Management 3
1.9. District Contributions. 3


1.10. Employee 3
1.11. Interested Person 3


1.12. Participant 3
1.13. Participation Agreement 3
1.14. Planes) and Health and Welfare Planes) 3
1.15. Unions, Collectively Labor 4
1.16. VEBA. 4
1.17. VEBA Administrator . 4
1.18. Date of Renewal 4


1.19. VEBA Agreement 4
2. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF THE VEBA. 4


2.1. Creation 4


2.2. Purpose 4
2.3. Principal Office 4
2.4. Contributions to VEBA 4


2.5. No Right, Title, or Interest in VEBA . 5
2.6. Liability of Officers, Agents, Employees 5


2.7. Debts, Liabilities, or Obligations ofVEBA 5
3. PARTICIPATION AND WITHDRAWAL 5


3.1. Beneficiaries . 5
3.2. School Districts ad Contributors 5


3.3. Acceptance of Districts of Participation 5
3.4. Board Approval of District not Subject to Collective Bargaining 6
3.5. Initial Three Year Term 6
3.6. Automatic Renewal and Withdrawal. 6
3.7. Intent to Withdraw 6


3.7.1. First Three Months Following Withdrawal 6
3.7.2. First Month Following Withdrawal . 6


Rev. 4/27/2010







3.7.3 Enrolled Headcounts .


3.8. After July 1, 2009 Groups
3.8.1 Upon Renewal


4. CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE VEBA
4.1. Member Contributions


4.2. Custodial Agent
4.3. Delinquencies.
404. Interest.


4.5. Employee Contributions
4.6. District Contributions.


5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
5.1. Commencement Date.


5.1.1. Labor Directors


5.1.2. Classified and Certificated Employees' Directors
5.1.3. Certificated and Classified Alternate Directors


5.2. Management Directors and Alternates
5.3. Alternate Directors Voting Restrictions
504. Appointment of Directors
5.5. Directors as Fiduciaries


5.6. Designated in Writing.
5.7. Chairperson, Co-Chairperson.
5.8. Term of Office


5.9. Directors Resignations
5.10. Removal from Office.


5.11. Appointment of Successor Director
5.12. Return of Property Upon Resignation or Removal
5.13. Vacancies


5.14. Reimbursement of Expenses .
5.15. Paid Release Time


6. POWERS & DUTIES OF BOARD AND ADVISORY COMMITTEE
6.1. The Board of Directors


6.1.1 Powers and Authority.
6.1.2. Custodial Agent
6.1.3. Specific Authority


6.1.3.1. Direct Negotiations with Health Care Providers
6.1.3.2. Provision of Benefits
6.1.3.3. Bids for Consultants .
6.1.3 A. Bids for Insurance
6.1.3.5. Coordination with Other VEBAS
6.1.3.6. Cost Estimates of Benefits


6.104. Collection of Contributions .


6.1.5. Use and Application ofVEBA
6.1.5.1. Necessary Expenses, Payment of
6.1.5.2. Provision of Health and Welfare Benefits
6.1.5.3. Establishment and Accumulation of Reserves


6
7
7
7
7
7
7
8
8
8
8
8
8
8
8


8


8
8
9
9
9
9
9
9
10
10
10
10
10
10
10
11
11
11
11
11
11
11
11
11
12
12
12
12
12


Rev. 4/27/2010







6.1.5.4. Other Reasonable Expenses .
6.1.5.5. Payment of Premiums.
6.1.5.6. Adoption of Rules and Regulations
6.1.5.7. Administrative Expenses and Disbursements.


6.1.6. Exercise Rights and Privileges of Policyholder
6.1. 7. Investment Authority .
6.1.8. Allocation of Duties to Committees .


6.1.9. Appointment of Investment Manager.
6.1.10. Investment Policies and Guidelines .


6.1.11. Allocation of Fiduciary Responsibilities to Committees
6.1.12. Employment and Contracting.
6.1.13. Bonding Requirements
6.1.14. Errors and Omissions, Liability Insurance
6.1.15. Annual Audits.


6.1.16. Legal Actions.
6.1.17. Maintaining Records
6.1.18. Prudent Person Standard


6.1.19. Protection of Property.
6.1.20. Annual Reporting Requirements
6.1.21. Other Authority to Fulfill Mission
6.1.22. Conflicts of Interest .


6.2. The Advisory Committee
6.2.1. Representatives
6.2.2. Bi-Annual Meetings
6.2.3. Functions
6.2.4. Term of Office


6.3 The Technical Committee


6.3.1 Representatives
6.3.2 Term of Office


6.3.3 Meetings
6.3.4 Functions


6.4 The Wellness Committee


6.4.1 Representatives
6.4.2 Term of Office


6.4.3 Meetings
6.4.4 Functions


7. PROCEDURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS


7.1. Meetings
7.2. Secretary
7.3. Quorum
7.4. Voting.
7.5. Joint Administration, Equal Representation
7.6. Open Meetings Except as to Closed Sessions.
7.7. Acting Without a Meeting


8. GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO DIRECTORS
8.1. Instruments


12
12
12
13
13
13
13
14
14
14
14


I 14
14
15
15
15
15
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
16
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
17
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18
18


Rev. 4/27/2010







8.2. Express Provisions of Agreement to Govern Duties.
8.3. No Personal Liabilities Authorized to be Incurred by Directors
8.4. Validity of Agreement
8.5. District or Union Liability for Directors' Acts and Omissions
8.6. Signature of Directors.
8.7. Disputes re Payment of Contributions.


9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION


9.1. Deadlock Between Management and Labor Directors
9.2. Declaration of Deadlock


9.3. Adoption of Motion or Resolution - Deadlock.
9.4. Other Disputes - Establishment of Fact-Finding Panel


9.4.1. Labor.


9.4.2. Management.
9.4.3. Neutral Third Party
9.5. Selection of Neutral Third Party


9.6 Selection of Arbitrator in Absence of Neutral Third Party
9.7 Unresolved Disputes Documented in Writing.
9.8. Fact-Finding Panel Bound by Written Agreement
9.9. Collective Bargaining Agreements Not Subject to Arbitration
9.10. Fact-Finding Panel Decisions Advisory Only.
9.11. Implementation of Decision of Fact-Finding Panel
9.12. Fees and Expenses of Fact-Finding Panel
9.13. Appointment of Neutral-Third Party .


10. GENERAL PROVISIONS


10.1. Rights and Duties Governed by Agreement
10.2. Claims to Benefits by Employees, Participants, Beneficiaries.
10.3. Mail or personal Delivery as Valid Service
10.4. Governing Law.
10.5. Illegality or Invalidity of Provisions
10.6. Medical Records
10.7. Confidential Medical Records of Individuals
10.8. Execution in Counter-Parts


11. AMENDMENT, MERGER AND TERMINATION
11.1. Amendment or Modification in Writing
11.2. Continuation ofVEBA upon Cessation of Participation
11.3. Merging with Other Similar Funds
11.4. Termination


11.5. Remaining Money


Board of Directors Signature Page .


19
19
20


20


20


20
20
20


20


20


20


20


20


21
21
21
21
21
21
21
21
21
22


22
22


22


23
23
23
23
23
23
24
24
24
24
24
24


. 24


Rev. 4/27/2010







Amended Agreement Establishing the
Imperial County Schools Voluntary Employees Benefits Association


This agreement and declaration made and entered into the First day of October 1997,
and amended on June 6, 2000, November 18, 2002, February 24,2003, November 26,2007,
and March 22, 2010 by and between the participating Unites) and Chapter(s) (hereinafter
"Union Participants"), and the School District and/or Community College District(s)
(hereafter "District Participants") as listed below:


Calipatria Unified School District
El Centro Elementary School District


Heber Elementary School District
Imperial County Office of Education


Imperial Valley Regional Occupational Program (IVROP)
McCabe Union Elementary School District


Meadows Union School District


Mulberry School District
San Pasqual Unified School District


Seeley Union School District


RECITALS


A. The Union Participants and the District Participants desire to provide health
and welfare benefits as defined in Sections 3543.2 and 53200 of the California


Government Code for Employees of the Districts and their dependents on an
insured or self-funded basis through a voluntary employee's benefits
association qualified for tax exempt status under Section 501 (c) (9) of the
Internal Revenue Code.


B. The Union Participants and the District Participant are parties to collective
bargaining agreements which require contributions by the District Participants
to the Imperial County Schools Voluntary Employees Benefits Association for
the purpose of providing health and welfare benefits for eligible employees,
retired employees, and dependents.


C. The amount of contributions as aforesaid shall be as set forth in the Collective


Bargaining Agreements and Participation Agreements.


D. The mission of the VEBA shall be to establish, through the cooperative efforts
of school employers and school employee unions, a comprehensive health and
benefits program for every eligible school employee in Imperial County at the
most efficient cost achievable through unity of design, purchase and
administration.


Page 1 of 25







E. It is intended that all participants will become part of a single risk pool
without experience rating for individual districts or groups.


1. DEFINITIONS


Unless the context or subject matter otherwise requires, the following definitions
shall govern this Agreement:


1.1. The term Advisory Committee means the group of District and Union
representatives selected from District management and exclusive
representatives responsible for serving as a direct communication link
between the Board of Directors and school employees and beneficiaries.
Those districts not bargaining pursuant to California Government Code
section 2540 et seq. shall also be entitled to representation on the Advisory
Committee selected from District Management and Labor Organizations or
representative groups of employees. The Advisory committee shall be
composed of one management representative [or designee], and one
representative from each employee unit participating in the VEBA.


1.2. The term Beneficiary means an eligible person designated by a Participant or
by the terms of the Planes) who is or may become entitled to a benefit
hereunder.


1.3. The term Collective Bargaining Agreement(s) means the agreement entered
into by each District and an exclusive representative of a bargaining unit in
the District, pursuant to California Government Code 3540 et seq., and any
extensions, amendments, modifications, or renewals of the Collective
Bargaining Agreement, or any successor agreement which provide for
participation in this VEBA.


1.4. The term Conflict of Interest means any financial or legal impediment to the
free exercise of judgment on the behalf of the VEBA. A director or an
employee shall be free from compromising influences and loyalties. A
director or an administrative employee of the VEBA shall fulfill his or her
responsibilities solely on behalf of the mission of the VEBA. It is not
intended that directors appointed by or paid salaries by school employers or
unions who serve school employees shall be prohibited from serving by any
conflict of interest policy.


1.5. The term Custodial Agent means the person or entity appointed for the
purpose specified in this Agreement and meeting the Qualifications set forth
in section 4.2.


1.6. The term Dependent means any person entitled to receive benefits through an


Page 2 of 25







eligible employee or retiree by a collective bargaining agreement or
participation agreement. The restrictions on dependent eligibility shall be
determined by the carrieres) andlor Board of Directors.


1.7. The term Director means a person designated as Director pursuant to section
5 of this Agreement and successors of such person from time to time in
office. The terms Board of Directors and Board means the Board established
by section 5 of this Agreement.


1.8. The term District means any Imperial County Public School District or
Community College, and the Imperial County Office of Education.
Collectively, Districts are referred to as Management.


1.9. The term District Contributions means payments made or required to be
made to the VEBA in accordance with Collective Bargaining or Participation
Agreements.


1.10. The term Employee means any person included in the bargaining unit, as
defined by California Government Code sections 3540 et seq., within each
District, and any other officer or employee of the District, including current
or former Governing Board members, whether or not covered by a collective
bargaining agreement, or employees of the VEBA, provided such employee
is covered by a Participation Agreement. Persons retired from employment
with any of the Districts, persons serving or having served on the Governing
Board of any of the Districts and other persons as permitted under effective
collective bargaining or participation agreements are also included in the
term Employee.


1.11. Interested Person means an employee of an Imperial County School District
or Community College, an elected school or community college board
member, or a representative of an employee organization, and invited guests
of the VEBA.


1.12. The term Participant means any person who is eligible to receive a benefit of
any type from this VEBA or whose beneficiaries may be eligible to receive
any such benefit.


1.13. The term Participation Agreement means a written agreement between the
Directors and a District and a Union or a written agreement between the
Directors and a District providing for participation in this VEBA and planes)
for an employee and lor of the District.


1.14. The term Plan(s) or Health and Welfare Plan(s) means the benefits provided
by this VEBA and selected pursuant to the terms of the Collective Bargaining
or Participation Agreements.


Page 3 of 25







1.15. The term Unions means those Chapters or Locals of the Union Participants
that have entered into Collective Bargaining Agreements. The term shall also
include any other Employee organization as defined by California
Government Code Section 3540.1 which is partly to a Collective Bargaining
Agreement and is approved by the Directors to participate in this VEBA.
Collectively, Unions are referred to as Labor.


1.16. The term VEBA means the entity created and established by this Agreement
and the assets of the VEBA.


1.17. The term VEBA Administrator means the party responsible for the
administration of the VEBA.


1.18. The term date of renewal means the first day of October for each year for the
duration of this VEBA Agreement.


1.19. The term VEBA Agreement means this Agreement establishing the Imperial
County Schools Voluntary Employees Benefits Association together with any
amendments and modification thereto.


1.20. The term Wellness Committee means members of the Board of Directors that


are selected to review a district's proposed wellness plan and their request for
ICSVEBA matching funds to implement said plans. The committee should
have members representing Management and Labor. The committee will
have no binding authority, but will recommend accepting or rejecting subject
district's request.


2. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF THE VEBA


2.1. There is hereby created the Imperial County Schools Voluntary Employees
Benefits Association which shall consist of all contributions made into the


VEBA by the Districts and all interest, income, and other returns thereon of
any kind whatsoever, together with all property and assets of the VEBA.


2.2. The VEBA, and the Planes) established pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
used for the purpose of providing health and welfare benefits as defined in
Sections 3543.2 and 51200 of the California Government Code and as


provided in the Collective Bargaining Agreements, or in Participation
Agreements; and the VEBA shall further provide for financing the operation
and administration of the VEBA, in accordance with this Agreement.


2.3. The VEBA shall have its principal office at the Imperial County Office of
Education, 1398 Sperber Road, El Centro, California 92243, in Imperial
County, California.


2.4. Contributions to the VEBA shall not constitute or be deemed wages due to


Page 4 of 25







the Employees with respect to whose work such payments are made and no
Employee shall be entitled to receive any part of the contributions made or
required to be made to the VEBA in lieu of the benefits provided by the
Health and Welfare Planes).


2.5. Neither the Districts nor the Unions nor any Employee, nor any other person
shall have any right, title or interest in the VEBA other than specifically
provided in this VEBA Agreement and no part of the VEBA shall revert to
the District or the Unions. Neither the VEBA, nor any contributions to the
VEBA shall be in any manner liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, or
liabilities of the Districts, the Unions, or any Employee. No part of the
VEBA, nor any benefits payable in accordance with the Health and Welfare
Planes) shall be subject in any manner to anticipation, alienation, sale,
transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, or charge by any person.


2.6. No officer, agent or employee of the District shall be under any liability to
the VEBA or the Health and Welfare Planes), except to the extent that an
individual may incur liability as a director as hereinafter provided. The
liability of the District to the VEBA, or the Health and Welfare Planes), shall
be limited to the payments required by this Agreement, the Collective
Bargaining Agreement and Participation Agreements. Districts shall not be
required to make any further payments or contributions to the cost of the
operation of the VEBA or of the Health and Welfare Planes), except as may
be hereafter provided in this Agreement, the Collective Bargaining
Agreements or Participation Agreements.


2.7. Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, the Collective Bargaining
Agreements, or Participation Agreements neither the Districts nor the Unions
nor any Employees shall be liable or responsible for any debts, liabilities, or
obligations of the VEBA or the Directors.


3. PARTICIPATION AND WITHDRAWAL


3.1. Beneficiaries of this VEBA shall be limited to officers and employees,
district governing board members, and retirees of Imperial County public
school districts and community college districts and their dependents.


3.2. Only Imperial County public school districts and community college districts
that satisfy the requirements of this Agreement may contribute to this VEBA.
Any agreement reached is between the district and the VEBA. No group may
participate without both the approval of the District and the VEBA Board of
Directors.


3.3. A District or a group within a District must be accepted for participation by
the Directors and must execute a Participation Agreement before it may
contribute to the VEBA.


Page 5 of 25







3.4. A District with employees not subject to the terms of a Collective Bargaining
Agreement can participate in the VEBA provided that the Board of Directors
approves their participation.


3.5. Each District participating in VEBA shall be bound by the terms of this
agreement for an initial term of three (3) years. No District shall withdraw
from VEBA during this initial three-year term


3.6. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed with each District for
succeeding terms of two (2) years each unless, at least ninety (90) days prior
to the date of renewal, a District provides written notice of its intent to
withdraw from VEBA. A District's notice of its intent to withdraw from


VEBA shall be personally delivered to VEBA's principal offices. This section
3.6. is the exclusive method of withdrawing from VEBA and any notice of
intent to withdraw that does not comply with this section 3.6. shall not be
effective.


3.7. A District notifying VEBA of its intent to withdraw from VEBA shall, in
addition to any other payment that may be required by 4.3 or 4.4 or any other
provision of this Agreement, pay to VEBA the sums equal to the following
amounts:


3.7.1. For each of the three (3) months following withdrawal from VEBA
multiply the in force (current) claim factors increased by 15% (to
accommodate for the risk corridor). These rates times the emolled
headcount by tier in effect on the first of the month of the last month
of coverage total the maximum run out liability for the terminating
group.


3.7.2. Administrative costs (as set by the current Third Party Administrator)
for each employee, spouse and dependent covered on the first day of
the last month prior to withdrawal from VEBA.


3.7.3. If emolled headcounts vary by more than 25%, the VEBA board
retains the right to calculate the termination cost based on the average
headcount for the last three months of the District's participation in
the VEBA.


A final invoice will be generated by the administrator and delivered
via U.S. mail to the District as soon as headcounts are available.


This amount is due in a lump sum as final payment and is considered
past due if received later than 31 days after the date of termination. A
late fee may be assessed at the discretion of the Board of Directors.


Page 6 of 25







3.8 In addition to the other requirements of Section 3, Districts or Bargaining
Groups joining after July 1 2009, shall be responsible for their pro rata share
of any decrease in the VEBA reserves over the period in which they were
participating. Pro rata share shall be determined by dividing such loss, at the
time of the District's withdrawal, by the total number of employees covered
by the VEBA and then multiplying said number by the average number of
employees covered by the withdrawing District. This amount is due in a
lump sum as final payment and is considered past due if received later than
31 days after the date of termination. A late fee may be assessed at the
discretion of the Board of Directors.


3.8.1 The provision of Section 3.8 shall not apply if the District or Bargaining
Group renews following the initial three year participation period.


4. CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE VEBA


4.1. In order to effectuate the purposes thereof, each District shall contribute to
the VEBA in a manner directed by the Board of Directors, the amount
required by the Collective Bargaining Agreements and any Participation
Agreement. The rate of District contributions shall be governed at all times
by the Collective Bargaining Agreement or Participation Agreements
together with any amendments or modifications thereto.


4.2. Contributions to the VEBA shall be paid directly to such Custodial Agent as
designated by the Board of Directors, qualified and doing business in
California, and subject to the supervision of the Superintendent of Banks or
the Controller of the Currency of the State of California, or to a bank
designated by the Board of Directors, which is a member of a Federal
Reserve Bank.


4.3. Each contribution to the VEBA shall be made promptly by the date specified
in the Participation Agreement, and if such payment is not made by the
specified date, it shall be considered delinquent. The parties recognize and
acknowledge that the regular and prompt payment of District contributions to
the VEBA is essential to the maintenance and effectiveness of the Health and


Welfare Planes) and that it would be extremely difficult to fix the actual
expense and damage to the VEBA and to the Health and Welfare Planes)
which would result from the failure of any District to pay such contributions
in full within the time specified. Therefore, the amount of damage to the
VEBA or Plans) resulting from any such failure in any month shall be
presumed to be the entire amount payable and interest at the rate of 2%
higher than the most recent quarterly investment rate paid to school districts


Page 7 of 25







in Imperial County, which amount shall become due and payable to the
VEBA by the District as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, at the place
where the contributions are payable upon the day immediately following the
date on which the contribution becomes delinquent and shall be in addition to
the amount 'Ofsaid delinquent contribution; provided, however, the Board of
Directors may waive payment of any said liquidated damages in a particular
case upon good cause satisfactory to the Board of Directors being
established. (See 6.1.4.).


4.4. Interest shall be charged on delinquent District contributions at the interest
rate prescribed in 4.3. above; i.e. 2% higher than the most recent quarterly
investment rate paid to school districts in Imperial County. (See 6.1.4.).


4.5. Employee contributions may be accepted in accordance with the terms of the
Planes) and Participation Agreements, and/or Collective Bargaining
Agreements, subject to the approval of the Directors.


5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS


5.1. Commencing on October 1. 1997, the operation and administration of the
VEBA Shall be the responsibility of a Board of Directors constituted as set
forth herein:


5.1.1. Six (6) Labor Directors shall be appointed by the State Affiliate of the
local unions participating in the VEBA.


5.1.2. There shall be three (3) Directors representing classified employees
and three (3) Directors representing certificated employees.


5.1.3. One (1) Certificated Alternate Director and one (1) Classified
Alternate Director shall be selected by the participating certificated
and classified chapters.


5.2. Six (6) Management Directors and two (2) Alternates shall be appointed,
each from a District that participates in the VEBA.


5.3. Alternate Directors shall be invited to participate in any meeting, but shall be
entitled to vote only in the absence of one of the Directors.


5.4. Appointing authorities shall use their best efforts to appoint Directors who
have experience or expertise in investment, health and welfare trusts,
union/management relations, or health service delivery, and are free from any
conflict of interest created by such appointment. Every effort will be made by
both Labor and Management to diversify their selection of Directors and
Alternates to insure the broadest possible representation by participating


Page 8 of 25







districts.


5.5. The District(s) and Labor expressly designate the Directors as fiduciaries,
who shall have exclusive authority and discretion acting as the Board of
Directors as provided herein to control and manage the operation and
administration of the VEBA and the Planes). Each of the initial Directors
expressly accepts designation as a fiduciary and as a Director by the written
acceptance and signature of this Agreement and assumes the duties,
responsibilities and obligations of Director as created and established by this
Agreement and under applicable law, Any Director named hereafter shall do
likewise by signing the Agreement or a written acceptance thereof, in a form
approved by and filed with the Board of Directors.


5.6. The Management Directors shall be designated in writing by the represented
districts. The Labor Directors shall be designated in writing by the appointing
Unions.


5.7. The Directors shall select one of their members to act as Chairperson of the
Board of Directors and one to act as Co-Chairperson, to serve for a term of
two (2) years or such other period as the Directors shall determine. When the
Chairperson is selected from among the Labor Directors, the Co-Chairperson
shall be selected from among, the Management Directors, and vice-versa.
The Chairperson of the Board of Directors shall be rotated between
Management and Labor Directors.


5.8. Each Director shall serve a term of three (3) years except in instances of
death, incapacity, resignation, inability to serve, removal from office, or until
a successor is designated as provided in this Agreement. Directors may be
reappointed by the appointing authority.


5.9. A Director may resign at any time by serving written notice of such
resignation, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date on which such
resignation is to become effective, upon the Chairperson and Co-Chairperson
of the Board of Directors.


5.10. Any Management Director may be removed from office at any time for any
reason through an instrument in writing, signed by the represented district(s)
and served on the Director concerned, the Chairperson, and the Co
Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Any Labor Director may be removed
from office at any time for any reason by an instrument signed by the
appointing union and served upon the Director concerned, the Chairperson
and Co-Chairperson of the Board of Directors.


It is expected that Directors will attend at least 70% of the regularly
scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors in any plan year. (October 1st 
September 30th,) Any Director who does not attend at least 70% of the


Page 9 of 25







regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors during any plan year
will be removed from office unless there are extenuating circumstances
which the Board of Directors may consider upon request of the Director to be
removed. Such requests must be submitted in writing to the Chairperson prior
to the next regularly scheduled meeting from the date of proposed removal
from office.


5.11. If any Management Director dies, resigns, or is removed from office, a
successor Director shall be appointed forthwith by an instrument in writing,
signed by the Districts and delivered to the Chairperson and Co-Chairperson
of the Board of Directors. If any Labor Director dies, resigns, or is removed
from office, a successor Director shall be appointed forthwith by an
instrument in writing signed by Labor and delivered to the Chairperson and
Co-Chairperson.


5.12. Any Director who resigns or is removed from office shall forthwith turn over
to the Chairperson or the Co-Chairperson of the Board of Directors at the
principal office of the VEBA any and all records, books, documents monies,
and other properties which belong to the VEBA or which were received by
such Director in his or her capacity as such Director.


5.13. No vacancy or vacancies in the offices of the Directors shall impair the power
of the remaining Directors acting in the manner herein provided to administer
this VEBA.


5.14. The Directors shall not be reimbursed for their services by the VEBA, but
directors shall be reimbursed by the VEBA for all reasonable expenses
properly and actually incurred in connection with the performance of their
official duties as Directors, as authorized by the Board of Directors.


5.15. Directors and Alternates shall be provided paid release time during their
regular working hours by their respective districts for performance of their
duties during normal working hours.


6. POWER AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ADVISORY
COMMITTEE


6.1. The Board of Directors


Board of Directors shall have the power to administer the VEBA
and to administer and maintain the Planes) in effect. A schedule of
benefits and a statement of the basis on which health and welfare


benefits are to be paid shall be described in writing. The Board of
Directors shall have the authority to design alternative benefit plans
and schedules of benefits and may at any time upon reasonable notice
or upon ninety (90) days notice, amend or modify the existing Health


Page 10 of 25







and Welfare Planes).


In addition, the Board of Directors shall amend or modify the existing
Health and Welfare Planes) when the contributions to the VEBA and
reserves of the VEBA are insufficient to maintain the Planes) selected
by the parties at the time of negotiations. This is providing such
action shall not be taken until the Districts and the Unions are


provided at least forty-five (45) days advance notice of such changes.
The Board of Directors shall not be permitted to accept contributions
from any district under any Collective Bargaining Agreement or
Participation Agreement which contains terms inconsistent with this
Agreement.


6.1.2. The Board of Directors shall enter into an agreement with a Custodial
agent for the purpose of receiving, holding, and disbursing the assets
of the VEBA.


6.1.3. In furtherance of the administration of the VEBA and Planes) the
Directors shall use the Authority of their office:


6.1.3.1. To enter into direct negotiations with local health care
providers in order to obtain alternate rates or payment as
allowed by Sections 1013, 10401 and 11512, of the
California Insurance Code, if such negotiation by the
Board of Directors is deemed legally permissible;


6.1.3.2. To provide benefits within the Planes) which encourage
the concepts of prevention and wellness, as well as
traditional health care for illness;


6.1.3.3. To entertain bids for the procurement of accounting, legal,
investment, consulting, and administrative services and
coordinate those processes with other similar
organizations;


6.1.3.4. To entertain bids for the procurement of insurance
policies, and at all times endeavor to provide the best
benefit plans for the least cost to the VEBA;


6.1.3.5. To coordinate with other VEBA's or similar organizations
to provide any of the benefits specified in the Planes);


6.1.3.6. To provide to the negotiating parties cost estimates
concerning existing schedules of benefits or any
alternative benefit specifications requested by the Union of
District representatives.


Page 11 of 25







6.1.4. The Board of Directors shall have power to demand and enforce the
prompt payment of contributions to the VEBA, as required by this
agreement, the Collective Bargaining Agreements or any other written
agreement requiring contributions to the VEBA, delinquent payments,
and liquidated damages as provided in Section 4.3., and interest as
provided in 4.4. If a District defaults in the making of such
contributions or payments and if it becomes necessary for the Board
of Directors to consult legal counsel with respect thereto, or if the
Board of Directors files any suit or claim with respect thereto, there
shall be added to the obligations of the District for interest and
liquidated damages as provided herein, reasonable attorneys' fees,
court costs, and all other reasonable expenses incurred by the Board
of Directors in connection with such suit or claim, provided the Board
of Directors prevails in such litigation.


6.1.5. The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to use and
apply the VEBA for the following purposes:


6.1.5.1. To payor provide for the payment of all reasonable and
necessary expenses: (i) of collecting District contributions
and payments and other monies and property to which they
may be entitled, and (ii) of administering the affairs of this
VEBA, including the employment of such administrative,
legal, accounting, expert, and clerical assistance, the
purchase or lease of such premises, materials, supplies and
equipment, and performance of such other acts, as the
Directors find necessary or appropriate in the performance
of their duties.


6.1.5.2. To provide health and welfare benefits in such amounts
and forms as in the discretion of the Directors shall be


deemed most beneficial, advantageous, and desirable from
the standpoint of District contributions and VEBA assets
available for such purposes, consistent with Section 5.1.
above.


6.1.5.3. To establish and accumulate such reserve funds as the


Board of Directors in its sale discretion deems necessary
and desirable for the proper execution ofthe VEBA.


6.1.5.4. To pay all other reasonable, proper, and necessary
expenses not specified above, incurred by any Directors,
including the cost of defense in litigation arising out of the
Directorship of this VEBA, which is not a result of willful
misconduct or bad faith, to the extent permitted by law.


Page 12 of 25







6.1.5.5. To payor provide for the payment of premiums on the
contracts or policies or insurance or fees on service
provider agreements, which contracts or policies of
insurance shall be contracted for in the name of the VEBA.


6.1.5.6. To compromise, settle, or release claims or demands in
favor of or against the VEBA on such terms and
conditions as the Board of Directors may deem desirable:
provided, however, that this clause shall not excuse any
violation of this Agreement.


6.1.5.7. To adopt rules and regulations for the administration of the
VEBA or the Planes) which are not inconsistent with the
terms and intent ofthis Agreement and such Planes).


6.1.5.8. To make appropriate allocations of common
administrative expenses and disbursements shared or to be
shared by the VEBA and any other similar and such
Planes).


6.1.6. The Board of Directors may exercise all rights and privileges granted
to the policyholder by the provisions of each contract or policy of
insurance which they may deem necessary or advisable.


6.1.7. The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to invest
and reinvest such funds as are not necessary for current expenditures
or liquid reserves, as they may from time to time determine, in such
investments as are legal investments under applicable law. The Board
of Directors shall also have power and authority (in addition to, and
not in limitation of common law and statutory authority) to invest in
any such stocks, bonds, or own property real or personal, including
improved or unimproved real estate and equity interests in real estate,
where such as investment appears to the Board of Directors, in its
discretion and consistent with its fiduciary obligations, to be in the
best interest of the VEBA and the Employees, judged by the then
prevailing business conditions and standards. The Board of Directors
shall have the authority, in respect to any stocks, bonds, or other
property, real or personal, held by them as Directors; to exercise all
such rights, power, and privileges as might be lawfully exercised by
any person owning similar stocks, bonds, or other property in their
own right.


6.1.8. The Board of Directors is authorized, in its discretion by resolution, to
allocate to a committee such duties and responsibilities to invest and
reinvest such VEBA assets as it shall specify in such allocation.


Page 13 of 25







6.1.9. The Board of Directors shall have the power and authority to appoint
one or more investment managers who shall be responsible for the
management, acquisition, disposition, investing, and reinvesting of
such of the assets of the VEBA as the Board of Directors shall


specify. Any such appointment may be terminated by the Board upon
thirty (30) days written notice. The fees of such investment manager,
and its expenses to the extent permitted by law, shall be paid out of
the VEBA.


6.1.10. In connection with any allocation or delegation of investment
functions under paragraphs 6.1.8. and 6.1.9. of this Section, the
Board of Directors shall, from time to time, adopt appropriate
investment policies or guidelines.


6.1.11. The Directors may, by resolution, bylaw, or by provisions of this
Agreement allocate fiduciary responsibilities and various
administrative duties to committees or subcommittees of the Board


of Directors and the Directors may delegate such responsibilities and
duties to other individuals as they may deem appropriate or
necessary in their sole discretion.


6.1.12. The Board of Directors may employ or contract as it deems
necessary, consistent with the purposes of the VEBA, including but
not limited to the services of an individual, firm, or corporation, to
be known as the VEBA Administrator who shall, under the direction
of the Directors, or under the direction of any other appropriate
committee of the directors, administer the office of offices of the
VEBA and of the Directors, coordinate and administer the
accounting, bookkeeping, and clerical services, provide for the
coordination of actuarial services furnished by the consulting
actuary, prepare (in cooperation where appropriate, with the
consulting actuary and independent auditor) all reports and other
documents to be prepared, filed, or disseminated by or on behalf of
the VEBA in accordance with the law, assist in the collection of
District contributions required to be paid to the VEBA, and perform
such other duties and furnish such other services as may be assigned,
delegated, or directed or as may be contracted by or on behalf of the
Directors. The VEBA Administrator shall be the Custodian on
behalf of the Directors of all documents and other records of the
Directors and the VEBA.


6.1.13. The Directors and such other employees of the VEBA who handle
the monies of the VEBA shall be bonded in such amounts as the


Board of Directors deem reasonable, and such bonds shall be in
compliance with any applicable state law. The cost of such bonds


Page 14 of 25







shall be paid for by the VEBA. The Board of Directors shall, from
time to time, review the amounts of such bonds and require such
adjustments in their amounts as are appropriate.


6.1.14. The Directors may, in their discretion, obtain and maintain policies
of insurance, to the extent permitted by law, to insure themselves,
the VEBA as such, as well as employees or agents of the Directors
and of the VEBA, while engaged in business and related activities
for and on behalf of the VEBA; (1) with respect to liability as a
result of errors or omissions of such Director or Directors,
employees or agents respectively, and (2) with respect to injuries
received or property damage suffered by them. The cost of the
premiums for such policies of insurance shall be paid out of the
VEBA. The cost of the premiums for Individual waiver of recourse
insurance shall be paid for by each individual board member.


6.1.15. The books of account and records of the Board of Directors,
including the books of account and records pertaining to the VEBA,
shall be audited at least once a year by a qualified certified public
accountant to be selected by the Board of Directors. The Board of
Directors shall also make any other reports required by law. A
statement of the results of the annual audit shall be available for


inspection by interested persons, including any officer or employee
of any District, at the principal office of the VEBA and at such other
suitable places as the Board of Directors may designate from time to
time. Copies of such statement shall be made available to the
Unions, the Districts and each Director within thirty (30) days after
the statement is prepared and presented to the Board of Directors.


6.1.16. The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time to have a judicial
settlement of its accounts and to seek judicial protection by any
action or proceeding it determines necessary and, further, to obtain a
judicial determination or declaratory judgment as to any question of
construction of this Agreement or for instructions as to any questions
relating to the discharge of its duties and obligations under or in
connection with the administration of the VEBA as to the


distribution of assets belonging to the VEBA. Any such
determination, decision, or judgment shall be binding upon all
parties to, or claiming under this Agreement.


6.1.17. The Board of Directors shall maintain or have maintained suitable


and adequate records of and for the administration of the VEBA and
P1an(s). The Board of Directors may require the District, any
employee, or any other beneficiary under the Planes) to submit to it
any information, data, report, or document reasonably relevant to
and suitable for the purposes of such administration. The parties


Page 15 of 25







agree that they will use their best efforts to secure compliance with
any reasonable request of the Board of Directors for any such
information, data, reports, or documents, including verification of
accuracy of contributions.


6.1.18. The Directors shall exercise the powers and duties provided for in
the Agreement in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of
the VEBA and for the exclusive purposes of providing benefits to
participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable
expenses of administering the Planes). The Directors shall exercise
their power and duties with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence
under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting
in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the
conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims.


6.1.19. The Directors shall exercise all rights and privileges authorized
herein to maximize the return without unreasonable risk on monies


invested, to protect all property held hereunder, and to perform all
acts deemed necessary to accomplish the general objective of
obtaining and providing the best health and welfare benefits
available for the money contributed to the VEBA.


6.1.20. The Board of Directors shall be made available periodic reports, not
less often than annually, to the Unions and the Districts which shall
include, but not be limited to, investments of VEBA assets,
administration of the VEBA, experience factors for VEBA
participants covered by this VEBA and other employee benefits
plans or trusts with whom this VEBA has engaged in joint activities,
and any reports required by law.


6.1.21. In addition to those rights and responsibilities otherwise herein set
forth, the Board of Directors shall have the right to employ or
contract for services necessary and appropriate to fulfill the mission
of the VEBA.


6.1.22. The interim directors shall be responsible for setting forth a detailed
policy on conflict of interest which requires disclosure of possible
conflicts and sets out the circumstances under which conflicts of


interest shall prohibit service or participation in the decision making
oftheVEBA.


6.2. The Advisory Committee


6.2.1. The Advisory Committee shall be composed of representatives from
each participating district and each employee group.


Page 16 of 25







6.2.2. The Advisory Committee shall meet at such times as determined by
the Board of Directors.


6.2.3. It shall be the function of the Advisory Committee to receive the
reports of the Board of Directors, to discuss matters related to VEBA
policy, p1an(s) design, cost effectiveness, wellness, communications,
marketing and to transmit information to participating districts and
beneficiaries.


6.2.4. Participating districts and exclusive representatives shall appoint
representatives and report those selected to the VEBA Board of
Directors.


6.3. The Technical Committee


6.3.1. The Technical Committee shall be composed of two (2)
representatives from Labor and two (2) representatives from
Management appointed by each respective employee group. The
Technical Committee member shall be a member of the Board of
Directors.


6.3.2. The Technical Committee members shall serve an initial two-year
term and may be re-appointed at the discretion of the respective
employee group to serve additional two-year term(s) with no
limitation.


6.3.3. The Technical Committee shall meet as directed by the Board of
Directors at a designated time prior to the regularly scheduled Board
meetings. The agenda topics shall be determined by the Board of
Directors.


6.3.4. It shall be the function of the Technical Committee to research and


report to the Board of Directors with regard to issues specifically
directed to the Technical Committee by the Board of Directors. The
Technical Committee is not a decision-making body and shall not
replace the meetings and the function of the Board of Directors.


6.4 The Wellness Committee


6.4.1 The Wellness Committee shall be comprised of no less than one (1)
representative of Labor and (1) from Management. The Wellness
Committee members shall be a member of the Board of Directors.


6.4.2 The Wellness Committee member shall serve an initial one (1) year


Page 17 of 25







term and may be reappointed at the discretions of the representative
member groups to serve additional one (l) year term with no
limitation.


6.4.3 The Wellness Committee shall meet as directed by the Board of
Directors at the designated time prior to the regularly scheduled
Board Meeting.


6.4.4 It shall be the function of the Wellness Committee to review requests
made by Districts for the consideration of ICSVEBA matching
wellness funds. The Committee shall present their recommended
actions at the next Board meeting. The Wellness Committee does not
have binding authority.


7. PROCEDURE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS


7.1. The Board of Directors shall determine the time and place for regular
periodic meetings of the Board of Directors. Either the Chairperson or the
Co-Chairperson, or any two (2) members of the Board of Directors may call a
special meeting of the Board of Directors by giving written notice to all other
Directors of the time and place of such meeting at least seven (7) calendar
days before the date set for the meeting. Such notice of special meeting shall
be sufficient if sent by regular mail, email, or by fax transmitted to the
Directors at the phone numbers and addresses of such Directors as shown in
the records of the Board of Directors. Any meeting at which either all
Directors are present, or have waived notice in writing, shall be a valid
meeting without the giving of any notice.


7.2. The Board of Directors shall appoint a Secretary and additional assistants, if
necessary, who shall keep minutes or records of all proceedings and acts of
the Board of Directors.


7.3. A quorum shall consist of at least four (4) Management Directors and four (4)
Labor Directors.


7.4. The Board of Directors shall not take any action or make any decisions on
any matter coming before it or presented to it for consideration or exercise
any power or right given or reserved to it or conferred upon it by this
Agreement except upon the vote of each group of the Directors at a meeting
of the Board of Directors duly and regularly called or except by the signed
concurrence of all Directors without a meeting as provided in Section 7.7.


7.5. The Management Directors and the Labor Directors shall act jointly in the
administration of this VEBA with the intent that there be equal representation
in the administration of the VEBA. Normal decision making shall use a


Page 18 of 25







consensus model to avoid all voting on issues when possible. When voting is
required because consensus cannot be achieved, all actions of the Board of
Directors shall be decided by a unit vote, the Management Directors being
entitled to one (1) vote, and the Labor Directors being entitled to one (1)
vote, respectively.


The vote of the Labor Directors shall be determined by a majority of the
Labor Directors present at any meeting, and the vote of the Management
Directors shall be determined by a majority of the Management Directors
present at any meeting. If the vote among either Labor or Management
Directors ends in a tie vote, such tie shall constitute a vote in opposition to
the question for purposes of the subsequent unit vote.


7.6. With the exception of closed sessions, meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be open to interested persons and be held from time to time at a place
designated by the Board of Directors. Closed sessions may be called to deal
with areas such as contracts, personnel claims disputes and litigation.


7.7. Upon any matter which may properly come before the Board of Directors, the
Board of Directors may act without a meeting provided such action has the
written, including email, concurrence of all the Directors.


8. GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO DIRECTORS


8.1. Every instrument executed by the Board of Directors or at its direction shall
conclusively establish the following acts in favor of every person who relies
on it, namely that: (1) at the time of the delivery of the instrument, this
Agreement was in full force and in effect; (2) the instrument was executed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and (3) The
Board of Directors was duly authorized to execute the instrument or direct its
execution.


8.2. The duties, responsibilities, liabilities, and disabilities of a Director under the
Agreement shall be determined solely by the express provisions of this
Agreement and applicable law and no further duties, responsibilities,
liabilities, or disabilities shall be implied or imposed.


8.3. The Directors, to the extent permitted by applicable law, shall incur no
liability in acting upon any instrument, application, notice, request, signed
letter, telegraph, fax, email or other paper or document believed by them to
be signed by the proper person. Any Director, to the effect permitted by
applicable law, may rely upon any instrument in writing purporting to have
been signed by a majority of the Directors as conclusive evidence of the fact
that a majority of the Directors have taken the action stated to have been
taken in such instrument.


Page 19 of 25







8.4. Neither the Districts nor the Unions shall be liable or responsible for the
validity of this Agreement or Health and Welfare Planes).


8.5. Neither the Districts nor the Unions shall be liable in any respect for any of
the obligations, acts or, omissions of the Directors, or any of them, because
such Directors are in any way associated with any of the Districts or the
Unions.


8.6. The name of the VEBA may be used to designate the Directors collectively,
and all VEBA documents shall be signed by at least one (1) Management
Director and one (1) Labor Director, or by such persons as the Board of
Directors designates.


8.7. In the event any question or dispute shall arise as to the proper persons to
whom any payments shall be made under this Agreement or the Planes), the
Board of Directors may withhold such payment until there shall have been
made an adjudication on such question or dispute which, in the sole judgment
of the Board of Directors, is satisfactory to it or until the Board of Directors
shall have been fully protected against loss by means of such indemnification
agreement or bond as the Board of Directors, in its sole judgment, determines
to be adequate.


9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION


9.1. In the event of a deadlock of the Management Directors and the Labor
Directors on any matter within their power, the dispute, including
arbitrability of the dispute, may be referred to the dispute resolution process
as hereinafter provided.


9.2. A deadlock of the Management Directors and the Labor Directors shall not
be deemed to occur unless and until the matter has been discussed and a tie


vote exists during at least two (2) meetings ofthe Directors.


9.3. A deadlock of the Directors may occur only upon a tie on the question of the
adoption of a motion or resolution. Should one occur, the Board of Directors
shall advise the VEBA Administrator. Within five business days of the notice
of a tie vote, the VEBA Administrator, the Chair and the Co-Chair shall
submit a plan for resolving the matter to the VEBA Directors. The Directors
shall meet to review the plan within five business days of receipt.


9.4. If, within twenty-four hours, the Directors are not able to reach agreement on
the matter in dispute, a three member fact-finding panel shall be created to
study the situation and recommend resolution. The members of the panel
shall include:


9.4.1. A representative from Labor.


Page 20 of 25







9.4.2. A representative from Management.
9.4.3. A neutral third party.


9.5. Within five days of their appointment, the Labor and Management
representatives shall meet and attempt to agree upon a neutral third party.


9.6. If no agreement on the appointment of a neutral third party is reached within
the five day period or within such further time as the Directors may allow for
such purposes by mutual agreement, a list of arbitrators shall be requested
from the American Arbitration Association and submitted to the Management
Directors and the Labor Directors. From the panel submitted, the
Management Directors and the Labor Directors shall each alternately strike
one name until only one name remains. The person whose name remains
shall be the neutral third party.


9.7. Any matter in dispute which is referred to this fact-finding process shall be in
writing. If the directors cannot agree upon a written submission statement, the
Labor Directors and the Management Director shall each submit their
respective statement of the issue or issues in dispute.


9.8. In making the decision, the fact-finding panel shall be bound by the
provisions of this Agreement, the Planes), the Collective Bargaining
Agreements and any Participation Agreements and shall have no authority to
alter or amend any of the terms thereof; provided, however, that the Panel
shall have the authority to decide any dispute involving an amendment or
modification of the plan. The decision of the Panel shall be rendered in
writing. The Panel shall not have jurisdiction to make an award which
establishes or fixes a rate of contribution to the VEBA or to order a merger
with any other fund established for similar purposes as this VEBA.


9.9. No matter in connection with the interpretation or enforcement of the
Collective Bargaining Agreements shall be subject to arbitration under this
section. No matter which is subject to arbitration under this section shall be
subject to the grievance procedure or any other arbitration procedure
provided in a Collective Bargaining Agreement, nor shall an arbitrator have
the jurisdiction to order the VEBA to take or not take any action.


9.10. The recommendation of the fact-finding panel shall be advisory to the
Directors for ten days after receipt by the Directors. During this ten day
period, the Directors will continue efforts to reach agreement.


9.11. If no agreement is reached within ten days, the recommendation of the
majority of the fact-finding panel shall be implemented, and shall be final and
binding upon the Directors, the parties, the employers and other participants
and beneficiaries of this agreement and the plan. If there is not a majority
report, the neutral third party's recommendation shall be implemented.


Page 21 of 25







9.12. The fees and expenses of the fact-finding panel, including cost of any hearing
room and the original reporter's transcript, shall be paid out of the VEBA.
The reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such
arbitration and preparation thereof by the Management Directors, subject to a
maximum ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), reviewed annually, and the
Labor Directors subject to a like maximum, shall be reimbursed out of the
VEBA. However, no such reimbursement shall be made to Directors who are
affirmatively found by the fact-finding panel to have acted in bad faith either
in causing the fact-finding or in the fact-finding proceedings.


9.13. In the event the Directors are unable to agree on a neutral third party within a
reasonable time, either the Management Directors or the Labor Directors may
petition the appropriate Superior Court of the State of California for
appointment of an arbitrator as provided in California Code of Civil
Procedure, Section 1281.21 et seq.


10. GENERAL PROVISIONS


10.1. The rights and duties of all parties, including the Districts, the Unions, the
employees, and the Directors, shall be governed by the provision of this
Agreement and the Planes); provided, however, that the amount of District
contributions shall be as provided in the Collective Bargaining Agreements
and any Participation Agreement. In the event of any conflict between this
Agreement, Collective Bargaining Agreement, and any Participation
Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.


10.2. No Employee or other Participant or Beneficiary shall have any right or claim
to benefits under the plan or plan, except as specified in the policy or policies
or contract or contracts, procured or entered into pursuant to Section 6.1.5.5,
or under the Planes) of benefits adopted under a self-insured program. The
Directors shall establish and maintain a reasonable claims procedure, except
that to the extent to which benefits are provided or administered by an
insurance company, or other similar organization, which is subject to
regulation under the insurance laws of one or more states, any dispute as to
eligibility, type, amount, or duration of benefits shall be resolved by the
appropriate insurance carrier or other organization under and pursuant to the
policy or contract, and the Employee or other Participant or Beneficiary shall
have no right or claim with respect thereto against the VEBA or any of the
Directors. Neither the Districts, the Unions, nor any of the Directors shall be
liable for the failure or omission for any reason to pay any benefits under the
Planes).


Page 22 of 25







10.3. Unless otherwise specified, any notice required to be given under the terms of
this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered
personally to the person to be notified in writing, or if mailed in a sealed
envelope, postage prepaid, to such persona at the last known address as
shown in the records of the VEBA, or if sent by telephone facsimile to such
person at said last known address.


lOA. All questions pertaining to this Agreement, the VEBA, or the Planes) and
their validity, administration, and construction shall be determined in
accordance with the laws of the State of California, and any pertinent laws of
the United States.


10.5. If any provision of this Agreement, the Planes), the rules and regulation made
pursuant thereto, or any step in the Administration of the VEBA or the
Planes) is held to be illegal or invalid for any reasons, such illegality or
invalidity shall not affect the remaining portions of this Agreement, the
Planes), the mode of administration, or the rules and regulations, unless such
illegality or invalidity prevents, or in substantial degree unfavorably affects
accomplishments of the objectives and purpose of this Agreement or the
Planes). In the event of any such occurrence, the Board of Directors will
immediately meet and attempt to remedy any such defect.


10.6. Except to the extent necessary for the proper administration of the VEBA or
the Planes), all medical records pertaining to individuals shall be confidential
and shall not be made public or used for any other purposes than the
information of and action by Directors. Nothing in this section shall prohibit
the preparation and publication of statistical data and summary reports with
respect to the operations of the VEBA and the Planes).


10.7. This Agreement may be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which
shall have the force and effect of an original and no more than one
counterpart need be signed by any party thereto; provided, however, that each
of said counterparts shall be filed in the principal office of the VEBA.


Page 23 of 25







11. AMENDMENT, MERGER AND TERMINATION


11.1. The provisions of this Agreement may be amended or modified at any time
and from time to time by the Board of Directors. Such amendment shall be
accompanied by an instrument in writing executed by the Management
Directors and the Union Directors, replied in writing to participating districts
and reported to the Advisory committee at the next regular meeting.


11.2. In the event that one of the Unions or other exclusive representative whose
members become participants in the VEBA, or a District or any other District
which becomes obligated to contribute to the VEBA on behalf of any of its
employees, shall for any reason cease its participation or whose obligation to
contribute to the VEBA ceases, this Agreement and the VEBA created
hereunder shall continue for the benefits of all remaining participants, and
any remaining employee representatives participating in any Districts
obligated to contribute to the VEBA shall continue to maintain the VEBA.
Any employee representatives who cease their participation, or Districts
whose obligations to contribute to the VEBA cease, shall forfeit any and all
rights and interest in the VEBA or any of its assets, and shall not be entitled
to and share of the reserves maintains by the VEBA upon their withdrawal
from participation or upon cessation of their obligation to contribute.


11.3. This VEBA may be merged with any other fund established for similar
purposes as this VEBA, under terms and conditions mutually agreeable to
the Board of Directors of the respective funds.


11.4. The provisions of the Agreement shall continue in effect unless this
Agreement is terminated by an instrument in writing executed by the
Districts and the Unions.


11.5. Upon the termination of the VEBA herein provided, any and all monies
remaining in the VEBA after the payment of all expenses, shall be used for
the continuance of the one or more benefits of the type provided by the
planes) until such monies have been exhausted, or as otherwise provided in
the termination agreement in 11.4. above.


This Agreement and declaration, as amended, is EXECUTED as of
June 29,2009.


Page 24 of 25







BOARD OF DIRECTORS
IMPERIAL COUNTY SCHOOLS VOLUNTARY EMPLOYEE BENEFITS


ASSOCIA nON


By: _
Labor


By: _
Labor


By: _
Labor


By: _
Labor


By: _
Labor


By: _
Labor


By: _
Management


By: _
Management


By: _
Management


By: _
Management


By: _
Management


By: _
Management


Page 25 of 25





		Exhibit A - ICSVEBA Participation invitation letter

		Exhibit B - ICSVEBA Amended Plan Agreement



		Text1: EXHIBIT E








vikki.carr

Typewritten Text

EXHIBIT A













